
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Prepared by HUB International 


Insurance Proposal for : 


Employees’ Retirement Fund of the 


City of Dallas  


Fiduciary Liability & Commercial Property 


Effective 01/13/2017 


Prepared By:  


Harry Johnson 
Senior Vice President 


www.hubinternational.com/ 


December 13, 2016 







Service Team


Win Williams


Risk Control Consultant
Win.Williams@hubinternational.com


214-979-6236


Shelly Welter


Claims Manager
Shelly.Welter@hubinternational.com


214-979-6231


Eduardo Rodriguez


Claims Analyst
Eduardo.Rodriguez@hubinternational.com


214-979-6233


Morgan Welch


Account Technician
Morgan.Welch@hubinternational.com


214-979-6252


Account 
Management


Natalie Perry


Chief Marketing Officer
Natalie.Perry@hubinternational.com


214-979-6232


Kim  Fraley


VP, EB Operations
Kim.Fraley@hubinternational.com


214-979-6221


Danielle Perry


Account Manager
Danielle.Perry@hubinternational.com


214-979-6234


Jeff Sterling


Voluntary Benefit Specialist
Jeff.Sterling@hubinternational.com


214-979-6240


Claims      
Management


Risk           
Services


Employee 
Benefits


Hart Brown


VP, Organizational Resilience
Hart.Brown@hubinternational.com


214-855-5650


Martin Yung


Chief Executive Officer
Martin.Yung@hubinternational.com


214-979-6227


Harry Johnson


Senior Vice President
Harry.Johnson@hubinternational.com


214-979-6226


1







Prepared by HUB International 


Renewal Option Comparison 


Expiring 
$10m FID: Chubb 


$10m XS FID: Travelers 
PROP: Chubb 


$20m Option1 
$10m FID: Chubb 


$10m XS FID: Euclid 
PROP: Chubb 


% Change 


Premiums 
*Fiduciary Liability  $         110,236.00  $       98,794.00 -10.38% 
*Excess Fiduciary Liability  $       60,000.00  $       49,397.00 -17.67% 
*Property  $         2,991.00   $         2,986.00  -0.17% 


Total Insurance Cost  $      173,227.00  $      151,177.00 -12.73%


Expiring 
$10m FID: Chubb 


$10m XS FID: Travelers 
PROP: Chubb 


$20m Option2 
$20m FID: Chubb 


PROP: Chubb 
% Change 


Premiums 
*Fiduciary Liability  $         110,236.00  $         151,091.00 -11.25% 
*Excess Fiduciary Liability  $       60,000.00  N/A See Above 
*Property  $         2,991.00   $         2,986.00  -0.17% 


Total Insurance Cost  $      173,227.00  $      154,077.00 -11.05%


Expiring 
$10m FID: Chubb 


$10m XS FID: Travelers 
PROP: Chubb 


$25m Option 
$20m FID: Chubb 


$5m XS FID: Euclid 
PROP: Chubb 


% Change 


Premiums 
*Fiduciary Liability  $         110,236.00  $         151,091.00 37.06% 
*Excess Fiduciary Liability  $       60,000.00  $       18,886.00 -68.52% 
*Property  $         2,991.00   $         2,986.00  -0.17% 


Total Insurance Cost  $      173,227.00  $      172,963.00 -0.15%


Expiring 
$10m FID: Chubb 


$10m XS FID: Travelers 
PROP: Chubb 


$30m Option 
$20m FID: Chubb 


$10m XS FID: Euclid 
PROP: Chubb 


% Change 


Premiums 
*Fiduciary Liability  $         110,236.00  $         151,091.00 37.06% 
*Excess Fiduciary Liability  $       60,000.00  $       37,773.00 -37.05% 
*Property  $         2,991.00   $         2,986.00  -0.17% 


Total Insurance Cost  $      173,227.00  $      191,850.00 10.75%


2







Prepared by HUB International 


Fiduciary Liability Overview 


Named Insured Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 


Form Type Claims Made; Duty of Insurer to Defend 


Coverage 
Descriptions 


Fiduciary Liability: Coverage for the organization and the employees acting as 


fiduciaries of your welfare, defined contribution and defined benefit plans for a 


breach of duty, negligent act, error or omission or any other matter claimed by 


reason of their service to the corporation as a fiduciary. 


THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS ONLY A SUMMARY OF YOUR INSURANCE COVERAGE AND 


POLICY.   IT IS YOUR RESPONSIBILITY TO CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY REVIEW THE 


ENTIRE POLICY FOR ITS ACTUAL TERMS, LIMITS AND CONDITIONS.   IN THE EVENT OF ANY 


INCONSISTENCY BETWEEN THE TERMS OF THE POLICY AND THE PROVISIONS OF THIS 


PROPOSAL, THE TERMS OF THE POLICY WILL GOVERN AND CONTROL. 


3







Prepared by HUB International 


Primary Fiduciary Liability:  Chubb 


Carrier: Federal Insurance Company (Chubb) 


Best Rating:  A++ XV 


 Form Type Chubb Labor Management Trust Fiduciary Liability Policy Form 


Claims Made  


 Limits of Liability 
 and Retentions 


Fiduciary Liability Limit $10,000,000  


  HIPAA fines / penalties sublimit  $1,500,000 (expiring $100,000) 


  ERISA 502c penalties sublimit  $250,000 (NEW) 


  PPACA civil penalties sublimit $250,000 (NEW) 


  PPA penalties sublimit  $250,000 (NEW) 


  IRS Section 4975 penalties sublimit $250,000 (NEW) 


  Voluntary Settlement Program fee coverage sublimit  $250,000 (NEW) 


  Benefit Overpayment Coverage sublimit $100,000 (NEW) 


  Other Fines, Taxes or Penalties Coverage sublimit $250,000 (NEW) 


  Section 203 of Bipartisan Budget Act Sublimit $250,000 (NEW) 


Retention – Per Fiduciary Claim $50,000  


Premiums $10m Primary Option: $98,794     (expiring $110,236) 


$20m Primary Option: $151,091   (expiring $170,236) 


 Prior and Pending 
 Litigation Dates 


01/13/2009 


 Key Endorsements 
 and/or 
 Enhancements 


· Waiver of Retention for No Liability


· Severability of Cooperation


· Pollution Exclusion deleted


· No deductible applies to the first $25K of Defense Costs incurred
for E-Discovery Specialist Service as a result of a Claim


· Notice of Claim is amended to 180 days after the policy expires,
if it is renewed with Chubb; if coverage is not renewed with Chubb
a claim must be reported no later than 60 days after policy expiration


· Definition of Administration is amended to include counseling or
failing to provide proper or timely notice to participants


· Greatly enhanced definition of Claim


· Definition of Insured includes any Committee


4







Prepared by HUB International 


Excess Fiduciary Liability:  Euclid 


Carrier: Hudson Insurance Company 


Best Rating:  A XV 


Form Type Excess Fiduciary Liability Insurance Following Form Policy  


Claims Made 


Limits of Liability Excess Fiduciary Liability Limit $10,000,000 excess $10,000,000 


Additional Limit Options: 


  Excess Fiduciary Liability Limit $5,000,000 excess $20,000,000 (NEW) 


  Excess Fiduciary Liability Limit $10,000,000 excess $20,000,000 (NEW) 


Premiums $10m x $10m Excess Option: $49,397     (expiring $60,000) 


$5m x $20m   Excess Option: $18,886 


$10m x $20m Excess Option: $37,773 


Prior and Pending 
Litigation Dates 


01/13/2009 for $10m x $10m 


01/13/2017 for additional $5m x $20m or $10m x $20m options 


Key Endorsements 
and/or 
Enhancements 


· Dropdown Coverage for Multiple Sublimits Endorsement:


· PPA (Pension Protection Act of 2006) Penalty $250K sublimit


· PPACA (Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act) $250K sublimit


· Section 4975 $250K sublimit


· HIPAA $250K sublimit


· 502(C) $250K sublimit


· Voluntary Settlement $250K sublimit


· Other Fines Taxes or Penalties $250K sublimit


· Enhanced Exhaustion of Underlying Insurance Endorsement


5







Prepared by HUB International 


Commercial Property Overview 


Named Insured Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 


Form Type Occurrence; Special Form; Replacement Cost 


Coverage 
Descriptions 


Commercial Property: Coverage for the Named Insured(s) for physical loss or 


damage to real and personal property.  Special Form expands the coverage from 


named perils to insuring against all perils that are not specifically excluded.  


Replacement Cost provides coverage to repair or replace property with like kind 


& quality and does not factor in depreciation. 


THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS ONLY A SUMMARY OF YOUR INSURANCE COVERAGE AND 


POLICY.   IT IS YOUR RESPONSIBILITY TO CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY REVIEW THE 


ENTIRE POLICY FOR ITS ACTUAL TERMS, LIMITS AND CONDITIONS.   IN THE EVENT OF ANY 


INCONSISTENCY BETWEEN THE TERMS OF THE POLICY AND THE PROVISIONS OF THIS 


PROPOSAL, THE TERMS OF THE POLICY WILL GOVERN AND CONTROL. 


6







Prepared by HUB International 


Commercial Property:  Chubb 


Carrier: Federal Insurance Company (Chubb) 


Best Rating:  A++ XV 


Form Type Chubb Customarq Series Financial Institutions Policy Form 


Occurrence 


Limits and 
Deductibles 


Business Personal Property Limit $676,086 


Electronic Data Processing Property Limit $750,000 


Deductible – Per Occurrence $1,000  


Premium $2,986   (expiring $2,991) 


· Covered Premises $250K Blanket Limit of Insurance


Key Endorsements 
and/or 
Enhancements 


· Covered Premises $250K Blanket Limit of Insurance


· Applies to Accounts Receivable, EDP Property, Fine Arts,
Leasehold Interest, Non-Owned Detached Trailers, Outdoor
Trees/Shrubs/Plants/Lawn, Personal Property of Employees,
Property Damage Extortion, Public Safety Service Charges,
Rental Income and Valuable Papers


· Any Other Location limit of $100K


· In Transit limit of $100K


· Newly Acquired Premises: Building limit of $2.5m


· Newly Acquired Premises: Personal Property limit of $1m


· Newly Acquired Premises: Personal Property at Existing
Premises limit of $100K


· Newly Acquired Premises: Electronic Data limit of $50K


· Prohibition of Access sublimit of $50K per occurrence and
$100K annual aggregate


7







Prepared by HUB International 


A.M. Best Carrier Rating 


A.M. Best Company is the leading provider of ratings, news and financial data for the insurance 
industry worldwide.  Their Best Financial strength rating is an independent option of the insurer’ financial 
strength and ability to meet its ongoing insurance policy and contract obligations.   The rating is based 
on a comprehensive and qualitative evaluation of a company’s balance sheet, strength, operating 
performance and business profile. 


As professional agents it has long been our established policy to make every effort to deal only with 
companies having a Best's Rating of A++, A+, A or A-, which are the four highest ratings available, and a 
minimum of $50 million in Policyholders' Surplus. It must be noted that neither HUB International nor 
any affiliated company guarantees the financial solvency of any insurance carrier. The following 
list outlines the A. M. Best Company rating scale and associated descriptions. 


Financial Strength Ratings:  An A.M. Best's Financial Strength Rating is an opinion of an insurer's 
ability to meet its obligation to policyholders.  


A.M. Best Rating 


A++, A+ Superior C, C- Weak 


A, A- Excellent D Poor 


B++, B+ Very Good E 
Under Regulatory 


Supervision 


B, B- Good F In Liquidation 


C++, C+ Marginal 


Financial Size Categories:   A.M. Best assigns each letter rated insurance company a Financial Size 
Category. This is designed to provide a convenient indicator of the size of a company in terms of its 
statutory surplus and related accounts. 


Financial Size Categories (In millions of U.S. dollars) 


Class I Up to 1 Class IX 250 to 500 


Class II 1 to 2 Class X 500 to 750 


Class III 2 to 5 Class XI 750 to 1,000 


Class IV 5 to 10 Class XII 1,000 to 1,250 


Class V 10 to 25 Class XIII 1,250 to 1,500 


Class VI 25 to 50 Class XIV 1,500 to 2,000 


Class VII 50 to 100 Class XV Greater than 2,000 


Class VIII 100 to 250 


8







Prepared by HUB International 


Confirmation to Bind 


Confirmation to Bind Agreement 


I, _____________________________, on behalf of Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas, 


hereby acknowledge that we have reviewed the enclosed proposal and confirm HUB’s acknowledgment 


to bind the programs described within, except: 


_____   As Proposed 


_____  Changes as Follows: 


Accepted by:
      Signature           Date


  Name  Title


9












Records of Meetings 
 


 
2016 Open Meetings Handbook • Office of the Attorney General 


60 
 


X. Records of Meetings 


A.  Minutes or Recordings of Open Session 


Section 551.021 of the Government Code provides as follows: 


(a) A governmental body shall prepare and keep minutes or make a recording of 
each open meeting of the body. 


(b) The minutes must: 


(1) state the subject of each deliberation; and 


(2) indicate each vote, order, decision, or other action taken.364   


Section 551.022 of the Government Code provides: 


The minutes and recordings of an open meeting are public records and shall be 
available for public inspection and copying on request to the governmental body’s 
chief administrative officer or the officer’s designee.365 


If minutes are kept instead of a recording, the minutes should record every action taken by the 
governmental body.366  If open sessions of a commissioners court meeting are recorded, the 
recordings are available to the public under the Public Information Act.367 


B.  Certified Agenda or Recording of Closed Session 


A governmental body must make and keep either a certified agenda or a recording of each 
executive session, except for an executive session held by the governmental body to consult with 
its attorney in accordance with section 551.071 of the Government Code.368  If a certified agenda 


                                                 
364  TEX. GOV’T CODE ANN. § 551.021; see also Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. GA-0727 (2009) at 2 (opining that Texas 


State Library and Archives Commission rule requiring written minutes of every open meeting of a state agency 
is likely invalid as inconsistent with section 551.021(a), which authorizes a governmental body to make a 
recording of an open meeting).  


365  Id. § 551.022; see York v. Tex. Guaranteed Student Loan Corp., 408 S.W.3d 677, 688 (Tex. App.—Austin 2013, 
no pet. h.) (concluding that exceptions in the Public Information Act do not operate to prevent public disclosure 
of minutes requested under section 551.022).   


366  See York, 408 S.W.3d at 687 (defining “minutes” to refer “to the record or notes of a meeting or proceeding, 
whatever they may contain”). 


367  Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. JM-1143 (1990) at 2–3 (concluding that tape recording of open session of 
commissioners court meeting is subject to Open Records Act); see Tex. Att’y Gen. ORD-225 (1979) at 3 
(concluding that handwritten notes of open meetings made by secretary of governmental body are subject to 
disclosure under Open Records Act); ORD-32 (1974) at 2 (concluding that audio tape recording of open meeting 
of state licensing agency used as aid in preparation of accurate minutes is subject to disclosure under Open 
Records Act). 


368  TEX. GOV’T CODE ANN. § 551.103(a); see Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. JM-840 (1988) at 3 (discussing meaning of 
“certified agenda”).  But see TEX. GOV’T CODE ANN. §§ 551.0725(b) (providing that notwithstanding section 
551.103(a), the commissioners court must make a recording of the proceedings of a closed meeting under this 



cwatson

Highlight







Records of Meetings 
 


 
2016 Open Meetings Handbook • Office of the Attorney General 


61 
 


is kept, the presiding officer must certify that the agenda is a true and correct record of the 
executive session.369  The certified agenda must include “(1) a statement of the subject matter of 
each deliberation, (2) a record of any further action taken, and (3) an announcement by the 
presiding officer at the beginning and the end of the closed meeting indicating the date and 
time.”370  While the agenda does not have to be a verbatim transcript of the meeting, it must at 
least provide a brief summary of each deliberation.371  Whether a particular agenda satisfies the 
Act is a question of fact that must be addressed by the courts.  Attorney General Opinion JM-840 
(1988) cautioned governmental bodies to consider providing greater detail in the agenda with 
regard to topics not authorized for consideration in executive session or to avoid the uncertainty 
concerning the requisite detail required in an agenda by recording executive sessions.372  Any 
member of a governmental body participating in a closed session knowing that an agenda or 
recording is not being made commits a Class C misdemeanor.373 


The certified agenda or recording of an executive session must be kept a minimum of two years 
after the date of the session.374  If during that time a lawsuit that concerns the meeting is brought, 
the agenda or recording of that meeting must be kept pending resolution of the lawsuit.375  The 
commissioners court, not the county clerk, is the proper custodian for the certified agenda or 
recording of a closed meeting, but it may delegate that duty to the county clerk.376 


A certified agenda or recording of an executive session is confidential.  A person who knowingly 
and without lawful authority makes these records public commits a Class B misdemeanor and may 
be held liable for actual damages, court costs, reasonable attorney fees and exemplary or punitive 
damages.377  Section 551.104 provides for court-ordered access to the certified agenda or recording 
under specific circumstances: 


(b) In litigation in a district court involving an alleged violation of this chapter, the 
court: 


(1) is entitled to make an in camera inspection of the certified agenda or 
recording; 


(2) may admit all or part of the certified agenda or recording as evidence, 
on entry of a final judgment; and 


                                                 
section), 551.0726(b) (“[N]otwithstanding Section 551.103(a), the [Texas Facilities] Commission must make a 
recording of the proceedings of a closed meeting held under this section.”). 


369  TEX. GOV’T CODE ANN. § 551.103(b). 
370  Id. § 551.103(c). 
371  Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. JM-840 (1988) at 4–7. 
372  Id. at 5–6 (referring to legislative history of section indicating that its primary purpose is to document fact that 


governmental body did not discuss unauthorized topics in closed session). 
373  TEX. GOV’T CODE ANN. § 551.145. 
374  Id. § 551.104(a). 
375  Id. 
376  Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. GA-0277 (2004) at 3–4. 
377  TEX. GOV’T CODE ANN. § 551.146. 







Records of Meetings 
 


 
2016 Open Meetings Handbook • Office of the Attorney General 


62 
 


(3)  may grant legal or equitable relief it considers appropriate, including 
an order that the governmental body make available to the public the 
certified agenda or recording of any part of a meeting that was required 
to be open under this chapter. 


(c) the certified agenda or recording of a closed meeting is available for public 
inspection and copying only under a court order issued under Subsection 
(b)(3).378 


Section 551.104 authorizes a district court to admit all or part of the certified agenda or recording 
of a closed session as evidence in an action alleging a violation of the Act, thus providing the only 
means under state law whereby a certified agenda or recording of a closed session may be released 
to the public.379  The Office of the Attorney General has recognized that it lacks authority under 
the Public Information Act380 to review certified agendas or recordings of closed sessions for 
compliance with the Open Meetings Act.381  However, the confidentiality provision may be 
preempted by federal law.382  When the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission served a 
Texas city with an administrative subpoena for tapes of closed city council meetings, the Open 
Meetings Act did not excuse compliance.383 


A member of the governmental body has a right to inspect the certified agenda or recording of a 
closed meeting, even if he or she did not participate in the meeting.384  This is not a release to the 
public in violation of the confidentiality provisions of the Act, because a board member is not a 
member of the public within that prohibition.  The governmental body may adopt a procedure 
permitting review of the certified agenda or recording, but may not entirely prohibit a board 
member from reviewing the record.  The board member may not copy the recording or certified 
agenda of a closed meeting, nor may a former member of a governmental body inspect these 
records once he or she leaves office.385  


                                                 
378 Id. § 551.104. 
379  Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. JM-995 (1988) at 5. 
380  TEX. GOV’T CODE ANN. ch. 552. 
381  See Tex. Att’y Gen. ORD-495 (1988) at 2, 4. 
382  Equal Emp’t Opportunity Comm’n v. City of Orange, Tex., 905 F. Supp. 381, 382 (E.D. Tex. 1995). 
383  Id.  
384  Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. JC-0120 (1999) at 4, 5, 7 (overruling Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. DM-227 (1993), in part). 
385  Tex. Att’y Gen. LO-98-033, at 2–3. 












 


SENIOR DELEGATES ROUNDTABLE   
February 15-17, 2017  The Four Seasons Hotel  Palm Beach, Florida 


 


Turning Point or Tipping Point? 


Introduction     


Raising assets has been a tough sell this year as many institutional investors, including many of the largest state pension 


funds, have rethought their commitments in light underwhelming returns and high fee structures.  Meanwhile, managers are 


finding the costs of compliance are skyrocketing, and competition remains fierce.  Although overall investor sentiment for the 


asset class is at a historically low ebb, there remain sectors of the industry which offer investors good returns on their 


investment.  Thus, it’s clear that future success in the alternatives sector will require intense strategizing and hard 


decisions.  Nowhere is this pressure felt more keenly than in the sales, marketing, and distribution functions. 


In order to prosper in the current environment, alternative asset managers need to make sure that their marketing strategies 


and product design are attuned to the changing marketplace.  Practical solutions must be developed to build and retain 


effective and efficient sales organizations that can enable a firm to meet its growth and profitability targets. 


But asset management firms are not blank slates.  Leaders must build on their firm's existing core competencies and 


embedded cultures.  How can sales and marketing leaders determine the optimum model to meet investor demands within 


the context of a firm’s unique attributes? 


The 2017 AII Senior Delegates Roundtable will offer members an important opportunity to share perspectives on industry 


trends and explore sales and marketing strategies that address the changing environment.  The Roundtable will utilize a 


variety of formats to encourage and facilitate a peer-to-peer exchange of ideas.  Delegates will work together to explore 


strategic concepts and practical implementation that address the rapidly changing alternatives marketplace.  


Wednesday, February 15, 2017   


5:00- 6:30   


Advisory Board Meeting & Reception 


6:30- 8:30   


Welcome Reception & Buffet Dinner   
Mix and mingle with friends, new and old.   


Thursday, February 16, 2017   


7:30– 8:30am   


Breakfast Buffet & Registration: All Delegates 
 







   Senior Delegates Roundtable – Alternative Investor Institute   


8:30 – 8:45am   


Welcome and Introductory Remarks    
Robin Coffey, Executive Director, Institutional Investor Memberships 


Kip McDaniel, Chief Content Officer & Group Editorial Director, Institutional Investor 


8:45 – 9:00am   


The New Normal: IIN Allocator Trends Report 
For the fourth straight year, we’ve surveyed members of the Investor Intelligence Network, an online platform allowing asset 


owners to connect and share information year-round. This presentation will provide an overview of this exclusive data with 


an eye toward examining major alternative asset allocation trends in North America.  


Leanna Orr, Global Content Director, Investor Intelligence Network 


9:00 – 9.45am   


State of the Alternatives Industry 


AII/Casey, Quirk by Deloitte 2nd Annual Distribution Benchmarking Study 


This presentation will provide an overview and analysis of the big industry trends affecting leaders of alternative distribution 


organizations and provide select findings on key topic areas of industry trends, distribution effectiveness and organizational 


model design.  Highlights will include the following:  


I. Operating Environment: What are the opportunities/challenges faced by institutional distribution organizations? What 


channels and products are driving growth? 


II. Fee Pressure: What are the drivers of industry fee pressure and how have managers responded? 


III. Organizational Models and Staffing: How have firms organized sales and marketing?  In which roles are firms in most need 


of key talent? 


IV. Differentiated Client Engagement: How are firms differentiating their service offering to create a unique client 


experience?  What role does technology play? 


V. Managing a Leading Distribution Team: How do firms attract, retain, and incentivize talent to maximize team effectiveness 


and promote a collaborative culture? 


Jonathan Doolan, Principal, Casey, Casey Quirk by Deloitte 


Michael McConville, Senior Consultant, Casey, Casey Quirk by Deloitte 


Kevin P. Quirk, Principal, Casey Quirk by Deloitte  


9:45 – 10.15am   


Coffee Break 


10:15 – 11:00am   


What Are Investors Seeking Today? 
Due to the proliferation of funds in recent years and the wide dispersion between the top performing strategies and 


individual managers in the industry today, investors are finding it more difficult to pinpoint the most attractive investment 


opportunities in the current environment. Utilizing alternatives to achieve optimal diversification is still a key way to mitigate 


volatility, lower risk and provide more stable returns. And as institutional allocators become more and more dependent on 


their alternative allocations to meet their return - increasingly seeking more than just pooled fund investments from 


managers with a clear focus on partnerships around terms, strategy focus, implementation and idea sharing -  managers have 







   Senior Delegates Roundtable – Alternative Investor Institute   


tried to adapt their fund strategies and marketing accordingly. But are the innovations significant enough to move the 


investor’s overarching demands over and above just moving the needle?  What investment strategies and services top the 


lists of investors in this period of volatile negative performance? What has changed with the turmoil in the markets? What it 


will take for managers to succeed in a world where the business models and growth vectors of traditional asset managers and 


alternatives specialists are increasingly converging? This panel of industry experts will explore the products and processes 


required to capitalize on investor interest in alternatives and the implications for those responsible for the firm’s distribution 


of products and services.   


Moderator: Kip McDaniel, Chief Content Officer & Group Editorial Director, Institutional Investor 


Anurag Pandit, Chief investment Officer, ALSAC / St. Jude Children's Research Hospital 


Additional panelists to be announced.  


11:00 – 12:00pm   


Idea Labs I: Innovative Products and Strategies  
Reflecting on the previous presentations and panel, roundtable delegates will be divided into small groups to discuss ways in 


which they are thinking about current industry trends and meeting client demands. 


IDEA LAB CO-LEADERS:    


I. Graeme Daykin, Partner, Head of Investor Relations, Magnitude Capital, LLC 


Additional Co-Leaders to be announced.  


12:00 – 1:00pm   


Lunch 


1:00 – 1:45pm   


Something’s Gotta Give 
Insurance investors are in a unique position, aka ‘between a rock and a hard place’!  As regulators mandate the assets to 


liabilities mix they must maintain, fixed income continues to be the predominant asset class of necessity. Lower rates for 


longer have pushed insurers further afield in an attempt to compensate for this, by investing their remaining capital in 


alternative investments. Add to that fees for these investments are generally greater and that regulators place a higher 


charge on risk-based capital. All strategies are on the table, and this discussion between Martin Racek, Partner at Deloitte 


and Rip Reeves, Chief Investment Officer & Treasurer, AEGIS Insurance, will focus on the different approaches AEGIS is 


considering and implementing: direct lending, infrastructure, real estate equity and opportunistic strategies. This session will 


explore parameters and requirements of insurance investors as asset managers develop new strategies with insurers in mind. 


Martin Racek, Partner, Deloitte 


Rip Reeves, Chief Investment Officer & Treasurer, AEGIS Insurance 


1:45 – 2:30pm   


Sales and Social Media: Killing It Both Online and Off 
In an increasingly social age, what does social media mean for asset managers? Does social media presence really impact 


growth, and if so what does this mean for the future of asset management?  Utilizing an interactive format this speaker will 


discuss how sales heads and their teams can effectively marry traditional marketing methods with social media to deepen 


client relationships, connect with prospects in meaningful ways, and properly communicate with Millennials.  Topics to be 


covered, but not limited to, will include:  


I. Are you engaging with the correct audiences online? 


II. Are you using Social Media to connect deeply with investors? 







   Senior Delegates Roundtable – Alternative Investor Institute   


III. Is your message personalized/humanized? 


IV. Is your message strategic/technical? 


V. Are you speaking about the outcome investors will receive? 


VI. Are you using social media to take the conversation offline? 


Laura Virilli, Financial Services Social Media Speaker, Influencer & Coach 


2:30 – 3:00pm   


Coffee Break   


3:00 – 3:45pm   


Back to Basics: Key Skills to Effective Communication 
What are the biggest communications mistakes Marketers make when interacting with investors?  What do you do when 


your CIO/PM just isn’t good with clients?  Should you engage with the media before they engage with you?  When a crisis 


hits, what should you be thinking of first?  Join former White House spokeswoman/Director of Television News and 


Chairwoman of Edelman public relation’s global public affairs business Katie Burke for an overview of communications best 


practices for funds.  Whether you’re already a terrific communicator, in need of the basics or somewhere in between, this 


presentation will leave you with practical skills on how to better communicate with investors, the media, employees and third 


parties.   


Katie Levinson Burke, Founder, Katie Burke Communications 


3:45 – 4:30pm   


The Reality of the Investor’s Perception 
Alon Kutai of Rivel Research Group will be presenting key findings from their AM 20/20 research platform, a multi-faceted 


research program that has both investor and peer-based research.  The research is based on extensive phone interviewing 


conducted amongst US-based allocators. Alon will be reviewing of mosaic of select excerpts from different research reports 


coupled with relevant action steps.  Topics will include “Fees,” “Risk,” “Solutions, not Products,” and “How to Please 


Consultants.”  Additionally, Alon will be revealing some major emerging themes that have been emanating from Rivel’s 


bespoke alternative asset manager perception study projects. 


Presenter & Moderator: Alon D. Kutai, Senior Managing Director, Rivel Research Group 


Panel Conversation: 


Alejandra Arguello, Marketing & Investor Relations, Caspian Capital Advisors 


Additional panelists to be announced.  


4:30 – 5:15pm   


Behind The Scenes of the Institutional Decision-Making Process 


Governance: The Investment Office and Investment Committee 
Good governance is the most important aspect of an efficient pension system, enhancing investment performance and 


benefiting security. That means having the right people in the right roles following the right processes to make the right 


decisions. For a pension plan, good governance also aims at delivering high fund performance while also keeping costs low for 


all stakeholders. Boards are intended to make decisions as a group and, as such, should speak with one voice. This session will 


take a peek behind the decision making process of the board and the investment office and examine the drivers of their asset 


allocation, portfolio construction and manager selection process.  


Cheryl D. Alston, Executive Director, Employee’s Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 


Dennis R. Sugino, Trustee, Mercy Health 







   Senior Delegates Roundtable – Alternative Investor Institute   


Anthony S. Waskiewicz, Chief Investment Officer, Mercy Health 


5:00 – 6:00pm   


Idea Labs II with Refreshments: Superior Client Service   
Roundtable delegates will be divided into small groups to discuss client service, the models they have built and how this 


effort can be most effectively delivered.   


IDEA LAB CO-LEADERS:    


1. James-Keith (JK) Brown, Head Of Global Investor Relations, Executive Managing Director, Och-Ziff Capital 


Management Group 


Additional Co-Leaders to be announced.  


7:00 – 9:00pm   


Cocktails & Dinner    
 


Friday, February 17, 2017   


7:15 – 8:15   


Breakfast Buffet 


8:15 – 9.00 


Hearing What Isn’t Said 
In a crowded and increasingly competitive industry, asset managers must become masters of communication to maintain 


strong relationships with investors, and explain their unique value proposition to prospects. Communication also plays a large 


role internally through its relationship to a firm’s brand identity and culture. Messaging isn’t merely a matter of crafting 


formal announcements.  As Peter Drucker once put it, “The most important thing in communication is to hear what isn't 


being said.”  This panel of experts on internal and external communications will discuss common challenges, how firms often 


mess up communications, what matters in a crisis, whether hedge funds have a branding problem, managing internal vs 


external public relations, what firms are trying to achieve through communications, how to think about the press, how to 


balance transparency to investors while managing public perception, and other topics.  


Moderator: Josh Friedlander, Editor, Absolute Return 


Jonathan Gasthalter, Managing Partner, Gasthalter & Co. LP 


Ed O'Reilly, Global Head, Client and Partner Group, Citadel Investment Group 


Andrew Rabinowitz, Partner, President & Chief Operating Officer, Marathon Asset Management 


Additional panelist to be announced.  


9:00 – 9.45 


Investment Culture in the New Era, Part II  
The New Era for investment firms is characterized by challenges like fee compression, scarce alpha, and highly skeptical 


clients. To meet these challenges, investment leaders must understand how firm culture is changing. What are the new 


demands from younger workers? What values and behaviors are appropriate for winning in this New Era? FCG’s research and 


client experience provides insights for responding to the new culture demands. Values like “Excellence/Continuous 


Improvement” and “Accountability” are more important now as firms face tougher competition. At the same time, “Balance 


(Work/Life)” and “Autonomy” are more important than ever before. How do leaders build performance cultures to meet 


these different demands? FCG will share perspectives about how investment firms are meeting these challenges. What is 



https://ii.my.salesforce.com/0012400000EFBUT





   Senior Delegates Roundtable – Alternative Investor Institute   


working, and what is not. And what are the biggest dangers for losing talent if your leaders fail to respond. As always, FCG will 


use real examples and case studies from client engagements to prove their points. 


Jim Ware, CFA, Founder, Focus Consulting Group   


Keith Robinson, Managing Partner, Focus Consulting Group 


9:45 – 10.15 


Coffee Break  


10:15 – 11.00 


Leading Successful Distribution Efforts Through Challenging Times  
Competition for superior distribution talent continues to be fierce as managers seek to elevate their value proposition with 


clients and prospects.  Thus, it is imperative that those tasked with building powerful sales teams be kept abreast of current 


hiring trends, the skills in greatest demand in the market today and what is considered to be best practices for attracting and 


retaining key talent.  This presentation, panel conversation and table-top discussions will explore these issues and more. 


Presenter & Panel Moderator: Laurie Thompson, Principal, Global Asset Management & Hedge Fund Practices, Heidrick & 


Struggles 


Panel Conversation: 


Tim Gullickson, Managing Director, Man Investments 


Additional panelists to be announced.  


11:00-11:45 


McLagan: Compensation using Polling Mechanism in Real-Time 
Structuring the right compensation packages for investment and sales staffs is key to attracting and retaining talent. This 


session will highlight the dominant factors today regarding compensation related to the sales and marketing functions.  


Shelley Eisenhandler, Associate Partner, Mclagan 


11:45 – 12:30 


Idea Labs III: Talent & Compensation Trends   
Reflecting on the previous presentations, roundtable delegates will be divided into small groups to discuss how they are 


meeting the challenge of hiring, attracting, compensating and retaining talent.   


IDEA LAB CO-LEADERS:    


Co-Leaders to be announced.  


12:30 – 1:30   


Luncheon Buffet    
 
Roundtable Concludes  


 








The Women's Private Equity Summit


http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/agenda.php[12/1/2016 11:46:52 AM]


SAVE THE DATE FOR OUR NEW YORK SUMMIT
 9th Annual Women's Alternative Investment Summit
 November 2-3, 2017
 Midtown Manhattan, New York City  LEARN MORE >


Join our Mailing List


Join Our Mailing List


SPONSOR SPOTLIGHT


About the Conference


Agenda


Speakers


Register


Who Should Attend


Meet Our Sponsors/Partners


Thought Leadership


Venue/Accommodations


Become a Sponsor


Testimonials


FAQ


In the News


2017 Conference Schedule


ACTIVITIES FOR WEDNESDAY ARRIVALS


2017 Women's Private Equity Summit Golf Tournament — Nine-hole; best-ball tournament; beginners
 welcome: Wednesday, March 8, 2017 – Check-in: 2:00 p.m.; Tournament: 2:30-5:00 p.m.


Golf Clinic for Beginners — A "green" social networking event: Wednesday, March 8, 2017 – Check-in:
 2:00 p.m.; Clinic: 2:30-4:30 p.m.


Wine Education Session: "Tips From the Vintners" — Listen and learn; swirl, sniff, sip and socialize:
 Wednesday, March 8, 2017 – Check-in: 2:30 p.m.; Wine Session: 3:00-4:30 p.m.


Coastal Walk — Enjoy a 90-minute walk overlooking the spectacular coast alongside the hotel property:
 Wednesday, March 8, 2017 – Check-in: 2:30 p.m.; Walk: 3:00-4:30 p.m.


Año Nuevo Hike and Elephant Seal Viewing — Come and see the home of Northern Elephant Seal and
 hike along the windswept dunes: Wednesday, March 8, 2017 – Check-in: 1:30 p.m.; Hike and Seal
 Viewing: 2:00-5:00 p.m.


(NOTE: Shuttle bus service is available to Summit attendees staying off-property. To serve as your home away
 from home, our "Summit Lounge" and The Ritz-Carlton Spa will be available to Summit attendees throughout
 the event.)


WINE TASTING NETWORKING RECEPTION FOR EARLY ARRIVALS
Wednesday, March 8, 2017, 5:30–7:30 p.m.


THE SUMMIT PROGRAM OPENS
Thursday, March 9, 2017, at 7:00 a.m. (Registration/Sign-In and Networking Continental Breakfast); Sessions
 begin at 8:00 a.m.; the Thursday program concludes with the Cocktail Reception (serving dinner fare) from
 5:10-7:30 p.m.


THE SUMMIT PROGRAM ADJOURNS
Friday, March 10, 2017 at 11:40 a.m.


Networking Functions: In keeping with the spirit of the Summit and its mission to foster unmatched
 networking and deal-making opportunities for senior-level women in private equity and venture capital, we


The 10th Annual Women's Private Equity Summit



http://www.womensalternativeinvestmentsummit.com/

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/join.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/conference.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/speakers.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/register.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/who.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/sponsors.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/thought.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/venue.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/becomeasponsor.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/testimonials.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/faq.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/news.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/join.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/conference.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/speakers.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/register.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/who.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/sponsors.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/thought.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/venue.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/becomeasponsor.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/testimonials.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/faq.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/news.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/sponsors.php





The Women's Private Equity Summit


http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/agenda.php[12/1/2016 11:46:52 AM]


FOUNDER & PRODUCER


Other Offerings


Awards


Connect With Us



 



 discourage private networking functions during Summit hours (from 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, March 8,
 through 12:00 p.m. on Friday, March 10). If you are interested in hosting a networking event, the Summit offers
 a wealth of sponsorship opportunities, as well as the chance to create a customized sponsorship package. For
 more information, please contact Carolyn O'Donnell at carolyn.odonnell@falkmarquesgroup.com or +1 508-
801-8463


THE HIGHLY INTERACTIVE CONFERENCE FEATURES:


Moderated panel discussions


Topic-focused, small-group roundtable dialogues


Candid, in-depth tracked breakout session conversations


Keynote presentations and keynote interviews followed by discussion


Optional networking activities


Elegant networking functions


Join our mailing list for up-to-date information and visit this site again for continuous updates.


Home   |  About the Conference   |  About Us   |  Contact Us   |  Register


 © Copyright 2016 Falk Marques Group LLC



http://falkmarquesgroup.com/

http://www.womensalternativeinvestmentsummit.com/

http://womenspebriefs.com/

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/pe-trailblazer-awards.php

mailto:carolyn.odonnell@falkmarquesgroup.com

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/join.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/conference.php

http://falkmarquesgroup.com/

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/contact.php

http://womensprivateequitysummit.com/register.php



		womensprivateequitysummit.com

		The Women's Private Equity Summit








SEO Alternative Investments Conference | SEO Alternative Investments


http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/[11/21/2016 2:33:13 PM]


Overview
Agenda
Speaker Bios
Sponsors
Partners
Who Attends
Photos
Registration


SEO Alternative Investments Conference


This must-attend conference features industry-leading speakers, educational panels and robust
 networking opportunities designed to increase access and career development for more than 400
 professionals from backgrounds traditionally underrepresented in alternative investments. It is a key
 part of SEO’s pioneering work to expand diversity in the sector. AICON is a valuable chance to hear the
 insights of prominent leaders from private equity, hedge funds, real estate, venture capital,
 limited partners, fund of funds, emerging managers & recruiting firms.


SEO Eighth Annual Alternative Investments Conference


General Conference
 Thursday, March 16, 2017 from 9am-5pm


 The New York Hilton Midtown, 1335 Avenue of the Americas, NYC


Limited Partner Leadership Breakfast
(INVITATION-ONLY)


 Thursday, March 16, 2017 from 8am-9am
 The New York Hilton Midtown, 1335 Avenue of the Americas, NYC


 


Thank you to the speakers, sponsors and everyone else
 who helped make SEO’s Seventh Annual Alternative


 Investments Conference on March 24, 2016 a success!
 Stay tuned for the 2017 lineup.


HOME FELLOWSHIP CONFERENCE LP COUNCIL APPLY NOW NEWS CONTACT



http://www.seocareer.org/

http://www.seocareer.org/

http://www.seoscholars.org/

http://www.seoscholars.org/

http://www.seo-usa.org/

http://www.seo-usa.org/

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/conference_registration

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/alternative-investments-conference-agenda/

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/speaker-bios

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/alternative-investments-conference-sponsors/

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/conference_partners

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/whoattends

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/alternative-investments-conference-slideshow

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/conference_registration

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/conference_registration

http://www.seo-usa.org/donatenow/

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/01/SEO_stairs_ai.png

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/fellowship/

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/lp-advisory-council/

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/fellowship/apply-now/

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/news

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/contact/





SEO Alternative Investments Conference | SEO Alternative Investments


http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/[11/21/2016 2:33:13 PM]


 2016 Featured Speakers


Russell L. Carson
Co-Founder & General Partner
 Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe
Conference Spotlight Discussion


The Honorable Thomas P. DiNapoli
New York State Comptroller
Presenter, SEO’s Reginald F. Lewis Achievement Award


Eric Doppstadt
 Vice President & Chief Investment Officer
 Ford Foundation
Pre-Conference Reception Speaker


Derek Jones
Private Markets Investment Committee Member, Managing Director
 GCM Grosvenor
LP Leadership Breakfast Speaker


Stefan Kaluzny
Founder & Managing Director
 Sycamore Partners
LP Leadership Breakfast Speaker & SEO’s Reginald F. Lewis Achievement
 Award Recipient


Henry R. Kravis
Co-Chairman & Co-CEO
 Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co.
SEO Board Chairman
Conference Spotlight Discussion


Steve Pagliuca
Managing Director, Bain Capital
 Co-Owner & Managing General Partner, Boston Celtics
Conference Keynote Address


The Honorable Scott M. Stringer
New York City Comptroller
Conference Opening Remarks


Kelly M. Williams
Senior Advisor
 GCM Grosvenor
LP Leadership Breakfast Speaker







SEO Alternative Investments Conference | SEO Alternative Investments


http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/[11/21/2016 2:33:13 PM]


2016 Conference Panelists


Runa Alam
Co-Founding Partner & Chief Executive Officer
 DPI


Jerry Albright
Deputy Chief Investment Officer
 Teacher Retirement System of Texas


Angela Aldrich
 Managing Director
 Blue Ridge Capital


James A. Attwood, Jr.
 Managing Director
 The Carlyle Group


Sylvia P. Bell
Managing Director
 Teacher Retirement System of Texas


Mark S. Black
Founder, CEO & CIO
 Raveneur Investment Group LP


Mark Baumgartner
Chief Investment Officer
 Institute for Advanced Study


Sharmila Chatterjee Kassam
Deputy Chief Investment Officer
 Employees Retirement System of Texas


Troy Dixon
Founder & Chief Investment Officer
 Hollis Park Partners







SEO Alternative Investments Conference | SEO Alternative Investments


http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/[11/21/2016 2:33:13 PM]


Alex Doñé
 Group Head – Private Markets
 New York City Retirement Systems – Office of the Comptroller


Scott Evans
Deputy Comptroller for Asset Management & Chief Investment Officer
 Office of the New York City Comptroller


Jose E. Feliciano
Managing Partner
 Clearlake Capital Group


Todd Figler
Head of Strategy
 Prosiris Capital Management LP


Alcina Goosby
 Special Investment Officer, Private Equity
 New York State Common Retirement Fund


Jeffrey Halis
 Founder & General Partner
 Tyndall Partners


Milwood Hobbs, Jr.
Managing Director
 Oaktree Capital Management


Robert Hutter
Managing Director
 Learn Capital


Natalie Jenkins Sorrell*
 Deputy Chief Investment Officer
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas







SEO Alternative Investments Conference | SEO Alternative Investments


http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/[11/21/2016 2:33:13 PM]


Mark Johnson*
Co-Founder & Managing Partner
 Astra Capital Management


Paul D. Kazilionis
Managing Principal, Founder & Chief Executive Officer
 Westbrook Partners


Edward C. Keith III
Managing Director
 Landmark Partners


Soo Kim
Managing Partner & Chief Investment Officer
 Standard General


Michele Kinner
Partner
 Quilvest Private Equity


Jaya Kirtane Hathway
 Recruiter
 CPI


Johanna L. Klein
Senior Investment Manager
 IFC Asset Management Company


Robb A. LeMasters
 Managing Director
 Blue Harbour Group


Elvin Lopez*
Director, Alternative Investments
 MetLife Investments


Adam Markman
Executive Vice President, CFO & Treasurer
 Equity Commonwealth







SEO Alternative Investments Conference | SEO Alternative Investments


http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/[11/21/2016 2:33:13 PM]


Nadeem Meghji
 Senior Managing Director, Real Estate and Co-Head of US Acquisitions
 Blackstone


Patti Melcher
Managing Partner
 EIV Capital, LLC


Philip Mutooni
Senior Investment Professional, Private Equity
GE Asset Management


Adele C. Oliva
Co-founder & Partner
 1315 Capital, LLC


Dr. Kola Olofinboba
Managing Partner
 Fairview Capital


Christopher Ortega
 Partner
 TPG Capital


Adebola Osakwe
Head of Inclusion & Diversity
 Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co.


Jim Rice
Senior Investment Officer
 Los Angeles County Employees Retirement Association


David S. Richter, CPA
 Public Markets Investment Committee Chair, Head of Research, Managing
 Director
 GCM Grosvenor


Melody Rollins*







SEO Alternative Investments Conference | SEO Alternative Investments


http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/[11/21/2016 2:33:13 PM]


Partner, Head of Client Service & Product Development
 Brightwood Capital Advisors


Juan E. Sabater
Partner
 Valor Equity Partners


Yokasta Segura-Baez
Principal
 Pantheon Ventures (US) LP
Conference Emcee


Robert Sessa
Director of Real Estate
 Employees Retirement System of Texas


Josh Stern
Director, Private Investments
 Robert Wood Johnson Foundation


Stefan Strein
Chief Investment Officer
 Cleveland Clinic


David F. Thomas
Managing Partner
 Court Square Capital Partners


Robert M. Tichio
Partner & Managing Director
 Riverstone Holdings LLC


Leah Trabich
 Partner
 Henkel Search Partners


Reginald D. Tucker
Special Investment Officer







SEO Alternative Investments Conference | SEO Alternative Investments


http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/[11/21/2016 2:33:13 PM]


 New York State Common Retirement Fund


Sophia Tsai
Co-Chief Investment Officer, Hedge Funds
 GE Asset Management


Marc Van Den Berg
Partner
 DBL Partners


Carra L. Wallace
Chief Diversity Officer
 Office of the New York City Comptroller


Ted Wang
Chief Investment Officer
 Puissance Capital Management


Mark Warner
 Senior Managing Director, Natural Resources & Emerging Markets
 Investments
 University of Texas Investment Management Company


Morgan Webber
Partner
 Adams Street Partners


Willie E. Woods
President & Managing Director
 ICV Partners


David Windreich
Head of US & European Investing, Executive Managing Director
 Och-Ziff Capital Management Group, LLC


Joanne Yoo*
Managing Director







SEO Alternative Investments Conference | SEO Alternative Investments


http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/annual-conference/[11/21/2016 2:33:13 PM]


 CBO Investment Management


Caixia Ziegler
Associate Director, Head of Real Estate
 Ford Foundation


* Indicates SEO alumnus/a


HOME | CONTACT | PRIVACY POLICY 
 COPYRIGHT © 2012 SEO 55 EXCHANGE PLACE NEW YORK, NY 10005 (212) 979-2040



http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/contact/

http://www.seoaltinvestments.org/privacy



		seoaltinvestments.org

		SEO Alternative Investments Conference | SEO Alternative Investments








 


 Market Value 


%    of Total 


Fund


Allocation 


Policy


% Difference 


from 


Allocation


 Prior Period Market 


Value 


EQUITY


SYSTEMATIC 71,496,674.42           2.18 64,519,620.90          2.00


REDWOOD- SL 33,381,592.63           1.02 30,584,214.07          0.98


CHANNING  CAPITAL 41,456,961.07           1.26 36,276,898.73          1.11


Total Small Cap 146,335,228.12         4.46 131,380,733.70        4.09


INTECH -                             0.00 6.86                          0.00


T. ROWE PRICE 140,163,919.46         4.27 136,245,682.27        4.12


Total Enhanced equity 140,163,919.46         4.27 136,245,689.13        4.12


NTGI S&P 500 EQUITY INDEX 214,990,829.73         6.55   207,328,694.83        6.29


NTGI RUSSELL 2000 GROWTH INDEX -                             0.00   5,376.30                   0.06


Total Index 214,990,829.73         6.55   207,334,071.13        6.35   


Total Domestic 501,489,977.31         15.28 15.00 0.28 474,960,493.96        14.560  0  
ADELANTE CAPITAL 76,550,874.70           2.33   77,742,524.35          2.46


SECURITY CAPITAL 76,682,226.44           2.34   77,974,760.48          2.45


Total REITS 153,233,101.14         4.67 5.00 -0.33 155,717,284.83        4.92


HEITMAN 85,993,604.67           2.62   85,993,604.67          2.53


INVESCO 69,414,782.68           2.11   69,414,782.68          2.04


INVESCO - SA 51,741,129.93           1.58   51,565,367.70          1.40


Total Real Estate 207,149,517.28         6.31 5.00 1.31 206,973,755.05        5.97


HAMILTON LANE 79,178,905.40           2.41   77,965,170.81          2.27


GROSVENOR GCM - CFIG 86,917,435.44           2.65   86,657,435.39          2.58


FAIRVIEW CAPITAL 5,498,938.68             0.17 5,498,938.68            0.12


Total Private Equity 171,595,279.52         5.23 5.00 0.23 170,121,544.88        4.97  


ACADIAN 100,323,797.14         3.06   102,620,815.00        3.07


BARING 183,306,403.05         5.58   186,767,757.78        5.62


AQR CAPITAL 186,155,704.05         5.67 190,859,459.42        5.71


Total International 469,785,904.24         14.31 15.00 -0.69 480,248,032.20        14.39


WELLINGTON MGMT 80,082,455.03           2.44 78,971,043.75          2.41


NORTHERN TRUST INTL EQ ACWI INDEX 77,496,765.21           2.36 76,657,172.70          2.33


Total Global Equity 157,579,220.24         4.80 5.00 -0.20 155,628,216.45        4.74


ACADIAN 161,552,118.80         4.92 163,539,759.97        5.03


BLACKROCK 162,691,574.90         4.95 165,374,202.89        5.08


Total Low Volatility Global Equity 324,243,693.70         9.87 10.00 -0.13 328,913,962.86        10.11


HARVEST FUND 135,125,650.02         4.12 130,850,155.10        4.12


ATLANTIC TRUST 139,063,586.40         4.24 134,624,075.58        4.23


Total MLP 274,189,236.42         8.36 10.00 -1.64 265,474,230.68        8.35


 TOTAL EQUITY 2,259,265,929.85      68.83 70.00 -1.17 2,238,037,520.91     68.01  
        


FIXED INCOME   


ADVANTUS CAPITAL MGMT 196,406,474.22         5.98 200,418,675.34        6.01


ABERDEEN  ASSET  MGMT 198,824,877.44         6.06 203,655,805.39        6.11


GARCIA HAMILTON 71,156,900.25           2.17 72,459,777.03          2.18


Total Investment Grade 466,388,251.91         14.21 15.00 -0.79 476,534,257.76        14.30


NEUBERGER BERMAN 87,514,930.76           2.67 88,718,016.77          2.67


OAKTREE 210,241,501.84         6.40 211,611,481.84        6.28


BLACKROCK 210,869,974.83         6.42 211,327,690.93        6.30


Total High Yield 508,626,407.43         15.49 15.00 0.49 511,657,189.54        15.25


CASH ACCOUNT 49,241,528.87           1.47 62,347,495.87          2.46


Total Short Term 49,241,528.87           1.47 0.00 1.47 62,347,495.87          2.46


 TOTAL FIXED INCOME 1,024,256,188.21      31.17 30.00 1.17 1,050,538,943.17     31.99  


         
    


TOTAL FUND 3,283,522,118.06$    3,288,576,464.08$   


Market Value YE 2015 3,192,955,073.98$    


Change from YE 2015: 90,567,044.08                   


Change from prior month: (5,054,346.02)                     


ASSET ALLOCATION COMPARISON


November 30, 2016
 


Prior Period % 


of Total Fund


Market Value Variance







 Market Value 


Gross Actual 


Allocation


Target 


Allocation


% Difference 


from 


Allocation


EQUITY


SYSTEMATIC 71,496,674.42           2.18


REDWOOD -SL 33,381,592.63           1.02


CHANNING  CAPITAL 41,456,961.07           1.26


Total Small Cap 146,335,228.12         4.46146,335,228.12         4.46


INTECH -                             0.00


T. ROWE PRICE 140,163,919.46         4.27


Total Enhanced equity 140,163,919.46         4.27140,163,919.46         4.27


NTGI S&P 500 EQUITY INDEX 214,990,829.73         6.55   


NTGI RUSSELL 2000 GROWTH INDEX -                             0.00   


Total Index 214,990,829.73         6.55   -                               


Total Domestic 501,489,977.31         15.28 15.00 0.28-                             


ADELANTE CAPITAL 76,550,874.70           2.33   


SECURITY CAPITAL 76,682,226.44           2.34   


Total REITS 153,233,101.14         4.67 5.00 -0.33-                             


HEITMAN 85,993,604.67           2.62   


INVESCO 69,414,782.68           2.11   


INVESCO - SA 51,741,129.93           1.58   


Total Real Estate 207,149,517.28         6.31 5.00 1.31-                             


HAMILTON LANE 79,178,905.40           2.41   


GROSVENOR GCM - CFIG 86,917,435.44           2.65   


FAIRVIEW CAPITAL 5,498,938.68             0.17


Total Private Equity 171,595,279.52         5.23 5.00 0.23-                              


ACADIAN 100,323,797.14         3.06   


BARING 183,306,403.05         5.58   


AQR CAPITAL 186,155,704.05         5.67


Total International 469,785,904.24         14.31 15.00 -0.69-                             0.00


WELLINGTON MGMT 80,082,455.03           2.44


NORTHERN TRUST INTL EQ ACWI INDEX 77,496,765.21           2.36


Total Global Equity 157,579,220.24         4.80 5.00 -0.20-                             0.00


ACADIAN 161,552,118.80         4.92


BLACKROCK 162,691,574.90         4.95


Total Low Volatility Global Equity 324,243,693.70         9.87 10.00 -0.13-                             


HARVEST FUND 135,125,650.02         4.12


ATLANTIC TRUST 139,063,586.40         4.24


Total MLP 274,189,236.42         8.36 10.00 -1.640 0.00-                             0.00


 TOTAL EQUITY 2,259,265,929.85      68.83 70.00 -1.17
     


FIXED INCOME  


ADVANTUS CAPITAL MGMT 196,406,474.22         5.98


ABERDEEN  ASSET  MGMT 198,824,877.44         6.06


GARCIA HAMILTON 71,156,900.25           2.17


Total Investment Grade 466,388,251.91         14.21 15.00 -0.79-                             


NEUBERGER BERMAN 87,514,930.76           2.67


OAKTREE 210,241,501.84         6.40


BLACKROCK 210,869,974.83         6.42


Total High Yield 508,626,407.43         15.49 15.00 0.49-                             0.00


CASH ACCOUNT 49,241,528.87           1.47


Total Short Term 49,241,528.87           1.47 0.00 1.470.00


 TOTAL FIXED INCOME 1,024,256,188.21      31.17 30.00 1.17
      


   


TOTAL FUND 3,283,522,118.06$    


Asset Allocation:   Actual vs. Target


November 30, 2016
 


15%


5%


6%


5%


14%
5%


10%


8%


14%


15%


1%


Gross Actual Allocation


15%


5%


5%


5%


15%
5%


10%


10%


15%


15%


0%


Target Allocation








Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
Executive Summary of Investment Performance 
November 30, 2016 







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Global Equity Composite


Global Low Volatility Composite


Domestic Equity Composite


International Equity Composite


Global Fixed Income Composite


High Yield Composite


Credit Opportunities Composite


Total Real Estate Composite


Indices


     MSCI ACWI (N)


     Wilshire 5000


     Standard & Poor’s 500


     MSCI ACWI X US IMI Index (N)


     MSCI EAFE Index (N)


     Barclays Aggregate


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs


     Alerian MLP Index


1.25


-1.42


5.59


-2.18


-2.13


-0.48


-1.35


-0.64


0.76


4.56


3.70


-2.40


-1.99


-2.37


-0.28


-1.38


2.30


0.03


-4.26


3.16


-0.77


-2.79


0.33


-1.48


-3.72


-0.34


2.53


1.83


-2.62


-2.82


-3.17


0.61


-8.75


-0.44


3.77


5.97


11.17


2.16


3.60


12.11


3.01


5.58


11.08


9.79


1.86


-2.34


2.50


15.39


2.62


13.33


1.76


5.86


8.35


1.12


3.20


9.33


5.43


3.68


8.89


8.06


0.22


-3.65


2.17


12.21


4.60


9.28


2.07


8.38


-0.97


3.38


3.76


11.19


2.98


8.94


9.07


-1.93


-2.22


2.79


3.76


12.48


-6.64


14.03


6.48


3.28


6.76


11.23


8.85


14.45


14.44


4.58


5.62


2.43


7.07


12.21


2.51


 8/31/12


 6/30/15


12/31/89


12/31/89


 9/30/95


12/31/96


 1/31/16


12/31/89


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


7.49


4.30


9.87


5.08


5.19


6.62


9.44


6.59


10.90


11.00


8.37


7.08


9.15


157,579


324,244


501,490


469,786


466,388


421,111


87,515


360,777


4.80


9.87


15.27


14.31


14.20


12.82


2.66


10.99


Manager returns are net of fees.
1







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Public Real Assets Composite


Private Equity Composite


Managed Short Term Composite


Dallas Total Fund


     Policy Index                    


Indices


     MSCI ACWI (N)


     Wilshire 5000


     Standard & Poor’s 500


     MSCI ACWI X US IMI Index (N)


     MSCI EAFE Index (N)


     Barclays Aggregate


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs


     Alerian MLP Index


3.28


0.87


0.02


0.29


-0.28


0.76


4.56


3.70


-2.40


-1.99


-2.37


-0.28


-1.38


2.30


0.26


1.23


0.09


-0.74


-0.99


-0.34


2.53


1.83


-2.62


-2.82


-3.17


0.61


-8.75


-0.44


17.89


3.69


0.26


7.04


8.33


5.58


11.08


9.79


1.86


-2.34


2.50


15.39


2.62


13.33


11.94


5.08


0.29


5.92


6.89


3.68


8.89


8.06


0.22


-3.65


2.17


12.21


4.60


9.28


-0.79


10.21


0.12


4.33


4.24


2.98


8.94


9.07


-1.93


-2.22


2.79


3.76


12.48


-6.64


9.25


0.11


8.65


8.29


8.85


14.45


14.44


4.58


5.62


2.43


7.07


12.21


2.51


12/31/11


 5/31/09


12/31/89


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


8.20


13.09


2.52


9.12


9.79


10.90


11.00


8.37


7.08


9.15


274,195


171,595


49,242


3,283,922


8.35


5.23


1.50


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
2







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Northern Trust Global Equity


     MSCI AC World IMI Index (N)     


Wellington


     MSCI ACWI (N)                   


     MSCI ACWI (N) + 2%              


Global Equity Composite


     MSCI ACWI (N)                   


Indices


     MSCI AC World IMI Index (N)


     MSCI ACWI (N)


1.10


1.09


1.41


0.76


0.92


1.25


0.76


1.09


0.76


-0.08


-0.15


0.13


-0.34


0.15


0.03


-0.34


-0.15


-0.34


6.49


6.07


1.26


5.58


7.41


3.77


5.58


6.07


5.58


4.52


4.09


-0.80


3.68


5.68


1.76


3.68


4.09


3.68


4.48


2.98


4.98


2.07


2.98


3.12


2.98


9.08


8.85


 9/30/15


 9/30/15


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


10.07


9.59


11.88


8.22


10.22


7.49


8.22


8.51


8.22


77,497


80,082


157,579


49.18


50.82


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
3







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Acadian Global Low Vol.


     MSCI ACWI (N)                   


     MSCI ACWI (N) + 2%              


     MSCI ACWI Min Vol (N)           


BlackRock Global Low Vol.


     MSCI ACWI Min Vol (N)           


Global Low Volatility Composite


     MSCI ACWI Min Vol (N)           


Indices


     MSCI ACWI Min Vol (N)


     MSCI ACWI (N)


-1.21


0.76


0.92


-1.67


-1.62


-1.67


-1.42


-1.67


-1.67


0.76


-4.22


-0.34


0.15


-4.40


-4.30


-4.40


-4.26


-4.40


-4.40


-0.34


5.90


5.58


7.41


5.53


6.03


5.53


5.97


5.53


5.53


5.58


4.90


3.68


5.68


6.26


6.81


6.26


5.86


6.26


6.26


3.68


6.45


2.98


9.67


8.85


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


3.79


0.29


2.29


4.26


4.79


4.26


4.30


4.26


4.26


0.29


161,552


162,692


324,244


49.82


50.18


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
4







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Northern Trust S&P 500 (Lending)


     Standard & Poor’s 500           


T. Rowe Price


     Standard & Poor’s 500           


     Standard & Poor’s 500 + 1%      


Domestic Equity Enhanced Index Comp


Indices


     Wilshire 5000


     Standard & Poor’s 500


     Russell 2000


     Russell 1000 Value


3.70


3.70


2.88


3.70


3.79


2.88


4.56


3.70


11.15


5.71


1.80


1.83


1.79


1.83


2.08


0.74


2.53


1.83


7.05


3.86


9.81


9.79


8.71


9.79


10.71


7.23


11.08


9.79


18.00


14.48


8.08


8.06


7.48


8.06


9.06


6.04


8.89


8.06


12.08


12.02


9.13


9.07


8.97


9.07


10.07


8.04


8.94


9.07


6.46


8.60


14.49


14.44


14.60


14.44


15.44


13.74


14.45


14.44


13.98


14.69


12/31/94


12/31/94


 3/31/06


 3/31/06


 3/31/06


 2/28/06


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


9.53


9.48


7.80


7.36


8.36


7.19


9.44


9.34


9.52


9.76


214,991


140,164


140,164


42.87


27.95


27.95


 Manager returns are net of fees.
5







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Systematic Financial


     Russell 2000                    


     Russell 2000 + 1.25%            


Channing Capital *


     Russell 2000 Value              


     Russell 2000 Value + 1.25%      


Redwood Investments


     Russell 2000 Growth             


     Russell 2000 Growth +1.25%      


Domestic Equity Small Cap Composite


Domestic Equity Composite


     Custom Benchmark                


Indices


     Wilshire 5000


     Standard & Poor’s 500


     Russell 2000


     Russell 1000 Value


10.81


11.15


11.25


14.28


13.27


13.38


9.15


8.95


9.05


11.38


5.59


4.56


4.56


3.70


11.15


5.71


6.43


7.05


7.36


11.32


10.41


10.72


7.62


3.16


2.53


2.53


1.83


7.05


3.86


19.24


18.00


19.15


24.31


26.52


27.66


18.00


11.17


11.08


11.08


9.79


18.00


14.48


14.69


12.08


13.33


15.16


19.85


21.10


12.25


8.35


8.89


8.89


8.06


12.08


12.02


9.02


6.46


7.71


7.95


7.52


8.77


7.90


8.38


8.94


8.94


9.07


6.46


8.60


16.11


13.98


15.23


14.28


14.03


14.45


14.45


14.44


13.98


14.69


 7/31/03


 7/31/03


 7/31/03


11/30/13


11/30/13


11/30/13


 9/30/16


 9/30/16


 9/30/16


 5/31/03


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


11.06


9.40


10.65


7.95


7.52


8.77


1.50


2.18


2.38


9.82


9.87


9.76


9.44


9.34


9.52


9.76


71,497


41,457


33,382


146,335


501,490


14.26


8.27


6.66


29.18


100.00


* Next Generation Manager. Manager returns are net of fees.
6







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Acadian International


     Custom Benchmark                


     Custom Benchmark + 2%           


Baring International


     MSCI ACWI X US (N)              


     MSCI ACWI X US (N) + 1.25%      


AQR Capital Management


     Custom Benchmark                


     Custom Benchmark + 1.5%         


International Equity Composite


     Custom Benchmark                


Indices


     MSCI ACWI X US IMI Index (N)


     MSCI ACWI X US (N)


     MSCI ACWI X US Small Cap (N)


     MSCI EAFE Index (N)


     MSCI Emerging Mkts (N)


-2.24


-2.97


-2.80


-1.85


-2.31


-2.21


-2.46


-2.31


-2.19


-2.18


-2.40


-2.40


-2.31


-2.97


-1.99


-4.60


0.74


-3.19


-2.69


-1.75


-2.53


-2.22


-0.60


-2.53


-2.16


-0.77


-2.62


-2.62


-2.53


-3.19


-2.82


-3.15


6.25


1.75


3.58


0.14


1.89


3.04


2.13


1.89


3.26


2.16


1.86


1.86


1.89


1.75


-2.34


10.94


6.21


1.85


3.85


-1.79


-0.03


1.22


1.52


-0.03


1.47


1.12


0.22


0.22


-0.03


1.85


-3.65


8.47


1.39


0.64


2.64


-2.27


-2.31


-1.06


-0.99


-2.31


-0.81


-0.97


-1.93


-1.93


-2.31


0.64


-2.22


-3.10


9.74


6.90


8.90


4.22


4.24


5.49


6.78


4.24


5.74


6.48


4.58


4.58


4.24


6.90


5.62


0.99


 3/31/89


 3/31/89


 3/31/89


 3/31/88


 3/31/88


 3/31/88


 3/31/06


 3/31/06


 3/31/06


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


8.11


5.55


7.55


6.27


4.71


5.96


1.98


1.20


2.70


5.08


4.08


3.87


100,324


183,306


186,156


469,786


21.36


39.02


39.63


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
7







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Advantus Capital Management


     Barclays Aggregate              


     Barclays Aggregate + 0.5%       


Aberdeen Global Fixed Income


     Barclays Aggregate              


     Barclays Aggregate + 0.5%       


Garcia Hamilton *


     Barclays Aggregate              


     Barclays Aggregate + 0.5%       


Global Fixed Income Composite


     Barclays Aggregate              


Indices


     10 yr Treasury Bellwethers Index


     Barclays Aggregate


-2.00


-2.37


-2.32


-2.37


-2.37


-2.32


-1.80


-2.37


-2.32


-2.13


-2.37


-4.65


-2.37


-2.52


-3.17


-3.04


-2.99


-3.17


-3.04


-2.95


-3.17


-3.04


-2.79


-3.17


-6.66


-3.17


4.23


2.50


2.96


3.24


2.50


2.96


2.87


2.50


2.96


3.60


2.50


0.23


2.50


3.84


2.17


2.67


2.66


2.17


2.67


2.93


2.17


2.67


3.20


2.17


-0.08


2.17


3.79


2.79


3.29


2.86


2.79


3.29


3.62


2.79


3.29


3.38


2.79


3.15


2.79


3.69


2.43


2.93


2.79


2.43


2.93


3.28


2.43


1.86


2.43


 6/30/07


 6/30/07


 6/30/07


 4/30/07


 4/30/07


 4/30/07


10/31/13


10/31/13


10/31/13


 9/30/95


 9/30/95


 9/30/95


 9/30/95


4.83


4.50


5.00


4.99


4.30


4.80


3.50


2.59


3.09


5.19


5.37


5.23


5.37


196,406


198,825


71,157


466,388


42.11


42.63


15.26


100.00


* Next Generation Manager. Manager returns are net of fees.
8







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Oaktree Capital Management


     Citigroup HY Cash Pay Capped    


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay   


     Citigroup HY Cash Pay + 1%      


BlackRock


     Citigroup HY Cash Pay Capped    


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay   


     Citigroup HY Cash Pay + 1%      


High Yield Composite


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay   


Indices


     10 yr Treasury Bellwethers Index


     91-Day Treasury Bill


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay


-0.65


-0.31


-0.28


-0.20


-0.30


-0.31


-0.28


-0.20


-0.48


-0.28


-4.65


0.02


-0.28


0.20


0.60


0.61


0.85


0.45


0.60


0.61


0.85


0.33


0.61


-6.66


0.09


0.61


13.45


15.13


15.39


16.31


10.78


15.13


15.39


16.31


12.11


15.39


0.23


0.28


15.39


10.48


11.92


12.21


13.21


8.19


11.92


12.21


13.21


9.33


12.21


-0.08


0.32


12.21


3.11


3.72


3.76


4.76


3.61


3.72


3.76


4.76


3.76


3.76


3.15


0.13


3.76


6.34


6.96


7.07


8.07


6.69


6.96


7.07


8.07


6.76


7.07


1.86


0.11


7.07


 1/31/97


 1/31/97


 1/31/97


 1/31/97


 9/30/06


 9/30/06


 9/30/06


 9/30/06


12/31/96


12/31/96


12/31/96


12/31/96


12/31/96


6.92


7.00


8.00


6.51


7.08


7.18


8.18


6.62


7.00


5.27


2.31


6.97


210,242


210,870


421,111


49.93


50.07


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
9







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Neuberger Berman


     Custom Benchmark                


     Custom Benchmark + 1%           


Credit Opportunities Composite


     Custom Benchmark                


Indices


     ML High Yield Master II Constrained


     S&P LSTA Leverage Loan Index


     JPM EMBI Global Diversified


-1.35


-1.49


-1.40


-1.35


-1.49


-0.39


0.26


-4.09


-1.48


-0.89


-0.64


-1.48


-0.89


0.56


1.97


-4.90


15.22


8.90


8.71


12.25


7.75


7.20


4.25


3.35


5.90


7.46


4.98


5.87


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


9.44


11.78


12.61


9.44


11.78


17.07


9.61


8.91


87,515


87,515


100.00


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
10







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Adelante Capital Management *


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs         


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs +1%     


Security Capital


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs         


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs +1%     


REIT Composite


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs         


Heitman America Real Estate Trust, LP 
     NCREIF ODCE NOF                      


Invesco Core Real Estate USA, LLC 
     NCREIF ODCE NOF                      


Invesco II


     Invesco II Custom Benchmark     


Indices


     Wilshire REIT Index


     NCREIF ODCE GOF


-1.53


-1.38


-1.30


-1.66


-1.38


-1.30


-1.60


-1.38


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.34


0.34


-1.28


0.00


-9.22


-8.75


-8.51


-8.44


-8.75


-8.51


-8.83


-8.75


1.26


1.83


1.68


1.83


-2.16


-2.16


-8.82


2.07


-1.27


2.62


3.54


1.23


2.62


3.54


-0.02


2.62


6.53


5.80


6.90


5.80


-2.44


-2.44


2.27


6.52


-0.02


4.60


5.60


3.78


4.60


5.60


1.88


4.60


10.40


9.09


9.57


9.09


-2.43


-2.43


4.26


10.07


11.36


12.48


13.48


11.90


12.48


13.48


11.64


12.48


11.67


11.42


12.22


11.42


-0.90


-0.90


12.22


12.45


11.48


12.21


13.21


11.16


12.21


13.21


11.33


12.21


11.90


11.34


11.43


11.34


12.00


12.40


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


11/30/10


11/30/10


11/30/10


11/30/10


 9/30/13


 9/30/13


12/31/89


12/31/89


10.14


10.76


11.76


10.49


10.76


11.76


10.40


10.76


12.96


12.29


12.30


12.29


-0.85


-0.85


9.84


7.30


76,551


76,682


153,233


86,814


68,988


51,741


21.22


21.25


42.47


24.06


19.12


14.34


* Next Generation Manager. Manager returns are net of fees.
   Private Core Real Estate manager information is preliminary as market values are not yet finalized by the manager. 11







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Private Core Real Estate Composite


     Custom Benchmark                


Total Real Estate Composite


     Custom Benchmark                


Indices


     Wilshire REIT Index


     NCREIF ODCE GOF


0.08


0.07


-0.64


-0.65


-1.28


0.00


0.58


0.95


-3.72


-3.98


-8.82


2.07


4.67


3.94


3.01


3.53


2.27


6.52


7.44


6.47


5.43


5.78


4.26


10.07


10.64


8.72


11.19


10.88


12.22


12.45


10.95


9.71


11.23


11.23


12.00


12.40


 9/30/10


 9/30/10


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


11.58


10.61


6.59


8.80


9.84


7.30


207,543


360,777


57.53


100.00


 Manager returns are net of fees.
12







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Harvest Fund Advisors MLP


     Alerian MLP Index               


     Alerian MLP Index + 1.5%        


Atlantic Trust CIBC


     Alerian MLP Index               


     Alerian MLP Index + 1.5%        


Public Real Assets Composite


     Alerian MLP Index               


Indices


     Alerian MLP Index


     Standard & Poor’s 500


3.27


2.30


2.42


3.30


2.30


2.42


3.28


2.30


2.30


3.70


-0.16


-0.44


-0.07


0.66


-0.44


-0.07


0.26


-0.44


-0.44


1.83


13.77


13.33


14.70


22.18


13.33


14.70


17.89


13.33


13.33


9.79


8.44


9.28


10.78


15.55


9.28


10.78


11.94


9.28


9.28


8.06


-1.70


-6.64


-5.14


-0.99


-6.64


-5.14


-0.79


-6.64


-6.64


9.07


2.51


14.44


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


7.01


1.39


2.89


8.83


1.39


2.89


8.20


1.39


1.39


14.47


135,126


139,069


274,195


49.28


50.72


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
13







Month-End Market 
Value


Commitment Value Drawn Down Capital Cash Distributions Inception Date IRR Since Inception Multiple 3


GCM-CFIG 86,917,435                   135,000,000                 66,695,314                   1,016,325                     Jun-11 10.1% 1.3


Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund II 3,614,333                     25,000,000                   22,783,343                   25,203,014                   Jul-09 9.9% 1.3


Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund III 16,013,592                   30,000,000                   17,732,318                   12,150,873                   Nov-12 32.0% 1.6


Hamilton Lane Fund VII Composite 40,128,218                   50,000,000                   42,992,714                   14,348,145                   Jan-10 8.0% 1.3


Hamilton Lane Fund VIII (Global) 16,522,353                   30,000,000                   15,168,925                   1,341,060                     Nov-12 9.8% 1.2


Fairview Capital III * 5,498,939                     40,000,000                   6,184,550                     -                                     Aug-15 -20.9% 0.9


Hamilton Lane STIF 1 2,900,411                     -                                     -                                     -                                     Aug-09 -.- -.-


Total Private Equity Composite 171,595,281                310,000,000                171,557,164                54,059,417                  Jul-09 11.6% 1.5


Public Market Equivalent (PME) 2 199,631,765                16.1%


* Next Generation Manager
1 Total Value to Paid-in Capital ("TVPI") multiple calculation = (market value + distributions) / capital called


3 Private Equity cash account


Employees' Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas
Monthly Performance and Market Value Summary


Periods Ended 11/30/16


2 The Public Market Equivalent (PME) approach creates a hypothetical investment vehicle that mimics the private equity composite cash flows. The performance difference between the PME vehicle and the private equity portfolio is determined by their net asset value (NAV) at 
the end of the benchmarking period. The performance of the "public market" is simulated using the monthly S&P 500 index returns, plus a 300 BPs annual hurdle rate.


14







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending November 30, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Cash Account


Managed Short Term Composite


Indices


     91-Day Treasury Bill


0.02


0.02


0.02


0.09


0.09


0.09


0.26


0.26


0.28


0.29


0.29


0.32


0.12


0.12


0.13


0.11


0.11


0.11


12/31/87


12/31/89


12/31/89


2.94


2.52


3.09


49,242


49,242


100.00


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
15





		1611TEST6

		1611TEST5










For period ending November 30,  2016
.


 


Retirements This Month YTD This Month YTD
Retirees & 


beneficiaries Disabilities Actives


   Age 9 150 8 184 Jan 6,751 192 7,412


   Service 0 30 4 47 Feb 6,774 193 7,411


   Rule of 78 8 70 3 65 Mar 6,784 192 7,458


   QDRO 1 10 1 9 April 6,795 189 7,491


       Total 18 260 16 305 May 6,810 188 7,543


June 6,836 188 7,534


Disability Retirements July 6,838 187 7,551


   Service 0 0 0 0 Aug 6,854 187 7,565


   Non-service 2 8 4 7 Sep 6,861 188 7,543


       Total 2 8 4 7 Oct 6,872 187 7,559


Nov 6,875 184 7,555


Benefits Paid 19,641,473.62$  215,210,874.91$  20,447,857.61$      222,971,878.15$     


  


Refunds 715,946.20$       4,322,616.71$      543,917.04$           5,458,310.70$         


Number of refunds 28 343 41 448


Contributions 11,523,833.88$  91,490,878.23$     8,553,726.67$        99,727,686.08$       


 


2015 2016 Members on record at month end








CONSUMER   PRICE   INDEX  -  CPI - W 


U.    S.     CITY   AVERAGE


2016


PERCENTAGE OF


MONTH AND YEAR  ANNUAL MONTHLY INCREASE


NOVEMBER         2015 0.100%


DECEMBER         2015 0.400%


JANUARY             2016 1.200%


FEBRUARY          2016 0.700%


MARCH                2016 0.500%


APRIL                   2016 0.800%


MAY                     2016 0.700%


JUNE                   2016 0.600%


JULY                    2016 0.400%


AUGUST              2016 0.700%


SEPTEMBER       2016 1.200%


OCTOBER           2016 1.400%


TOTAL 8.700%


PERCENTAGE OF  ANNUAL AVERAGE CHANGE IN THE PRICE INDEX  FOR LAST 12 MONTHS


8.70% / 12 = 0.725%


mos.


PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN THE PRICE INDEX FROM OCTOBER 2015 TO OCTOBER 2016


235.73 - 232.37 / 232.37 = 1.446%


10/16 Index 10/15 Index 10/15 Index


COLA REQUIREMENT


COLA increase is required by statute, Chapter 40a; Section 28


The maximum COLA is: 5% Tier A 


3% Tier B (members hired after Decemeber 31, 2016)


CALCULATION


The ERF COLA is an automatic adjustment to benefit payments that occurs annually. The purpose of the COLA 


is to ensure that the purchasing power of income received from pension benefits is not eroded by inflation.  


It is based on the higher of:


     (1) the annual average change of the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers 


          (CPI-W)  for the 12 month period from November through October; or   


    (2) the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers 


        (CPI-W)  from October of one year to October of the next year.


If there is no increase, there is no COLA.


The retiree COLA is not compounded, and the COLA percentage is applied to the initial base pension.


ERF uses the CPI-W data for the Southwest Region.


Social Security COLA for January 1, 2017 will be 0.3%.


Their increase is based on the increase in the CPI-W from the 3rd quarter of one year to the 3rd quarter of the next year.


SSA uses the National CPI-W, and ERF uses the Southwest Region.


Effective January 1, 2017


ERF 2016 COLA effective for January 1, 2017 is  1.446%





























































































































1 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


CITY OF DALLAS 
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 


RULES OF PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE 
REGARDING DISABILITY RETIREMENT 


 
 
The following rules are adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Employees' Retirement Fund (the 
“Fund”) of the City of Dallas, on this 13th day of December 2016. 
 
SCOPE OF RULES 
 
These rules govern the procedure for the institution, conduct, and determination of all disability 
claims arising under Chapter 40A of the Dallas City Code. They shall not be construed so as to 
enlarge, diminish, modify, or alter the jurisdiction, powers or authority of Chapter 40A or the 
substantive rights of any person. 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
“Active Member” means an employee who is currently contributing to the Fund. 
 
“Applicant” means a member or inactive member who has applied for disability retirement under 
Section 40A-17 of the Dallas City Code or a child who seeks to be eligible for certain death 
benefits under Section 40A-22 or 23 by reason of being a qualified recipient under Section 40A 
- 1(38) (D). 
 
“Earned pension” means that amount received, or that could be received, based on actual pay and 
contributing years of service. 
 
“Inactive Member” means a former employee who has not retired or received a refund of his or 
her contributions to the Fund. 
 
“Medical Committee” or "Committee" means a group comprised of members of the Board of 
Trustees (the “Board”) (but less than a quorum of Board members) and officers of the Fund 
including the Executive Director's designee, whose responsibility is to review applications for 
disability and make recommendations to the Board. 
 
“Non-service disability retirement” means a total and permanent injury or illness that did not 
occur due to the performance of official city duties and that prevents the person from getting and 
holding a job. 
 
“Permanently Disabled Child” means an applicant who is a child of a deceased member, inactive 
member, or retiree and which child is medically determined to be totally and permanently 
disabled before the age of 18, by the Fund's medical examiner. 
 
“Service disability retirement”' means retirement due to total and permanent injury or illness 







2 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


suffered while performing official city duties. The disability must be such as to prevent the 
member from getting and holding a job. 
 
In general, the term “Total and permanent disability” means the continuing inability of a person 
to obtain and retain any type of employment for compensation as a result of a mental or physical 
impairment caused by an injury or illness.  Chapter 40A, however, contains additional rules and 
provisions that must be considered.  For example, if the impairment can be reasonably and safely 
diminished to the extent that the person will not be prevented by the impairment from obtaining 
and retaining any type of employment for compensation, they will not be considered totally and 
permanently disabled. 
 
ELIGIBILITY 
 
Active or Inactive Members may apply for disability retirement benefits if they have a sickness or 
injury that prevents them from getting and holding a job: 
 
Active Members: 
 
1. Service-connected disability - There are no minimum pension service requirements. 
 
2. Non-service connected disability – Only if the disability occurs after five (5) years of 


pension service. 
 
Inactive Members: 
 
1. With 10 years of pension service or 
 
2. With less than 10 years of pension service, but more than five (5) years of pension service; 


however, such an Inactive Member must apply within 60 days from the date the member’s 
department signs the P-2C form of termination. An application for disability retirement 
may be filed before terminating employment. 


 
Disability Retirement Pension: 


 
1. The minimum disability retirement pension payable for a non-service disability is equal 


to 10 times the percentage multiplier used in computing benefits of the Active Member 
or Inactive Member on the date of retirement multiplied by the Active Member or Inactive 
Member’s average monthly earnings. 


 
2. Effective on and after January 1, 2017, the minimum disability retirement pension payable 


for a service disability is equal to the greater of: 
 


A. $1,000 a month, regardless of the date of retirement; or 
B.  10 times the percentage multiplier used in computing benefits of the Active 


Member or Inactive Member on the date of retirement multiplied by the Active 
Member or Inactive Member’s average monthly earnings. 







3 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


 
Disability Benefits for Qualified Recipients: 
 
1. A qualified recipient who is a permanently disabled child may be entitled to receive full, 


lifetime death benefits in accordance with Section 40A-22 or 23. 
 
2. Prior to retirement, Active Member or Inactive Members seeking to qualify their 


permanently disabled child as a qualified recipient under Section 40A-1(38) (D) must 
submit completed Attending Physician’s statements from all treating physicians.  Each 
physician must be a licensed M.D. or D.O. 


 
FILING OF DOCUMENTS 
 
All applications and supporting documents shall be filed with the Executive Director of the Fund, 
and shall be considered filed when actually received.  All documents filed with the Executive 
Director shall be held in the strictest confidence permitted under the law. 
 
APPLICANT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FILING THE APPLICATION 
 
1. To initiate the disability retirement process, the Applicant (or a person acting on the 


Applicant’s behalf) must complete and submit an Application for Disability Retirement. 
 
2. Applicant must receive mandatory counseling from the Fund staff unless such counseling 


is waived in writing by the Executive Director. 
 
3. All forms will be available at the Fund's office, and must be legibly completed and 


returned to the Fund’s office. 
 
4. The Applicant must sign an Information Release form. This release will permit the Fund 


to obtain medical records and any other relevant information from Applicant's health care 
providers and any other parties that may have information pertaining to Applicant's 
disability claim. 


 
5. The Applicant must complete the Employee's Statement of Disability. In this statement, 


the Applicant will describe the disability in detail and explain how it prevents him/her 
from performing any type of work. 


 
6. The Applicant must provide to the Fund a completed Attending Physician’s Statement 


from all treating physicians.   The physician must be a licensed M.D. or D.O. 
 


7. In addition to completing the forms outlined above, the Applicant must provide the Fund 
with the originals or certified copies of the following: 
 
A. Birth certificate 
B. Marriage license, or declaration of common law marriage, if married 
C. Spouse’s birth certificate, if married  







4 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


D. Social Security number 
E. Spouse’s Social Security number, if married 
F. Divorce decree, if applicable 
G. QDRO, if applicable. 


 
Members are required to obtain the physician’s statement to prove “total and 
permanent disability.”  
 
Failure to provide the Fund with the requested documentation within ninety (90) days 
after first filing the application for disability benefits shall cause the application to be 
deemed withdrawn.  If the Applicant then wishes to continue to pursue a claim, the 
Applicant must file a new application. 


 
ACTIONS BY THE FUND - PROCESSING THE APPLICATION 
 
The Fund will process completed applications as quickly as administratively feasible. 
 
If the Applicant is filing for a service connected disability retirement, the Fund will request a 
copy of the Applicant's Workers' Compensation medical file from the City’s Risk Management 
office. 
 
THE MEDICAL COMMITTEE 
 
After the Fund receives all required documentation, the Fund will forward the Applicant’s 
medical documents to the Fund’s designated Medical Officer for review.  Additionally, the Fund 
will notify the Applicant by letter to contact the Fund’s designated Medical Officer for an 
appointment for an examination and review. The Applicant has 10 business days to schedule an 
appointment; otherwise it may cause a delay with the Medical Committee review and 
recommendation to the Board.  The Fund’s designated Medical Officer must examine the 
Applicant unless the Executive Director specifically waives this provision. 
 
The Applicant authorizes the Fund’s designated Medical Officer to contact the Applicant’s 
treating physicians or health care providers, and the Fund’s designated Medical Officer may 
recommend a new examination of the Applicant before rendering an opinion as to the extent and 
cause of any disability. 
 
The Fund’s designated Medical Officer will complete the Evaluation form and forward it to the 
Fund Office. 
 
If the Fund’s designated Medical Officer disagree with the treating physicians’ prognosis, or 
otherwise recommends an Independent Medical Evaluation (“IME”) by an appropriate third 
physician (“Medical Consultant”'), the Executive Director will authorize staff to make an 
appointment for the Applicant with the Medical Consultant and will send all available medical 
documentation and forms to be completed by the Medical Consultant. An Applicant must always 
submit to an IME for those disability applications related to psychiatric, back-related, or carpal 
tunnel syndrome. 







5 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


 
The Executive Director shall schedule, usually on a monthly basis, a meeting of the Committee. 
 
The completed application will be submitted to the Committee for their review and 
recommendation.  The Applicant will be notified in writing of the time and place of the 
Committee meeting and advised of the right to be present. Applicant may bring representation, 
legal or otherwise, and be heard. If an Applicant requires a bilingual representative at the 
Committee meeting, it is the responsibility of the Applicant to have such a representative present.  
Applicant will be furnished copies of all documents and may submit any additional evidence at 
the Committee meeting. After the Committee meeting, the Applicant will be advised of the 
recommendation that the Committee will provide to the Board, the time and place where the 
Board will consider the application, and the Applicant's right to be present. 
 
Discussion of disability retirement applications by the Committee is closed to the public pursuant 
to Section 551.078 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
ACTION BY THE BOARD 
 
The disability hearing by the Board is closed to the public. The Applicant shall be notified of the 
time and place of the hearing by the Board. 
 
At the Board’s disability hearing, the Applicant shall have the same right to bring representation 
and be heard as at the Committee meeting. The Board shall review the application for disability 
pension and the recommendation of the Committee.  The Board may (1) approve the application 
for a disability pension, (2) defer the application, or (3) deny the application. The decision of the 
Board is final. The applicant will be notified in writing of the Board’s decision. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF DISABILITY BENEFIT 
 
The disability benefit may not be effective prior to the later of the ninetieth (90th) day after the 
last working day of the Active or Inactive Member or the date the application is made to the Fund.   
 
REVIEW PROCESS FOR DISABILITY CONTINUATION 
 
1. The Board may direct that any disability retiree be re-examined at any time.  Further recall 


may be necessary if the disability retirement benefit was calculated under the 10-year 
minimum service rule and the benefit amount is greater than the disability retiree’s earned 
pension amount at the time of the re-examination process.  The standard recall is two 
years.  Should circumstances warrant a shorter or longer period, this is permissible, but 
recalls may not be less frequent than every three years.   
 


2. No medical re-examination will be required of disability retirees over sixty (60) years of 
age if; 


 
A. they are receiving no more than their earned pension; or 
B. the pension was computed under the ten (10) year minimum service rule and the 







6 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


disability retiree has been receiving disability retirement benefits for at least five 
(5) years. 


 
3. The Disability Retiree must complete the entire medical review process which consists 


of: 
  
A. Providing an Attending Physician’s Statement completed by a M.D. or D.O. and 


supporting documentation and/or medical records from the last review date until 
current period; 


B. Providing the Fund a Request for Transcript of Tax Return (IRS Form 4506T); 
C. Providing Information Release form; and 
D. Scheduling and attending a medical examination by the Fund’s Medical Officer 


and/or occupational specialist.  The appointment must be scheduled within 10 
business days after notification and, without action, may result in suspension or 
termination of benefits approved by the Board. 


 
4. Any Disability Retiree subject to review shall again be required to provide the Fund a 


Request for Transcript of Tax Return (IRS Form 4506T) and an Attending Physician’s 
Statement along with medical records evidencing status of disability. This documentation 
may be required up to the normal retirement age or as deemed by the Board.  


 
5. If the Disability Retiree fails to complete the entire medical review process, the disability 


benefits may be suspended until such time as the Disability Retiree files the appropriate 
documentation and completes the review process.  The Executive Director has the right 
to waive such suspension in writing.  


 
6. Disability Retirees will be reimbursed for up to a maximum of $100 (previous rate $35) 


to defray the cost of completion of the Fund's medical forms by their physician.  This 
amount may be paid only once per continuation review. 


 
7. Disability recalls are reviewed by the Committee in the same manner as initial 


applications for disability pensions. The rights of the Disability Retiree to attend the 
Committee meeting and Board meeting that will consider their recall and to representation 
are the same as for applicants who are making an initial application for a disability 
pension. 


 
PROCEEDINGS FOR REVOCATION OR SUSPENSION OF BENEFITS 
 
1. The Board may require any person receiving a disability benefit to appear before a Board 


Hearing during a regular Medical Committee meeting and show cause why such benefit 
should not be discontinued, suspended, or revoked: (a) for failure to comply with any 
directive to submit to a medical examination by a doctor approved by the Board, when 
requested, (b) because the Disability Retiree is allegedly no longer totally and 
permanently disabled, or (c) because the Disability Retiree will not submit a sworn 
affidavit stating his earnings from any gainful activity and IRS Form 4506T when 
requested by the Executive Director, (d) is found to be earning or be capable of earning 







7 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


compensation in an amount greater than $250 per month, whether or not such position is 
available, or (e) is found to be involved in any gainful activity not commensurate with 
health limits imposed by the attending physician. 


 
2. No revocation, suspension, or discontinuance of any benefit for any reason shall be taken 


by the Board unless, prior to institution of proceedings, the Fund shall first give notice by 
personal service or by registered or certified mail to the Disability Retiree of the facts or 
conduct alleged to warrant the intended action, and the Disability Retiree is given a 
reasonable opportunity to show compliance with all requirements of the ordinance for 
retention of the benefits.  If delivery attempts are unsuccessful, the Board will ordinarily 
rule on the benefit at the next available Board meeting. 


 
3. The Board delegates to the Executive Director the ability to suspend disability payments 


for:  (a) for failure to comply with any directive to submit to a medical examination by a 
doctor approved by the Board, when requested, (b) because the disability retiree is 
allegedly no longer totally and permanently disabled or, (c) because the Disability Retiree 
will not submit a sworn affidavit stating his earnings from any gainful activity and IRS 
Form 4506T when requested by the Executive Director. 


 
4. A Disability Retiree, whose benefit has been terminated, may apply for a refund of any 


unused contributions to the Fund or an age retirement pension, if and when eligible. 
 
                         
 
_________________________________ ____________________________ 
John D. Jenkins, Chair Date 
Board of Trustees 
Employees’ Retirement Fund 





		CITY OF DALLAS

		EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND






1 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


CITY OF DALLAS 
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 


RULES OF PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE 
REGARDING DISABILITY RETIREMENT 


 
 
The following rules are adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Employees' Retirement Fund (the 
"Fund") of the City of Dallas, on this 13th day of December 2016. 
 
SCOPE OF RULES 
 
These rules govern the procedure for the institution, conduct, and determination of all disability 
claims arising under Chapter 40A of the Dallas City Code. They shall not be construed so as to 
enlarge, diminish, modify, or alter the jurisdiction, powers or authority of Chapter 40A or the 
substantive rights of any person. 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
“Active Member” means an employee who is currently contributing to the Fund. 
 
"Applicant" means a member or inactive member who has applied for disability retirement under 
Section 40A-17 of the Dallas City Code or a child who seeks to be eligible for certain death 
benefits under Section 40A-22 or 23 by reason of being a qualified recipient under Section 40A 
- 1(385) (D). 
 
"Earned pension" means that amount received, or that could be received, based on actual pay and 
contributing years of service. 
 
"Inactive Member" means a former employee who has not retired or received a refund of his or 
her contributions to the Fund. 
 
"Medical Committee" or "Committee" means a group comprised of members of the Board of 
Trustees (the "Board") (but less than a quorum of Board members) and officers of the Fund 
including the Executive Director's designee, whose responsibility is to review applications for 
disability and make recommendations to the Board. 
 
"Non-service disability retirement" means a total and permanent injury or illness that did not 
occur due to the performance of official city duties and that prevents the person from getting and 
holding a job. 
 
"Permanently Disabled Child" means an applicant who is a child of a deceased member, inactive 
member, or retiree and who which child is medically determined to be totally and permanently 
disabled before the age of 18, by the Fund's medical examiner. 
 
"Service disability retirement'' means retirement due to total and permanent injury or illness 







2 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


suffered while performing official city duties. The disability must be such as to prevent the 
member from getting and holding a job. 
 
In general, the term “Total and permanent disability” means the continuing inability of a person 
to obtain and retain any type of employment for compensation as a result of a mental or physical 
impairment caused by an injury or illness.  Chapter 40A, however, contains additional rules and 
provisions that must be considered.  For example, if the impairment can be reasonably and safely 
diminished to the extent that the person will not be prevented by the impairment from obtaining 
and retaining any type of employment for compensation, they will not be considered totally and 
permanently disabled. 
 
ELIGIBILITY 
 
Active or Inactive Members may apply for disability retirement benefits if they have a sickness or 
injury that prevents them from getting and holding a job: 
 
Active Members: 
 
1. Service-connected disability - There are no minimum pension service requirements. 
 
2. Non-service connected disability – Only if the disability occurs after five (5) years of 


pension service. 
 
Inactive Members: 
 
1. With 10 years of pension service or 
 
2. With less than 10 years of pension service, but more than five (5) years of pension service; 


however, such an Inactive Member must apply within 60 days from the date the member's 
department signs the P-2C form of termination. An application for disability retirement 
may can be filed before terminating employment. 


 
Disability Retirement Pension: 


 
1. The minimum disability retirement pension payable for a non-service disability is equal 


to 10 times the percentage multiplier used in computing benefits of the Active Member 
or Inactive Member on the date of retirement multiplied by the Active Member or Inactive 
Member’s average monthly earnings. 


 
2. Effective on and after January 1, 2017, the minimum disability retirement pension payable 


for a service disability is equal to the greater of: 
 


A. $500 $1,000 a month, regardless of the date of retirement; or 
B.  10 times the percentage multiplier used in computing benefits of the Active 


Member or Inactive Member on the date of retirement multiplied by the Active 
Member or Inactive Member’s average monthly earnings. 







3 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


 
Disability Benefits for Qualified Recipients: 
 
1. A qualified recipient who is a permanently disabled child may be entitled to receive full, 


lifetime death benefits in accordance with Section 40A-22 or 23. 
 
2. Prior to retirement, Active Member or Inactive Members seeking to qualify their 


permanently disabled child as a qualified recipient under Section 40A-1(358) (D) must 
submit completed Attending Physician’s statements from all treating physicians.  Each 
physician must be a licensed M.D. or D.O. 


 
FILING OF DOCUMENTS 
 
All applications and supporting documents shall be filed with the Executive Director of the Fund, 
and shall be considered filed when actually received.  All documents filed with the Executive 
Director shall be held in the strictest confidence permitted under the law. 
 
APPLICANT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FILING THE APPLICATION 
 
1. To initiate the disability retirement process, the Applicant (or a person acting on the 


Applicant's behalf) must complete and submit an Application for Disability Retirement. 
 
2. Applicant must receive mandatory counseling from the Retirement Fund staff unless such 


counseling is waived in writing by the Executive Director. 
 
3. All forms will be available at the Fund's office, and must be legibly completed and 


returned to the Fund’s office. 
 
4. The Applicant must sign an Information Release form. This release will permit the Fund 


to obtain medical records and any other relevant information from Applicant's health care 
providers and any other parties that may have information pertaining to Applicant's 
disability claim. 


 
5. The Applicant must complete the Employee's Statement of Disability. In this statement, 


the Applicant will describe the disability in detail and explain how it prevents him/her 
from performing any type of work. 


 
6. The Applicant must provide to the Fund a completed Attending Physician's Statement 


from all treating physicians.   The physician must be a licensed M.D. or D.O. 
 


7. In addition to completing the forms outlined above, the Applicant must provide the Fund 
with the originals or certified copies of the following: 
 
A. Birth certificate 
B. Marriage license, or declaration of common law marriage, if married 
C. Spouse's birth certificate, if married  







4 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


D. Social Security number 
E. Spouse's Social Security number, if married 
F. Divorce decree, if applicable 
G. QDRO, if applicable. 


 
Members are required to obtain the physicians’ statement to prove “total and 
permanent disability.”  
 
Failure to provide the Fund with the requested documentation within ninety (90) days 
after first filing the application for disability benefits generally will result in a delay in 
processing the disability application shall cause the application to be deemed withdrawn.  
If the Applicant requires additional time in compiling the supporting documents, the 
applicant should make a written request for additional time prior to the expiration of the 
ninety (90) days.  If after one year, the applicant has not completed the application, the 
application shall be deemed withdrawn.  If the Applicant then wishes to continue to pursue 
a claim, the Applicant must file a new application. 


 
ACTIONS BY THE FUND - PROCESSING THE APPLICATION 
 
The Fund will process completed applications as quickly as administratively feasible. 
 
If the Applicant is filing for a service connected disability retirement, the Fund will request a 
copy of the Applicant's Workers' Compensation medical file from the Risk Management office. 
 
THE MEDICAL COMMITTEE 
 
After the Fund receives all required documentation, the Fund will forward the Applicant's medical 
documents to the Fund's designated Medical Officer for review.  Additionally, the Fund will 
notify the Applicant by letter to contact the Fund's designated Medical Officer for an appointment 
for an examination and review. The Applicant has 10 business days to schedule an appointment; 
otherwise it may cause a delay with the Medical Committee review and recommendation to the 
Board.  The Fund's designated Medical Officer must examine the Applicant unless the Executive 
Director specifically waives this provision. 
 
The Applicant authorizes the Fund's designated Medical Officer to contact the Applicant’s 
treating physicians or health care providers, and the Fund's designated Medical Officer may 
recommend a new examination of the Applicant before rendering an opinion as to the extent and 
cause of any disability. 
 
The Fund's designated Medical Officer will complete the Evaluation form and forward it to the 
Retirement Fund Office. 
 
If the Fund's designated Medical Officer disagree with the treating physicians' prognosis, or 
otherwise recommends an Independent Medical Evaluation ("IME") by an appropriate third 
physician ("Medical Consultant''), the Executive Director will authorize staff to make an 
appointment for the Applicant with the Medical Consultant and will send all available medical 







5 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


documentation and forms to be completed by the Medical Consultant. An Applicant must always 
submit to an IME for those disability applications related to psychiatric, back-related, or carpal 
tunnel syndrome. 
 
The Executive Director shall schedule, usually on a monthly basis, a meeting of the Committee. 
 
The completed application will be submitted to the Committee for their review and 
recommendation.  The Applicant will be notified in writing of the time and place of the 
Committee meeting and advised of the right to be present. Applicant may bring representation, 
legal or otherwise, and be heard. If an Applicant requires a bilingual representative at the 
Committee meeting, it is the responsibility of the Applicant to have such a representative present.  
Applicant will be furnished copies of all documents and may submit any additional evidence at 
the Committee meeting. After the Committee meeting, the Applicant will be advised of the 
recommendation that the Committee will provide to the Board of Trustees, the time and place 
where the Board will consider the application, and the Applicant's right to be present. 
 
Discussion of disability retirement applications by the Committee is closed to the public pursuant 
to Section 551.078 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
ACTION BY THE BOARD 
 
The disability hearing by the Board is closed to the public. The Applicant shall be notified of the 
time and place of the hearing by the Board and of the right to be present and to bring a 
representative. 
 
At the Board’s disability hearing, the Applicant shall have the same right to bring representation 
and be heard as at the Committee meeting. The Board shall review the application for disability 
pension and the recommendation of the Committee. The Board may (1) approve the application 
for a disability pension, (2) defer the application, or (3) deny the application. The decision of the 
Board is final. The applicant will be notified in writing of the Board's decision. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF DISABILITY BENEFIT 
 
The disability benefit may not be effective prior to the later of the ninetieth (90th) day after the 
last working day of the Active or Inactive Member or the date the application is made to the Fund.   
 
REVIEW PROCESS FOR DISABILITY CONTINUATION 
 
1. The Board may direct that any disability retiree be re-examined at any time. Any 


pensioner who receives a pension greater than his or her earned pension is subject to 
periodic recalls.  The standard recall is one year.  Should circumstances warrant a shorter 
or longer period, this is permissible, but recalls may not be less frequent than every three 
years.  Further recall is may be necessary if the disability retirement benefit was calculated 
under the 10-year minimum service rule and the benefit amount is greater than the 
disability retiree’s earned pension amount at the time of the review re-examination 
process.  The standard recall is two years.  Should circumstances warrant a shorter or 







6 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


longer period, this is permissible, but recalls may not be less frequent than every three 
years.  Further recall is necessary if the disability retirement benefit was calculated under 
the 10-year minimum service rule and the benefit amount is greater than the retiree's 
earned pension amount at the time of the review. 


 
2. Disability pensioners will be required to submit an “Attending Physician’s Statement” to 


the Executive Director from their physician, pursuant to a timeframe to be established by 
the Board. No medical re-examination will be required of disability retirees over sixty (60) 
years of age if; 


 
A. they are receiving no more than their earned pension; or 
B. the pension was computed under the ten (10) year minimum service rule and the 


pensioner disability retiree has been receiving disability retirement benefits for at 
least five (5) years. 


 
3. The Disability Retiree must complete the entire medical review process which consists 


of: 
  
A. Providing an Attending Physician’s Statement completed by a M.D. or D.O. and 


supporting documentation and/or medical records from the last review date until 
current period; 


B. Providing the Fund a Request for Transcript of Tax Return (IRS Form 4506 T); 
C. Providing Information Release form; and 
D. Scheduling and attending a medical examination by the Fund’s Medical Officer 


and/or occupational specialist.  The appointment must be scheduled within 10 
business days after notification and, without action, may result in suspension or 
termination of benefits approved by the Board. 


 
4. Any Disability Retiree subject to review shall again be required to provide the Fund a 


Request for Transcript of Tax Return (IRS Form 4506 T) and an Attending Physician’s 
Statement along with medical records evidencing status of disability. This documentation 
may be required up to the normal retirement age or as deemed by the Board.  


 
5. If the applicant fails to file the “Attending Physician’s Statement” with the Fund within 


thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of disability benefits, the disability benefits will be 
suspended until such time as the applicant files the appropriate documentation, unless the 
Executive Director waives such suspension in writing. If the Disability Retiree fails to 
complete the entire medical review process, the disability benefits may be suspended until 
such time as the Disability Retiree files the appropriate documentation and completes the 
review process.  The Executive Director has the right to waive such suspension in writing.  


 
6. Pensioners Disability Retirees will be reimbursed for up to a maximum of $35100 


(previous rate $35) to defray the cost of completion of the Fund's medical forms by their 
physician.  This amount may be paid only once per continuation review. 


 
7. Disability recalls are reviewed by the Committee in the same manner as initial 







7 ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding Disability Retirement     


applications for disability pensions. The rights of the Disability Retiree pensioner to 
attend the Committee meeting and Board meeting that will consider their recall and to 
representation are the same as for applicants who are making an initial application for a 
disability pension. 


 
PROCEEDINGS FOR REVOCATION OR SUSPENSION OF BENEFITS 
 
1. The Board may require any person receiving a disability benefit to appear before a Board 


Hearing during a regular Medical Committee meeting and show cause why such benefit 
should not be discontinued, suspended, or revoked: (a) for failure to comply with any 
directive to submit to a medical examination by a doctor approved by the Board, when 
requested, (b) because the Disability Retiree pensioner is allegedly no longer totally and 
permanently disabled, or (c) because the Disability Retiree pensioner will not submit a 
sworn affidavit stating his earnings from any gainful activity and IRS Form 4506T when 
requested by the Executive Director, (d) is found to be earning or be capable of earning 
compensation in an amount greater than $250 per month, whether or not such position is 
available, or (e) is found to be involved in any gainful activity not commensurate with 
health limits imposed by the attending physician. 


 
2. No revocation, suspension, or discontinuance of any benefit for any reason shall be taken 


by the Board unless, prior to institution of proceedings, the Fund shall first give notice by 
personal service or by registered or certified mail to the Disability Retiree pensioner of 
the facts or conduct alleged to warrant the intended action, and the Disability Retiree 
pensioner is given a reasonable opportunity to show compliance with all requirements of 
the ordinance for retention of the benefits.  If delivery attempts are unsuccessful, the 
Board will ordinarily rule on the benefit at the next available Board meeting. 


 
3. The Board delegates to the Executive Director the ability to suspend disability payments 


for:  (a) for failure to comply with any directive to submit to a medical examination by a 
doctor approved by the Board, when requested, (b) because the disability retiree is 
allegedly no longer totally and permanently disabled or, (c) because the Disability Retiree 
will not submit a sworn affidavit stating his earnings from any gainful activity and IRS 
Form 4506T when requested by the Executive Director. 


 
4. A Disability Retiree pensioner, whose benefit has been terminated, may apply for a refund 


of any unused contributions to the Fund or an age retirement pension, if and when eligible. 
 
                         
 
_________________________________ ____________________________ 
John D. Jenkins, Chair Date 
Board of Trustees 
Employees’ Retirement Fund 





		CITY OF DALLAS

		EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND






 
8486135.2/SP/20238/0101/120116 


DISCUSSION SHEET 
 


Employees’ Retirement Fund 
Board of Trustees Meeting 


 
December 13, 2016 


 
 
Issue: Proposed Revisions to the ERF Rules of Practice and Procedure Regarding 


Disability Retirement  
 
Attachment: Proposed Revisions to begin January 1, 2017  
 
Discussion: Chapter 40A modifications were approved through the Proposition 1 ballot 


item that passed as of November 8, 2016.  Impacts on the disability benefits 
provisions of that Chapter include changing the minimum disability retirement 
pension payable for a service disability to the greater of; 
 


a. $500 $1,000 a month, regardless of the date of retirement; or  
b. the pension that would be payable if the member retired with 10 years 


of service. 
 
In addition, staff has also reviewed the workflow of the current policies and 
procedures and the following suggestions are being made: 
 
FILING OF DOCUMENTS  


 
• Failure to provide the Fund with the requested documentation 


supporting the claim for disability benefits within ninety (90) days after first 
filing the application for disability benefits shall cause the application 
to be deemed withdrawn and, if the applicant then wishes to continue to 
pursue a claim, the applicant will have to file a new application. 


 
• The Applicant has 10 business days to schedule an appointment with the 


independent medical or occupational specialist selected by the Fund.  
Otherwise, there may be a substantial delay in the Medical Committee’s 
review and recommendation to the Board. 


 
REVIEW PROCESS FOR DISABILITY CONTINUATION 


 
• Generally, no medical re-examination will be required of disability 


retirees over sixty (60) years of age if; 
• they are receiving no more than their earned pension; or 
• the pension was computed under the ten (10) year minimum service 


rule; and the disability retiree has been receiving disability retirement 
benefits for at least five (5) years, and 


• the Fund is not in receipt of any information from any third party 







 
8486135.2/SP/20238/0101/120116 


evidencing that the retiree is engaged in some meaningful employment 
activity. 
 


The disability applicant must complete the entire medical review process 
which consists of: 


 
a. Providing ERF a Request for Transcript of Tax Return (IRS 


form 4506 T).  (The transcript shows most line items including 
the applicant’s adjusted gross income (AGI) from their original 
tax return (Form 1040, 1040A or 1040EZ) as filed, along with 
any forms and schedules.) 


b. Having their physician legibly complete the Fund’s medical 
questionnaire with any required supporting attachments.  
(Applicants will be reimbursed for up to a maximum of $35 $100 
to defray the cost of the physician completing the form). 
 


PROCEEDINGS FOR REVOCATION OR SUSPENSION OF 
BENEFITS 
 


1. The Board may require any person receiving a disability 
benefit to appear before a Revocation hearing during a 
regular medical committee meeting and show cause why 
such benefit should not be discontinued or revoked.  


2. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to suspend 
disability payments for failure to appear for a hearing or to 
provide continuing evidence of disability. 


3. In the event the Board or Executive Director denies, or 
suspends disability payments, the applicant may within 30 days 
file a written request for reconsideration which, to be effective, 
must be accompanied by valid documentary evidence to 
support the applicant’s position.  Upon receipt of a valid request 
for reconsideration, the matter shall be heard by a 
subcommittee of the Board or if the Board in its sole discretion 
wishes by the full Board, at the next regularly scheduled 
meeting. 


4. An applicant may be accompanied at the appeal by one person 
who may be either a family member, a medical professional or 
an attorney of their choosing. The decision on appeal shall be in 
writing, stating the reason for the denial and it shall be binding 
on all persons. 


 
Recommendation: The Board approve the proposed revisions to the ERF Rules of Practice and 


Procedure regarding Disability Retirement with a January 1, 2017 
implementation date. 





		December 13, 2016






 
DISCUSSION SHEET 


 
Employees’ Retirement Fund 


Board of Trustees Meeting 
 


December 13, 2016 
 
 
Issue: Proposed changes for the Election Policy based on the approval of 


Proposition 1.  
 
 
Attachment: Proposed Policy effective January 1, 2017  
 
 
Discussion: Chapter 40A modifications were approved through the Proposition 1 ballot 


item that passed as of November 8, 2016.   


1. In accordance with Section 40A-2(c)(2), if only one eligible 
employee is nominated for an elected Board position described in 
Subsection (c)(1)(B) of this section, that employee will be declared 
elected to that position by the Board without requiring an election 
by the members of the Fund.   


Note:  This change will save the Fund approximately $10,000 
each occurrence. 


2. In accordance with Section 40A-3(a)(1), on and after January 1, 
2017, the three elected positions on the Board will be designated 
Place 1, Place 2, and Place 3, respectively, as determined by the 
Board.   


The elected members, including incumbents, of the Board shall 
serve without remuneration and for terms as follows:  (i) a member 
elected to Place 1 will serve a three-year term, with the initial term 
running from January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2019; (ii) a 
member elected to Place 2 will serve a three-year term, with the 
initial term running from January 1, 2019 through December 31, 
2021; and (iii) a member elected to Place 3 will serve a three-year 
term, except that the initial term will be for two years and run from 
January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2020. 


 
 
Recommendation: The Board approve the proposed changes to the Election Policy including 


the following order of election seats: Place 1 - Carla D. Brewer; Place 2 - 
John D. Jenkins; and Place 3 - Tina Richardson with a January 1, 2017 
implementation date. 





		December 13, 2016






ELECTION POLICY OF EMPLOYEE MEMBER TO BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND 


 


  WHEREAS, Section 40A-4(a)(11) of the Dallas City Code provides that 
the time, method, and manner of election of employee members to the Employees' 
Retirement Fund Board of Trustees shall be determined by the Board: 


THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following procedure for the election of 
the employee member be adopted: 


SECTION 1.  In accordance with Section 40A-2(c)(21)(B) of the Dallas City 
Code, three (3) Trustees of the Employees' Retirement Fund will be employees 
from different City departments as elected by the members of the Retirement 
Fund.  The three elected Trustees must be members of the Fund.  In accordance 
with Section 40A-2(c)(2), if only one eligible employee is nominated for an 
elected Board position described in Subsection (c)(1)(B) of this section, that 
employee will be declared elected to that position by the Board without requiring 
an election by the members of the Fund.  In accordance with Section 40A-3(a)(1), 
on and after January 1, 2017, the three elected positions on the Board will be 
designated Place 1, Place 2, and Place 3, respectively, as determined by the 
Board.  The elected members, including incumbents, of the Board shall serve 
without remuneration and for terms as follows:  (i) a member elected to Place 1 
will serve a three-year term, with the initial term running from January 1, 2017 
through December 31, 2019; (ii) a member elected to Place 2 will serve a three-
year term, with the initial term running from January 1, 2019 through December 
31, 2021; and (iii) a member elected to Place 3 will serve a three-year term, 
except that the initial term will be for two years and run from January 1, 2019 
through December 31, 2020Trustees will be elected for three year terms in 
accordance with Section 40A-3(a)(2)(A). 


SECTION 2.  In accordance with Section 40A-1(2325) "Member" means an 
employee who is currently contributing to the Retirement Fund. 


SECTION 3.  "Delegate" means a Member who is an elected representative 
of a department to serve on the Nominating Committee.  The purpose of the 
Nominating Committee is to select those Members whose names will be placed 
on the ballot in the Trustee election and any other purpose as directed by the 
Board.  All Delegates and voters must be Members. 


SECTION 4.  For each 75 Members in a City department, or fraction of 75, 
one Delegate shall be elected by the Members of each department.  The 
Nominating Committee shall be comprised of all the Delegates and serve until 
their successors are elected. 







 2 


SECTION 5.  A payroll count of the Members of each City department shall 
be made by the Executive DirectorAdministrator of the Retirement Fund from the 
biweekly payroll period selected by the Board and described in the calendar set by 
the Board for each election.  City departments shall be those as determined by the 
adopted City budget at the time of the payroll count.  The Administrator Executive 
Director shall notify each department of the results of that count and number of 
Delegates to be elected from each department. 


SECTION 6.  The department head shall appoint two (2) Members from 
the department to act as judges and distribute a Delegate ballot to all Members 
in that department.  Each Member may vote for no more than the number of 
Delegates permitted for the department.  If a ballot that has been used to vote is 
returned with votes for more than the number of Delegates permitted by the 
department the ballot is void and will not be counted.  The Member(s) receiving 
the highest number of votes will be declared the Delegate(s).  If the department is 
entitled to more than one Delegate, the Member receiving the next highest 
number of votes will be declared a Delegate, and so on, until the department's 
allocation of Delegates is selected. 


SECTION 7.  If a department with multiple work locations is entitled to 5 or 
more Delegates, the election of its Delegates may be accomplished by a 
different method than described in Section 6.  However, said method must be 
approved and filed by the department head with the Administrator Executive 
Director prior to the Delegate election. 


SECTION 8.  This Delegate election and certification of Delegates by the 
department's judges shall be held on a City workday in accordance with the 
calendar set by the Board for that election. 


SECTION 9.  The Nominating Committee shall sit in session in accordance 
with the calendar set by the Board for each election and shall then and there 
duly elect a Chair and place on a ballot no more than ten (10) Members to run in a 
general election to serve as an employee elected Trustee as set forth in Section 
40A-2(c)(21)(B) of the Dallas City Code.  Not more than one Member from the 
same department may be placed on the ballot.  If more than one Member is 
nominated from the same department, an election by the Nominating Committee 
will first be held between the nominees from that department.  The nominee 
receiving the most votes will continue in consideration to be placed on the 
ballot.  Any nominated Member not present at the meeting shall state in writing to 
the Nominating Committee that he or she accepts the nomination; such notice 
must be submitted during the Nominating Committee meeting when the 
Member's name is placed in nomination.  This statement shall be filed with the 
Nominating Committee by the Delegate nominating the Member.  In the event 
more than ten (10) Members are nominated for placement on the ballot, the 
Nominating Committee shall then and there hold a run off election to determine 







 3 


who will be placed on the ballot.  In this election, Nominating Committee Delegates 
may vote for up to ten (10) nominated Members.  The ten (10) nominated 
Members receiving the most votes will have their names placed on the ballot. 


SECTION 10.  All business handled in the Nominating Committee meeting 
will be governed by the current edition of "Robert's Rules of Order."  A 
representative from the legal counsel to the Retirement Fund will act as 
parliamentarian. 


SECTION 11.  The order of nominees on the ballot will be determined by 
drawing. 


SECTION 12.  The Nominating Committee shall form a Forum 
Subcommittee of five (5) Member Delegates.  The Member Delegates of the 
Forum Subcommittee shall coordinate and schedule at least one (1) candidate 
forum prior to the election to allow all nominated Member candidates an equal 
opportunity to address election issues and provide an exchange of views and 
information.  If the Forum Subcommittee schedules more than one forum, such 
additional forums are to be scheduled at different City work locations and/ or 
various times to allow the nominated Member candidates to reach the broadest 
number of City employees of the various work locations and shifts. 


SECTION 13.  Each nominated Member candidate will have until the close 
of business on the next work day after the end of the Nominating Committee's 
meeting to submit to the Administrator Executive Director a statement of fifty (50) 
words or less describing his or her education, training, or experience relevant to 
serving as a Trustee of the Retirement Fund.  Said statement will be sent to the 
Members with the ballots.  Such submission is optional and will not be 
accepted after the deadline. 


SECTION 14.  Each Member may vote for one (1) nominated Member 
candidate appearing on the ballot.  Votes that have more than one (1) candidate 
selected or contain a "write-in" candidate shall not be counted.  The votes shall be 
counted in the method adopted by the Board for that election.  The Board may 
choose to use electronic interactive voice response balloting and/or internet 
voting.  It is the responsibility of the Member to provide the correct mailing address 
to the City for mailing of ballots and any other written information in 
connection with the election. Returned ballots will be held. 


SECTION 15.  The vote tabulator shall report to the Board of Trustees the 
number of votes received by each nominated Member candidate.  In the event 
that no one receives a majority number of votes, a run-off election will be held 
between the two nominated Member candidates who received the highest 
number of votes.  In the event of a run-off election the vote tabulator shall report 
to the Board of Trustees the number of votes received by each runoff candidate. 







 4 


The Board shall declare the nominated Member candidate receiving the majority 
number of votes of the run-off votes as Trustee.  By certifying the election results 
and naming a Trustee, the Board will be deemed to have reviewed the election for 
substantial compliance with this Election Policy and the decision of the Board shall 
be final. 


SECTION 16.  In accordance with Section 40A-3(cb)(12)(A), if a vacancy 
occurs on the Board in a position held by an elected Member, a special election 
shall be called by the Board within 60 90 days to fill the remainder of the 
unexpired term of the Member vacating the position.  The Nominating Committee 
shall be recalled by the Board to assist in conducting the special election. 


SECTION 17.  A special election shall proceed exactly as prescribed above 
but with the above mentioned dates all changed to a special election calendar set 
by the Board to assist in conducting the special election. 
 
 
APPROVED BY BOARD OF TRUSTEES: 


_______________________________________   ______________ 
Carla D. BrewerJohn D. Jenkins, Chair      Date 
Board of Trustees 
Employees’ Retirement Fund 
 
 
 
Date Last Revised:  February 9, 2009December 17, 2004 
 
Revised:  February 9, 2009December 13, 2016 
 
 


 
 
 








Trustee Election Schedule 2016-2045
(Election Years in Bold)


2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Place 1 eff 1/1/20 eff 1/1/23


Place 2 eff 1/1/19 eff 1/1/22


Place 3 


eff 1/1/17 


eff 1/1/16 


eff 1/1/19 eff 1/1/21 eff 1/1/24


2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034


Place 1 eff 1/1/26 eff 1/1/29 eff 1/1/32


Place 2 eff 1/1/28 eff 1/1/31 eff 1/1/34


Place 3 eff 1/1/27 eff 1/1/30 eff 1/1/33


2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042 2043 2044


Place 1 eff 1/1/1938 eff 1/1/41 eff 1/1/44


Place 2 eff 1/1/37 eff 1/1/40 eff 1/1/43


Place 3 eff 1/1/36 eff 1/1/39 eff 1/1/42







11/29/20169:12 AM
F:\Trustees\Election\Trustee Election Schedule 2016-2039.xlsx


2025


eff 1/1/25


2035


eff 1/1/35


2045





		Sheet1






DISCUSSION SHEET 
 


Employees’ Retirement Fund 
Board of Trustees Meeting 


 
 


December 13, 2016 
 
 
Issue: Revisions to ERF Investment Policies 
 
 
Attachments: General Investment Policy 
 Fixed Income Asset Class Investment Policy 
 International and Global Equity Asset Class Investment    


Policy 
 
 
Discussion: ERF staff has revised the investment policies to permit the 


use of futures contracts, as per the amendment to 40A in 
November.  Language was written by ERF attorney and 
uniformly included into all three policies. 


 
 


 Derivatives can be divided into seven classes.  Permitted 
instruments include: futures contracts; options on futures; 
warrants; options; currency forward contracts; swaps; and 
structured notes (revised 12/16).,  


 
 
Recommendation: Approve the proposed revisions to the ERF investment 


policies. Suggested motion for the approval is as follows:  
Move to approve the revisions to the investment policies as 
noted and authorize the Board Chair to sign. 


 





		December 13, 2016






EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
 


FIXED INCOME ASSET CLASS INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
 
I Purpose 
 
 To establish the investment policy and objectives for the investment grade fixed 


income segment and the high yield segment of the Employees’ Retirement Fund of 
the City of Dallas (“the “Fund”).  This policy in conjunction with the General 
Investment Policy (revised 7/99) allows for sufficient flexibility in the management 
process to capture investment opportunities, yet provide parameters that will ensure 
prudence and care in the execution of the fixed income investment program. 


 
 The fixed income segment is to be managed to: 
  
 a. enhance the Fund’s total return through the exploitation of market inefficiencies 


and disequilibriums which create risk-adjusted yield opportunities;  
 
 b. ensure better protection of shorter-term liabilities through lower volatility 


investments than equities which are better suited to protect longer term liabilities; 
 
 c. provide diversification to the Fund’s overall investment program by investing 


in the domestic, non-dollar,  high yield; and credit opportunities (added 9/14) markets; 
and 


  
 d. reduce risk through diversifying the fixed income asset investments.  By 


including both domestic and non-dollar bonds, high yield securities, and credit 
opportunities (added 9/14) in an investment portfolio, the Fund can maintain a solid 
investment return while significantly lowering the overall portfolio risk.  Besides 
being relatively safe, domestic bonds display low correlation relative to other asset 
classes.  Although non-dollar bonds have a higher volatility than their US 
counterparts, they do display a low correlation to each other.  High yield bonds 
display a low correlation to virtually all asset classes and except for zero coupon 
bonds, generate a high level of cash income thereby reducing overall portfolio 
volatility and helping the Fund to meet its cash needs.  Credit opportunities are 
viewed as a separate macro asset class group resulting from the diversification 
benefits relative to individual asset classes.  Despite higher correlations to stocks, 
credit products also generate higher levels of yield so sensitivity to economic 
growth drivers is substantially dampened offering some downside protection in 
stressful equity markets.  In strong equity markets, credit products can benefit even 
if bonds are struggling (added 9/14). 


 
 
II Strategic Objectives 
 







 2 


 A.  Primary Objective 
  
 To achieve the highest return possible consistent with the Board’s desire (1) to 


control asset volatility and covariance risk with assumed liabilities, and (2) to 
emphasize high current yield to maturity opportunities to add value through active 
management.  This objective may require an under weighting of US Treasury issues 
relative to their representation in the broad, publicly-traded bond market. 


 
 B. Secondary Objectives 
 


1. The Fund’s investment grade domestic and non-dollar fixed income 
investments are to be actively managed to achieve a rate of return that exceeds the 
rate of return of the Barclays Aggregate Bond Index or other comparable index 
(revised 7/99) by .50% (50 basis points) net of fees.   
 
2. The Fund’s high yield segment is to be actively managed to achieve a rate 
of return that exceeds the rate of return of the Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay Index  
or other comparable index (revised 7/99, 9/14) by 1% (100 basis points) net of fees.  


 
 3. The Fund’s credit opportunities investments are to be actively managed to 


achieve a rate of return that exceeds the rate of return of a blended benchmark 
which aligns with the underlying investment mix (added 9/14) by 1%  (100 basis 
points) net of fees (added 01/16) 


 
 4. Collectively, fixed income investments are expected to preserve asset value 


(revised 7/99). 
 
III Investment Approach 
 
 The investment approach shall be to identify enhanced yield opportunities across 


bond market segments and to invest where credit and reinvestment risks are 
understood and can be managed well within yield benefits. 


 
 A. The investment grade fixed income managers will manage the five major 


categories of fixed income risk within a global context: 
 
  a.  credit risk 
  b.  interest rate risk, 
  c.  yield curve risk, 
  d.  reinvestment risk, and where necessary, 
  e.  currency risk. 
 
 Credit Risk is the uncertainty surrounding the borrower’s ability to repay its 


obligations.  Credit risk is to be actively managed, employing yield spread analysis 
and credit research. 


 







 3 


 Interest Rate Risk is price volatility produced by changes in the overall level of 
interest rates.  This risk is to be managed in a controlled manner using historical 
real return relationships and economic analysis. 


 
 Yield Curve Risk is price changes induced by the changing slope of the yield curve.  


Yield curve risk is to be managed, but in a controlled, disciplined fashion, by 
employing duration and maturity yield spread analysis. 


 
 Reinvestment Risk is the uncertain future yield opportunities available to invest 


funds which become available due to call, maturity or coupon generated cash flow.  
Reinvestment risk is to be managed through call risk analysis, and diversification 
of maturities. 


 
 Currency Risk is price volatility emanating from the value of the US dollar relative 


to the currencies of the world when invested in non-dollar denominated fixed 
income instruments.  Currency risk is to be hedged, if appropriate, employing 
currency spread and valuation analysis. 


 
 B. The high yield fixed income managers will also manage risk by diversifying 


their portfolios across industries and credit qualities, as outlined in the high yield 
manager guidelines.  In addition to the types of risk outlined above, the high yield 
fixed income managers will also manage Default Risk.  Default Risk is the 
possibility that the bond issuers will no longer be able to make their (revised 7/99) 
scheduled payments to the bond holders.  Generally, this type of risk is minimized 
through disciplined credit analysis. 


 
 C. Credit opportunities managers will manage risk by diversifying their 


portfolios across an opportunity set that includes emerging market debt, bank loans, 
and distressed debt.  The various types of fixed income risks will be managed as 
noted in A and B above (added 9/14). 


 
IV Investment Process 
 
 A.  General Strategies – Investment Grade Bonds 
 
 1.  A portion of the fixed income assets are to be managed globally to add value 


principally through credit, valuation and interest rate level analysis. 
 
 2.  A two-tier macro/micro management approach is to be used to implement 


the portfolio strategies.  The “macro” component is to include strategic and 
some tactical decision processes such as the allocation among different fixed 
income segments.  The “micro” component will address security selection 
within each fixed income segment utilizing credit, duration, and valuation 
analysis. 


 







 4 


 3.  Value is to be added by purchasing bonds where the yield spread over the 
US Treasury yield curve is such that the risks of not realizing the promised yield 
spread, either from credit or call risk, do not materially reduce the expected 
yield benefit.  Bond sales should be limited primarily to circumstances where 
risk can no longer be managed to levels below the yield benefits. 


 
 4.  Value at the macro level is to be added through the allocation of cash flow 


to fixed income segments which offer the highest current yield to maturity 
spreads, globally, relative to their historical norms.  Within policy ranges 
duration should be managed with cash flow by concentrating purchases along 
the yield curve where the yield premium is high relative to historical norms. 


 
 5.  Only when value cannot be found should US Treasury issues be purchased.  


Under most market circumstances the fixed income segment will have a 
Treasury allocation well below its public market representation. 


 
B. General Strategies – High Yield Bonds 
 


1. The High Yield bond segment will be managed to generate strong cash flow 
from coupon income and capital appreciation through bonds with credit quality 
below investment grade (revised 7/99). 


 
2. Issue selection will be of primary importance with in-depth credit analysis, 
asset strength, debenture covenants and valuation the key factors. 


 
3. The high yield portfolios will contain predominately (revised 7/99) cash-paying 
securities of solvent companies.  Unless specifically authorized, no payment-
in-kind securities (revised 7/99) are permitted. 


 
4. High yield portfolios shall be well-diversified across companies, industries, 
and sectors.  


 
C. General Strategies – Credit Opportunities (added 9/14) 


 
1. The credit opportunities strategy will be managed to generate strong cash 


flow from coupon income. 
 


2. The flexible nature of the asset class also allows for value generation 
through portfolio construction decisions and capital appreciation (added 7/99) . 


 
3. Issue selection will be of primary importance with in-depth credit analysis, 


asset strength, debenture covenants and valuation the key factors. 
D.  General Strategies – Derivatives 
 


The use of derivatives is prohibited unless specifically authorized in a managers 
individual guidelines. Managers shall only be authorized to use derivatives if 







 5 


they can present a written detailed derivatives investment policy that addresses 
at a minimum the standard of care, the back office and accounting, valuation 
and reconciliation procedures, monitoring procedures and permitted uses and 
circumstances.  Further, managers shall specifically demonstrate an 
understanding of and processes to manage:  market, credit, liquidity, cash flow, 
basis, legal, settlement, operational and other pertinent risks associated with the 
use of derivatives. 


 
The strategic objectives of the use of derivatives is to facilitate risk management 
and to manage the cost of investing in publicly-traded stocks and bonds.  Of the 
four basic strategies that can be achieved through the use of derivatives, only 
substitution and risk control are permitted.  Arbitrage and speculation are never 
permitted to be used as a strategy. Any derivative transaction that results in the 
leveraging of the portfolio is strictly prohibited. 


 
Derivatives can be divided into seven classes.  Permitted instruments include: 
futures contracts; options on futures; warrants;  options; currency forward 
contracts; swaps; and structured notes (revised 12/16)., Derivatives can be divided 
into seven classes.  Two of these classes, options on futures and warrants, are 
prohibited investments except warrants that are attached to securities 
purchased.  The other five classes, futures contracts, options, currency forward 
contracts, swaps, and structured notes, are permitted when the manager is 
authorized to invest in and holds investments in the underlying cash market 
instrument. 
 
The listing requirements for permitted derivatives are that they must be either 
exchange traded or traded over –the-counter. 


 
Over-the-counter traded derivatives are subject to counter-party risk. Managers 
shall prepare, maintain, and review a detailed counter-party credit policy for 
non-exchange traded derivatives that outlines a standard of care in selecting 
appropriate counter-parties.  Counter-party requirements are as follows: 


 
a. counter-party creditworthiness shall be equivalent to 


“investment grade” of “A3” as defined by Moody’s Investor 
Services or “A-“ by Standard and Poor’s.  The use of counter-
parties holding a split rating with one of the ratings below 
A3/A- is prohibited.  Managers shall notify the Administrator 
if a counter-party is downgraded below A3/A- while an 
instrument held in the portfolio is outstanding with that 
counter-party.  The use of unrated counter-parties is prohibited 
unless that counter-party has a written unconditional guarantee 
from a rated counter-party.  The rated counter-party must meet 
the requirements listed above. (revised 01/07). 


 







 6 


b. For non-exchange traded derivatives, individual counter-party 
exposure, including the Fund’s master custodial bank, is 
limited to 33% of the notional amount of the derivative 
exposure of the portfolio being managed for the Fund. 


 
c. Any entity acting as a counter-party shall be regulated in either 


the United States or the United Kingdom. 
 
d. The manager shall, where applicable and enforceable, use 


master agreements permitting the netting of counter-party 
exposures to minimize credit risk. 


 
e. Managers are prohibited from “name washing” where credit 


guarantees extend through to another party or parties, 
regardless of which party holds a higher rating. 


 
The Board may at its discretion in terms of time and content request reports from the 
manager on the use of derivatives in the Fund’s portfolio (revised 7/07). 
 
 
V Investment Implementation 
 
 A.  External Management 
  
 The Fund (revised 7/99) shall retain qualified registered money managers or those 


which are exempt from registration (revised 7/99) in sufficient number to diversify 
manager risk, being careful not to over-diversify and thereby increase cost. 


 
 B.  Qualifications 
 
 The selected investment grade managers must have demonstrated expertise in 


all areas of investment-grade fixed income specified in their guidelines (revised 


7/99), domestically and internationally, with espoused investment approaches 
consistent with this policy. The selected high yield managers must have 
demonstrated expertise in all areas of high yield fixed income specified in their 
guidelines with espoused investment approaches consistent with this policy 
(revised 7/99).  Selected managers must adhere to a set of guidelines which outline 
the strategic role their firm is to fulfill. 


 
 
 
  







 7 


Attest: 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ Date: ____________________ 
Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
Chair 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ Date: ____________________ 
Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
Executive Director 
 
 
 
Date last revised:  January 12, 2016December 13, 2016 September 9, 2014 








EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
 


GENERAL INVESTMENT POLICY 


 
A. PURPOSE 
 
 The investment policiesy of the Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of 


Dallas (“the “Fund”) will provide the framework for the management of the 
Fund’s assets.  It has been designed to allow for sufficient flexibility in the 
management process to capture investment opportunities as they may occur, 
yet provide reasonable parameters to ensure prudence and care in the 
execution of the investment program. 


 
 The General Iinvestment policy of the Fund has been developed from a 


comprehensive study and evaluation of many alternatives.  The primary 
objective of this policy is to implement a plan of action that will result in the 
highest probability of maximum investment return from the Fund’s assets 
available for investment within prudent levels of risk. 


 
 The cornerstone of this policy rests upon the proposition that there is a direct 


correlation between risk and return for any investment alternative.  While 
such a proposition is reasonable in logic, it is also probable based on 
empirical investigations.1 


 
 It is essential that the Fund’s investment management be intended to offset 


inflationary effects and achieve the investment goals of the Fund.  Meeting 
the Fund’s investment goals contributes to financing a reasonable package of 
retirement benefits for Dallas employees and maximizes the utilization of 
the members’ contributions and the tax dollars of the citizens of Dallas. 


 
 It is the policy of the Employees’ Retirement Fund Board of Trustees (“the 


Board”) to diversify between various investment types as deemed suitable. 
 
B. GENERAL INVESTMENT GOALS 
 
 The general investment goals are broad in nature to encompass the purpose 


of the Fund and its investments.  They articulate the philosophy by which 
the Board will manage the Fund’s assets within the applicable regulatory 
constraints. 


 
 1. The overall goal of the Fund is to provide benefits, as anticipated under 


the Plan Fund document, Dallas City Code, Chapter 40A (revised 11/04), to 
its participants members and their beneficiaries through a carefully 
planned and executed investment program. 


 


                                                 
1 Stocks, Bonds, Bills, and Inflation:  Year by Year Historical Returns (1926-1995).  Roger C. 
Ibbotson and Rex A. Sinquefield. 







 2 


 2. The Fund seeks to produce the highest return on investment that is 
consistent with sufficient liquidity and investment risk that are prudent 
and reasonable, given prevailing capital market conditions.  While the 
importance of the preservation of capital is recognized, the theory of 
capital market pricing which maintains that varying degrees of 
investment risk should be rewarded with compensating returns is also 
recognized.  Consequently, prudent risk taking is reasonable and (revised 


7/99) necessary. 
 
 3. The Fund (revised 07/99) investment program shall at all times comply with 


(revised 07/99) applicable local, state, and federal regulations. 
 
C. GENERAL POLICIES 
 


1. The Board, and any investment manager, in investing the Fund’s assets 
shall discharge its duties solely in the interests of members and 
beneficiaries acting with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under 
the prevailing circumstances that a prudent person acting in a like 
capacity and familiar with matters of the type would use in the conduct 
of an enterprise of a like character and like aims. 


 
2. The General (revised 07/99) Investment Policy shall be based on an asset 


allocation study that considers the current and expected condition of the 
Fund, the expected long term capital market outlook and the Fund’s risk 
tolerance.  The asset allocation study shall measure the potential impact 
on pension costs of alternative asset allocation policies based on various 
degrees of diversification in terms of risk and return and the existing 
and projected liability structure of the pension plaFundn. 


 
3. Based on the asset allocation study it will be the responsibility of the 


Board to determine the specific allocation of the investments among the 
various asset classes.  This will constitute the asset allocation plan.  The 
Board will undertake strategic asset allocation studies no less frequently 
than every five years.  Such studies address the appropriateness of asset 
classes to be considered for inclusion in the investment portfolio, define 
the targeted or normal commitments to each asset class to achieve the 
desired level of diversification and return, and assign the range in which 
the commitments are permitted to fluctuate. 


 
4.  The asset allocation plan shall be predicated on the following factors: 
 


a)  the historical performance of capital markets adjusted for the 
perception of the future short and long-term capital market 
performance; 


b)  the correlation of returns among the relevant asset classes; 
c)  the perception of future economic conditions, including inflation 


and interest rate assumptions; 







 3 


d)  the projected liability stream of benefits and the costs of funding 
Plan Fund benefits; 


e)  the relationship between the current and projected assets of the 
plan Fund and the projected actuarial liability stream. 


 
5.  The asset allocation shall be sufficiently diversified to maintain 


investment risk at a reasonable level as determined by the Board 
without imprudently sacrificing return. 


 
6.  In accordance with the asset allocation plan, the Board will select 


external investment managers with demonstrated experience and 
expertise whose investment styles collectively will implement the 
planned asset allocation to form the Fund’s investment structure.  Each 
investment manager shall be a registered advisor under the Investment 
Advisers Act of 1940 (or appropriately exempt from registration). 
Additionally, each investment manager will acknowledge its fiduciary 
status and other conformity with applicable state and federal laws.  The 
Board will set guidelines for these managers and regularly review their 
investment performance on a total return basis against stated objectives.  
Formal meetings with the Fund’s investment managers will be held at 
Board meetings at least biennially to discuss objectives, styles and 
returns, or other matters deemed important by the Board. 


 
7.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this policy, assets of the Fund 


may be invested in any collective investment fund or funds, including 
common and group trust funds presently in existence or hereafter 
established which are maintained by a bank or trust company 
supervised by a state or federal agency, including BlackRock 
Institutional Trust Company, N.A.  The assets so invested shall be 
subject to all the provisions of the instruments establishing such funds 
as they may be amended from time to time.  Such instruments of group 
trusts as they may be amended from time to time are hereby adopted, 
incorporated and made a part of this policy as if fully set forth herein.  
The combining of money and other assets of the Fund with money and 
other assets of other trusts and accounts in such fund or funds is 
specifically authorized.  (added 06/15) 


 
8.  The Board will utilize the service of a master custodian bank that will 


be responsible for holding the assets of the Fund that are not held in a 
collective investment fund described in paragraph 7, above, (revised 06/15), 
settling purchases and sales of securities, identifying and collecting 
income that becomes due and payable on assets held, and providing a 
management information and accounting system. 


 
9.  The Board may retain independent professional investment consultants 


to assist in the development and implementation of the investment 
policy, to monitor, oversee, report on and make recommendations with 







 4 


respect to the activity of current and, if appropriate, prospective 
investment managers. 


 
10.  A formal review of the Fund’s asset allocation plan and investment 


structure will be conducted annually by the Board.  The purpose of this 
review shall be to ensure that asset allocation policy guidelines as 
determined in the most recent asset allocation plan continue to be met. 
The source of information for these reviews shall come from Fund staff, 
outside consultants, and investment managers, as they may be retained. 


 
11.  It is the responsibility of the Board to administer the investments of the 


Fund at reasonable cost, being careful to avoid sacrificing quality. 
These costs include, but are not limited to, management and custodial 
fees, consulting fees, transaction costs, and other administrative costs 
chargeable to the Fund. 


 
12.  The Board will reallocate assets on a periodic basis to balance the 


overall asset allocation against target when deviations occur because of 
capital market fluctuations.  All percentage allocations in this policy are 
based on the market value of assets (revised 07/99). 


 
13.  The Board considers the active voting of proxies an integral part of the 


investment process.  Proxy voting may be delegated to the discretion of 
investment managers retained by the Board.  The managers shall be 
required to establish a proxy voting policy and maintain records of 
proxy votes and shall make these records available quarterly to the 
Board or its designee.  The Board may at its discretion establish an 
overall policy of voting proxies in which case the managers’ proxy 
voting policy shall be in accordance with that of the Board’s.  The 
Board recognizes that in certain non-U.S (revised 07/99) markets, 
investment managers may, balancing the costs and benefits, not 
exercise proxy voting. 


 
14.  No investment or action pursuant to an investment may be taken unless 


expressly permitted by this Policy, unless separately reviewed and 
approved by the Board. 


 
15. The Board may at any time amend, supplement, or rescind this General 


(revised 07/99) Investment Policy.  
 


16. All transactions undertaken on behalf of the Fund shall be for the sole 
benefit of the members and beneficiaries. 







 5 


D. STRATEGIC ASSET ALLOCATION POLICY 
 
 The Board has adopted the following asset allocation policy that has two 


primary asset groups, Equity and Fixed Income.  Additionally, in December 
2012 the ERF Board approved a 10% dedicated allocation to the Next 
Generation Investment Manager Program. (added 07/15) 


  
 EQUITY 
 


Domestic Equity:  15.0% (revised 09/14) is the target of assets (revised 07/99) to be 
allocated within an acceptable range of 13.0% to 17.0% (revised 09/14) to 
domestic equity-oriented marketable securities to provide the Fund with the 
potential to earn high rates of return relative to other asset classes, 
recognizing that equity investments also generate commensurate risk levels.  
 


 International Equity:  15.0% (revised 09/14) is the target of assets (revised 07/99) to 
be allocated within an acceptable range of 13.0% to 17.0% (revised 09/14) to the 
equity securities of companies (revised 07/99) domiciled outside of the U.S. 
which may be traded (revised 07/99) on non-U.S. stock exchanges and may be 
(revised 07/99) denominated in non-U.S. (revised 07/99) dollars.  This asset class 
(revised 07/99) should provide low correlation (revised 07/99) performance to U.S. 
equities over time thereby enhancing the overall rate of return through 
diversification.  There is no fixed allocation to emerging market equity, but 
index weighting up to 8 to 10% (revised 05/09) of the international equity asset 
class (revised 07/99) may be invested in this asset class at the discretion of the 
active international equity managers, governed by specific investment 
manager guidelines.  Emerging market equity represents equity investments 
in public securities of companies domiciled in developing markets which 
may be (revised 07/99) traded on non-U.S. stock exchanges and may be (revised 


07/99) denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar.  These markets 
are generally smaller and the public securities of such markets tend to offer 
the potential for somewhat higher long term returns than those of more 
developed markets. 


 
 Global Equity:  5.0% is the target of assets to be allocated within an 


acceptable range of 3.0% to 7.0% (revised 09/14) to the equity securities of 
companies domiciled inside and outside of the U.S.; and which may be 
traded on either U.S. or non-U.S. stock exchanges; and which may be 
denominated in U.S. and non-U.S. dollars.  This asset class should provide 
low correlation performance to U.S. and international equities over time 
thereby enhancing the overall rate of return through diversification and also 
reducing the home country bias.  Allocation to emerging markets will be 
governed by specific investment manager guidelines. (added 06/11) 


 
Global Low Volatility Equity: 10.0% is the target of assets to be allocated 
within an acceptable range of 8.0% to 12.0% (revised 09/14) to holdings that will 
moderate the level of risk in the total equity portfolio by incorporating a 
strategic allocation to portfolios with an explicit low volatility objective 







 6 


relative to the broader global equity market.  Low volatility strategies will 
generally have a higher allocation to sectors such as utilities, healthcare, and 
consumer staples which exhibit more stable fundamental characteristics and 
lower price variation (added 09/14). 


   
 Real Estate Investment Trust:  5% is the target of assets to be allocated 


within an acceptable range of 3% to 7% (revised 09/14) to Real Estate Investment 
Trust (REIT) oriented marketable securities to provide the Fund with the 
potential to earn high rates of return relative to other asset classes, generate 
fixed income like net cash flow, and provide a broader diversification than 
equity and fixed income provides. (added 01/01) 


 
Public Real Assets:  15.0% is the target of assets to be allocated within an 
acceptable range of 13.0% to 17.0% (revised 09/14) to public real assets-oriented 
investments (to include real estate, master limited partnerships (MLPs), 
timber, and farm land) as hedge against inflation and diversification for the 
Fund (revised 09/14).  Funding of committed capital in the public real asset 
portfolio will occur over an extended time period and may take several years 
from the inception of this asset class before the total allocation is becomes 
fully invested.  In order to reach the allocation target, a “committed” 
allocation up to 1.5 times the allocation is authorized as of the date the 
commitment is approved.  (revised by adding 05/09) 
 
Private Equity:  5.0% is the target of assets to be allocated within an 
acceptable range of 0.0% to 7.0% to private equity-oriented investments to 
provide the Fund with the potential to earn high rates of return relative to 
other asset classes, recognizing that private equity investments also generate 
commensurate risk levels.  Funding of committed capital in the private 
equity portfolio will occur over an extended time period and may take 
several years before the total allocation is becomes fully invested.  In order 
to reach the allocation target, a “committed” allocation up to 1.5 times the 
allocation is authorized as of the date the commitment is approved.  (revised by 
adding 03/09) 


 
FIXED INCOME 


 
Global Investment Grade (revised 07/99) Fixed Income: 15.0% (revised 09/14; 1/16) is 
the target of assets (revised 07/99) to be allocated within an acceptable range of 
13.0% to 17.0% (revised 09/14; 1/16) to an actively managed bond portfolio 
invested within a global universe (revised 07/99).  This portfolio will be primarily 
invested in domestic issues and will allow exposure to non-US dollar issues 
on an opportunistic basis, up to 20% (revised 07/99).  The Global Investment 
Grade Fixed Income segment is expected to provide returns above a market 
index by capturing yield opportunities around the world when US yields are 
not as favorable. 


 
 High Yield Fixed Income:  12.5% (revised 05/09,1/16) is the target of assets (revised 


07/99) to be allocated within an acceptable range of 10.5% to 14.5% (revised 







 7 


05/09; 1/16) to high yield fixed income (revised 07/99).  These are bonds which are 
rated below investment grade but have (revised 07/99) been issued by going 
concerns.  They display a low correlation to virtually all asset classes, 
thereby reducing overall portfolio volatility.  High yield bonds exhibit higher 
yield to maturity (revised 07/99) than investment grade bonds that improves the 
Fund’s net cash flow. 


 
 Credit Opportunities:  2.5% is the target of assets to be allocated within an 


acceptable range of 0.0% to 4.5% to credit opportunities.  These investments 
are viewed as a separate macro asset class group resulting from the 
diversification benefits relative to individual asset classes.  Despite higher 
correlations to stocks, credit products also generate higher levels of yield so 
sensitivity to economic growth drivers is substantially dampened offering 
some downside protection in stressful equity markets.  In strong equity 
markets, credit products can benefit even if bonds are struggling (added 09/14). 
 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 


 
 There is no specific allocation to cash equivalents.  It is recognized that 


residual cash (revised 07/99) can result from normal trading activity, and 
sufficient cash is held in the STIF to accommodate expense payments (revised 


07/99). 
 


NEXT GENERATION INVESTMENT MANAGER PROGRAM  
 


In December 2012, the ERF Board approved a 10% dedicated allocation to 
the Next Generation Investment Manager Program.  The Program may 
include all asset classes.  The purpose of the Program is to: generate 
investment returns by identifying earlier stage managers with strong 
performance; provide access to investment opportunities that may otherwise 
be overlooked; discover and cultivate the next generation of external 
portfolio management talent; and increase diversification among ERF 
managers. The criteria for Next Generation Investment Managers is defined 
by the Board. (added 07/15) 
 







 8 


SUMMARY OF ASSET ALLOCATION TARGETS AND RANGES 
 


 Target Minimum Maximum 
EQUITY    
Domestic Equity 15.0% 


(revised 09/14) 
13.0% 


(revised 09/14) 
17.0% 


(revised 09/14) 
    
International Equity 15.0% 


(revised 09/14) 
13.0% 


(revised 09/14) 
17.0% 


(revised 09/14) 
    
Global Equity (added 06/11) 5.0% 3.0% 


(revised 09/14) 
7.0% 


(revised 09/14) 
    
Global Low Volatility Equity 10.0% 


(added 09/14) 
8.0% 


(added 09/14) 
12.0% 


(added 09/14) 
    
Real Estate Investment Trusts 
(added 01/01) 


5.0% 
(revised 09/14) 


3.0% 
(revised 09/14) 


7.0% 
(revised 09/14) 


    
Public Real Assets (added 05/09) 15.0% 


(revised 09/14) 
13.0% 


(revised 09/14) 
17.0% 


(revised 09/14) 
    
Private Equity (added 03/09) 5.0% 


(added 03/09) 
0.0% 


(added 03/09) 
7.0% 


(added 03/09) 
    
TOTAL EQUITY 70.0%   
    
FIXED INCOME    
Fixed Income 15.0% 


(revised 09/14; 
01/16) 


13.0% 
(revised 09/14; 


01/16) 


17.0% 
(revised 09/14; 


01/16) 
    
High Yield 12.5% 


(revised 05/09; 
01/16) 


10.5% 
(revised 05/09; 


01/16) 


14.5% 
(revised 05/09; 


01/16) 
    
Credit Opportunities 2.5% 


(added 09/14) 
0.0% 


(added 09/14) 
4.5% 


(added 09/14) 
    
TOTAL FIXED INCOME 30.0%   
    
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 100.0%   


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 9 


 
E. REBALANCING TO THE ASSET ALLOCATION POLICY (revised 7/99) 
 
 An asset allocation review shall be conducted at least quarterly. This 


comparison shall be developed from the month end asset valuation obtained 
generally on line from the Fund’s custodian.  If this comparison reveals that 
an asset class is above the upper or below the lower boundary of the 
designated range, the Board shall direct the Executive Director to effect a 
reallocation of assets (except for private equity (added 03/09) and public real 
assets (added 05/09) ) to achieve the target. 


 
F. PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES 
 
 Long term objectives have been established against which the performance 


of the investment policy is to be measured.  Because capital markets 
fluctuate and given the duration of the liability stream, the viability of the 
asset allocation is to be judged over a period of a full market cycle which is 
generally three to five years.  The performance objectives are: 


 
1.  To avoid actuarial loss; 
 
 Match or exceed the actuarial interest rate assumption as adopted 


periodically by the Board (revised 07/99) to avoid an actuarial loss. 
 
2.  To match or exceed inflation; (revised 07/99) 
 
 Match or exceed inflation as measured by an appropriate Consumer 


Price Index, to ensure that public real asset growth maintains pace with 
real pay growth and cost of living adjustments, primary determinants of 
benefits and, therefore, pension costs. 


 
3. To add value by active management; (revised 07/99) 
 
 The value added by active management to the total fund Fund 


performance is intended to (revised 07/99) exceed a Board-approved policy-
weighted index over time that is calculated by weighting the appropriate 
indices according to asset allocation. 


 
G. GENERAL INVESTMENT MANAGER GUIDELINES 
 
 The investment management for the Fund is to be provided by external 


investment managers.  The guidelines for the managers are provided below: 
 
 1. Each manager shall operate under a set of guidelines specific to the 


strategic role its portfolio is to fulfill in the overall investment structure 
and any other applicable investment related policies as referred to in 
Section H, OTHER INVESTMENT RELATED POLICIES (revised 07/99). 


 







 10 


 2. A manager under contract to the Board must advise the Board in writing 
within 24 hours if at any time there is: 


 
  a. a significant change in investment philosophy; 
  b. a loss of one or more key management personnel; 
  c. a new portfolio manager on the Fund’s account; 
  d. a change in ownership structure of its firm; 
 e. any occurrence which might potentially impact the management, 


professionalism, integrity, or financial position of the investment 
management firm; or 


 f. a change in any other matter requiring notice in the contract 
between the investment manager and the Fund. 


 
 3. Sector and security selection, portfolio quality and timing of purchase 


and sales are delegated to the investment manager subject to the 
constraints within the manager’s specific guidelines. 


 
 4. Unless specifically permitted in the investment manager guidelines or 


other governing document (revised 07/99), the following transactions are 
prohibited: purchase of non-negotiable securities, short sales, selling on 
margin, puts, calls, straddles, options, or “letter” (restricted) stock. 


 
 5. Transactions that involve a broker acting as a “principal”, where such 


broker is also the investment manager who is making the transaction are 
prohibited. 


 
 6. Transactions will be made on a best execution basis, taking into 


consideration cost and prevailing market considerations. 
  
 7. The use of derivatives is prohibited unless specifically authorized in a 


manager’s individual guidelines.  Managers shall only be authorized to 
use derivatives if they can present a written detailed derivatives 
investment policy that addresses at a minimum the standard of care, the 
back office and accounting, valuation and reconciliation procedures, 
monitoring procedures and permitted uses and circumstances.  Further, 
managers shall specifically demonstrate an understanding of and 
processes to manage:  market, credit, liquidity, cash flow, basis, legal, 
settlement, operational and other pertinent risks associated with the use 
of derivatives. 


 
  The strategic objectives of the use of derivatives is to facilitate risk 


management and to manage the cost of investing in publicly-traded 
stocks and bonds.  Of the four basic strategies that can be achieved 
through the use of derivatives, only substitution and risk control are 
permitted.  Arbitrage and speculation are never permitted to be used as 
a strategy.  Any derivative transaction that results in the leveraging of 
the portfolio is strictly prohibited. 


 







 11 


  Derivatives can be divided into seven classes.  Two of these 
classesPermitted instruments include: futures contracts;s,  options on 
futures;, and warrants;, are prohibited investments except warrants that 
are attached to securities purchased.  The other five classes:  futures 
contracts, options;, currency forward contracts;, swaps;, and structured 
notes (revised 12/16)., are permitted when the manager is authorized to 
invest in and holds investments in the underlying cash market 
instrument. 


 
  The listing requirements for permitted derivatives are that they must be 


either exchange traded or traded over-the-counter. 
 
  Over-the-counter traded derivatives are subject to counter-party risk.  


Managers shall prepare, maintain, and review a detailed counter-party 
credit policy for non-exchange traded derivatives that outlines a 
standard of care in selecting appropriate counter-parties.  Counter-party 
requirements are as follows: 


 
a. Counter-party creditworthiness shall be equivalent to “investment 


grade” of “A3” as defined by Moody’s Investor Services or “A-“ 
by Standard and Poor’s.  The use of counter-parties holding a split 
rating with one of the ratings below A3/A- is prohibited.  Managers 
shall notify the Executive Director if a counter-party is 
downgraded below A3/A- while an instrument held in the portfolio 
is outstanding with that counter-party.  The use of un-rated 
counter-parties is prohibited unless that counter-party has a written 
unconditional guarantee from a rated counter-party.  The rated 
counter-party must meet the requirements listed above. (revised 01/07)    


 
b. For non-exchange traded derivatives, individual counter-party 


exposure, including the Fund’s master custodial bank, is limited to 
33% of the notional amount of the derivative exposure of the 
portfolio being managed for the Fund. 


 
c. Any entity acting as a counter-party shall be regulated in either the 


United States or the United Kingdom. 
 
d. The manager shall, where applicable and enforceable, use master 


agreements permitting the netting of counter-party exposures to 
minimize credit risk. 


 
e. Managers are prohibited from “name washing” where credit 


guarantees extend through to another party or parties, regardless of 
which party holds a higher rating. 


 
The Board may at its discretion in terms of time and content request 
reports from the manager on the use of derivatives in the Fund’s 
portfolio. (revised by adding 07/99) 







 12 


 
8. If a guideline is violated due to market events, actions, or conditions, 


the manager must immediately inform the Executive Director to 
determine a course of action.  This course of action will be based upon 
the best judgement recommendation of the manager and the Executive 
Director’s discussion with the investment consultant and Board 
members.  Correction of the violation may be postponed if it is deemed 
to be in the best interest of the Fund. (revised by adding 07/99) 


 
9. For purposes of the guidelines, (a) all percentages apply on a market 


value basis immediately after a purchase or initial investment and (b) 
any subsequent change in any applicable percentage resulting from 
market fluctuations or other changes in total assets does not require 
immediate elimination of any security from the Portfolio. (revised by adding 
07/99) 


 
 The individual managers will be judged according to benchmarks that reflect 


the objectives and characteristics of the strategic role their portfolio is to 
fulfill. 


 
H. OTHER INVESTMENT RELATED POLICIES (revised 07/99) 
 


The Board from time to time at its discretion may adopt investment related 
policies that address specific issues.  These issues may include but are not 
limited to specific asset classes, investment manager selection and 
monitoring, and others as may be deemed appropriate. (revised 07/99)  


 
I. GLOSSARY 
 
 Actuarial Interest Rate The actuaries assumed rate of investment 


return used to discount future benefits and 
amortize the unfunded liability. 


 
 Actuarial Liability The excess of the present value of all 


benefits payable under the plan Fund over 
the present value of future normal costs. 


 
Arbitrage When the characteristics of a derivative are 


more attractive than either the cash market 
instrument or another related derivative, 
then the first derivative is purchased, or the 
cash market instrument is swapped, to garner 
the short-term return potential from the 
derivative instrument alone.  This strategy is 
particularly useful to capture mis-pricing in 
the derivative instrument relative to either 
the cash market instrument or another 
derivative (revised 7/99). 







 13 


  
 Call Option An instrument that conveys the right, but not 


the obligation to buy a deliverable 
instrument at a specified price. 


 
 Correlation Correlation is a measure of the degree to 


which returns of asset classes move together. 
 


Currency Forward Contracts Currency forward contracts are permitted for 
use by managers who have permission to 
invest in the underlying or deliverable cash 
market instrument or whose mandate is to 
overlay a designated portfolio of deliverable 
cash market instruments. Foreign Exchange 
(FX) transactions may occur between 
foreign currencies (cross currencies) when 
made in anticipation of future sales or 
purchases of securities or when consistent 
with the investment manager’s currency 
management guidelines (revised 7/99). 


 
 Derivative An instrument that derives its value, 


usefulness and marketability from an 
underlying instrument which represents 
direct ownership of an asset or a direct 
obligation of an issuer, i.e. a “spot” or cash 
market instrument (revised 7/99). 


 
 Diversification The spreading of investment funds among 


classes of securities and localities in order to 
distribute the risk. 


 
Futures Contracts  Stock index futures, bond futures and 


currency futures contracts which are 
Commodities and Futures Trading 
Commission (CFTC) approved are permitted 
when the manager has permission to invest 
in the underlying or deliverable cash market 
instrument (revised 7/99). 


  
 Investment Manager 
 Guidelines Specifications for each manager’s oversight 


and investment of a designated portfolio of 
assets which are included in each of the 
investment managers’ contracts. 


 
 Investment Risk The risk associated with the uncertainty of a 


given investment’s future return.  The theory 







 14 


of capital market pricing maintains that 
varying degrees of investment risk should be 
rewarded with compensating returns. 


 
 Letter Stock Stock that is unregistered and sold directly 


to the purchaser, rather than through a public 
offering. 


 
 Liquidity The capacity of the market place to 


accommodate a given supply of and/or 
demand for a security without unreasonable 
price changes resulting. 


 
 Margin Collateral representing a portion of the 


notional amount of a transaction specified by 
the exchange clearing the transaction or the 
counter-party to the transaction. 


 
 Market Cycle The length of time for a market to move 


from peak to trough to peak, on average 
three to five years. 


 
 Market Value The value of securities and other 


investments at any specific point in time as 
reported by the custodian.  Market value 
differs from cost value in that cost is the 
original value (revised 7/99). 


 
 Non-negotiable 
 Securities Securities that cannot be re-sold and are 


privately held. 
 
 Options Contracts that give the holder the right (not 


obligation) to buy or sell a particular asset at 
a specified exercise price within a set time 
period. 


 
 Options on Futures These are prohibited. (revised 7/99) 
 
 Puts The right (not obligation) to sell a given 


security or portfolio of securities at a 
specified exercise price within a fixed time 
period. 


 
 Real Estate Investment 
 Trusts A real estate investment trust that purchases 


real property with investors’ money.  
Investors in an equity REIT earn dividend 







 15 


income from rental income earned by the 
REIT on property it owns.  The investors 
also participate in increases in value of the 
owned real estate. (added 05/01) 


 
 Risk Control When characteristics of the derivative 


instrument sufficiently parallel those of the 
cash market instrument, an opposite position 
in the derivative can be taken from the cash 
market instrument to alter the exposure to or 
the risk (volatility) of the cash instrument.  
This strategy is useful to manage risk without 
having to sell the cash instrument.  Sometimes 
referred to as ‘hedging’, the use of 
derivatives in this context means that there 
is at least a .95 correlation in price 
movement between the cash market or 
instrument and derivative instrument, over a 
rolling three year period.  The .95 correlation 
refers to the correlation between the proxy 
basket and the underlying portfolio (revised 


07/99). 
 
 Short Sales The sale of a security that is not owned by 


the investor, but rather is borrowed from a 
broker.  The investor eventually repays the 
broker in kind by purchasing the same 
security in a subsequent transaction. 


 
 Structured Notes  Structured notes (such as, but not limited to, 


inverse floaters) and mortgages are not 
considered derivatives for the purposes of this 
Policy, and are prohibited, unless expressly 
permitted by the manager’s investment 
guidelines contained within its contract with 
the Fund (revised 07/99). 


 
Substitution When the characteristics of the derivative 


sufficiently parallel those of the cash market 
instrument, the derivative may be substituted 
on a short-term basis for the cash market 
instrument, or on a longer-term basis to 
avoid withholding taxes.  This strategy is 
particularly useful when investing cash flow 
or liquidating investments, as the derivative 
can be used to manage more precisely 
market entry and exit points (revised 07/99). 


 







 16 


 Speculation When the characteristics of the derivative 
are the sole reason for its purchase or sale and 
an underlying naked cash position is taken in 
the portfolio.  This strategy also implies the 
leveraging of the portfolio which may create 
an obligation of value in excess of the value 
of that portfolio (revised 07/99). 


 
 Straddles An options strategy which involves buying 


both a call and a put on the same asset, with 
the options having the same exercise price 
and expiration date. 


  
Strategic Asset Allocation The long range asset allocation of a plan 


designed to obtain a reasonable long term 
total return consistent with the degree of risk 
assumed while emphasizing the preservation 
of long term capital. 


 
Swaps    Swaps which provide for the receipt of the rate 


of return of the permitted cash market 
instrument are allowed (revised 07/99). 


 
 Tactical Asset Allocation The procedural and implementation aspects 


of the strategic asset allocation to include 
periodic review and on-going adjustment to 
achieve goals of the plan. 


 
Yield to Maturity The single discount rate which sets the 


present value of all cash flows from a fixed 
income security equal to the current price.  It 
thus represents the internal rate of return of a 
particular fixed income investment. 


 
Warrants  Purchasing warrants separately is prohibited; 


however, warrants are permitted when 
attached to securities authorized for 
investment. 


 
 
 
 
 


[Remainder of page is intentionally blank.  Signature page follows.] 
 
 
 
 







 17 


Attest:     
 
 
By: _____________________________________ Date: _________________ 
Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
Chair 
 
 
By: _____________________________________ Date: _________________ 
Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
Executive Director 
 
 
Date last revised:  January 12, 2016December 13, 2016 July 14, 2015 


8475889.1/SP/20238/0101/112316 





		GENERAL investment policy






EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
 


INTERNATIONAL AND GLOBAL EQUITY ASSET CLASS  
INVESTMENT POLICY  


 
I. Purpose 
 
 To establish the investment policy and objectives for the international and global 


equity segments of the Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas (revised 


6/11) (“the “Fund”).  This policy in conjunction with the General Investment Policy 
(revised 6/11) allows for sufficient flexibility in the management process to capture 
investment opportunities, yet provide parameters that will ensure prudence and 
care in the execution of the international and global equity investment program. 


 
 The international and global equity segments are to be managed to: 
  
 a. enhance the Fund’s total return and increase the Fund’s assets through the 


exploitation of opportunities in both the non-dollar developed and emerging 
markets, 


 
 b. ensure protection of longer-term liabilities through equity investments, rather 


than less volatile fixed income investments which are better suited to protect 
shorter term liabilities. 


 
 c. provide diversification to the Fund’s overall investment program and reduce 


risk through diversifying the equity asset investments.  International and 
global equities display low correlation relative to other asset classes.  
Although international and global equities have a higher volatility than their 
US counterparts, they do display a low correlation to each other.  Emerging 
markets display even higher volatility, but have a low correlation to both 
developed non-US markets and US stocks.  By including both international 
and global developed and emerging markets equities in an investment 
portfolio, the Fund can boost its investment return while lowering the overall 
portfolio risk. 


 
 d.  moderate the level of risk in the total equity portfolio by incorporating a 


strategic allocation to portfolios with an explicit low volatility objective 
relative to the broader global equity market.  Low volatility strategies will 
generally have a higher allocation to sectors such as utilities, healthcare, and 
consumer staples which exhibit more stable fundamental characteristics and 
lower price variation (added 9/14). 


 
II. Strategic Objectives 
 
 A.  Primary Objective 







 2 


  
 To achieve the highest return possible consistent with the Board’s desire (1) to 


control asset volatility and covariance risk with assumed liabilities, (2) to 
emphasize opportunities to add value through active management, and (3) to 
reduce the home country bias. 


 
B. Secondary Objectives 


 
  1.  The Fund’s international and global equity investments are to achieve a 


rate of return that exceeds the rate of return of the Morgan Stanley Capital 
International All Country World ex. US Investable Market Index (IMI) 
(revised 6/11), and the Morgan Stanley Capital International All Country 
World Index respectively or other comparable (revised 6/11) indexes.  Each 
individual manager will be tasked with a net of fees performance target in 
their guidelines.   


 
 2. Collectively, international and global equity investments are expected to 


exceed the actuarial assumed rate of interest. 
 
III. Investment Approach 
 
 The investment approach shall be to identify equity opportunities across countries 


and industry sectors of developed markets and to invest opportunistically in 
emerging markets.  The Fund shall also have exposure to small capitalization non-
dollar equities. 


 
 The international and global equity managers will manage risk by  


a. lowering stock-specific risk through issue diversification 
b. diversifying the portfolio across markets 
c. diversifying the portfolio across industries 
d. judiciously using derivatives when permitted (revised 7/99) 


 
The use of derivatives is prohibited unless specifically authorized in a manager’s 
individual guidelines.  Managers shall only be authorized to use derivatives if they 
can present a written detailed derivatives investment policy that addresses at a 
minimum the standard of care, the back office and accounting, valuation and 
reconciliation procedures, monitoring procedures and permitted uses and 
circumstances.  Further, managers shall specifically demonstrate an understanding 
of and processes to manage:  market, credit, liquidity, cash flow, basis, legal, 
settlement, operational, and other pertinent risks associated with the use of 
derivatives. 
 
The strategic objectives of the use of derivatives are to facilitate risk management 
and to manage the cost of investing in publicly-traded stocks and bonds.  Of the 
four basic strategies that can be achieved through the use of derivatives, only 







 3 


substitution and risk control are permitted.  Arbitrage and speculation are never 
permitted to be used as a strategy.  Any derivative transaction that results in the 
leveraging of the portfolio is strictly prohibited. 
 
Derivatives can be divided into seven classes.  Permitted instruments include: 
futures contracts; options on futures; warrants;  options; currency forward 
contracts; swaps; and structured notes (revised 12/16)., Derivatives can be divided into 
seven classes.  Two of these classes, options on futures and warrants, are 
prohibited investments except warrants that are attached to securities purchased.  
The other five classes: futures contracts, options, currency forward contracts, 
swaps, and structured notes, are permitted when the manager is authorized to 
invest in and holds investments in the underlying cash market instrument. 
 
The listing requirements for permitted derivatives are that they must be either 
exchange traded or traded over-the-counter. 


 
Over-the-counter traded derivatives are subject to counter-party risk.  Managers 
shall prepare, maintain, and review a detailed counter-party credit policy for non-
exchange traded derivatives that outlines a standard of care in selecting 
appropriate counter-parties.  Counter-party requirements are as follows: 


 
a. counter-party creditworthiness shall be equivalent to “investment grade” of 


“A3” as defined by Moody’s Investor Services or “A-“ by Standard and 
Poor’s.  The use of counter-parties holding a split rating with one of the 
ratings below A3/A- is prohibited.  Managers shall notify the Executive 
Director if a counter-party is downgraded below A3/A- while an instrument 
held in the portfolio is outstanding with that counter-party.  The use of unrated 
counter-parties is prohibited unless that counter-party has a written 
unconditional guarantee from a rated counter-party.  The rated counter-party 
must meet the requirements listed above. (revised 01/07).. 


 
b. For non-exchange traded derivatives, individual counter-party exposure, 


including the Fund’s master custodial bank, is limited to 33% of the notional 
amount of the derivative exposure of the portfolio being managed for the 
Fund. 


 
c. Any entity acting as a counter-party shall be regulated in either the United 


States or the United Kingdom. 
 
d. The manager shall, where applicable and enforceable, use master agreements 


permitting the netting of counter-party exposures to minimize credit risk. 
d.  
e.  







 4 


f. Managers are prohibited from “name washing” where credit guarantees extend 
through to another party or parties, regardless of which party holds a higher 
rating. 


 
The Board may at its discretion in terms of time and content request reports from 
the manager on the use of derivatives in the Fund’s portfolio (revised 7/99). 


 
IV. Investment Process 
 
 General Strategies 
 
 1.  The international and global equity assets are to be managed across regions and 


market capitalizations (revised 6/11) in both developed and emerging markets to 
add value principally through country selection and stock selection. 


 
 2.  Exposure to emerging markets will be limited and controlled by individual 


investment manager guidelines, and they will be used to add value to 
developed market portfolios. 


 
V. Investment Implementation 
 
 A.  External Management 
  
 The Fund shall retain qualified registered money managers (or those which are 


exempt from registration, i.e. banks or insurance companies) in sufficient 
number to diversify manager risk, being careful not to over-diversify and 
thereby increase cost. 


 
 B.  Qualifications 
 
 The selected managers must have demonstrated expertise in all areas of 


international equity investments with espoused investment approaches 
consistent with this policy.  Selected managers must adhere to a set of 
guidelines which outline the strategic role their firm is to fulfill. 


 
 
Attest: 
 
 
By: _________________________________________ Date:  __________________ 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 Chair 
 
 
By: _________________________________________ Date:  __________________ 







 5 


 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 Executive Director 
 
 
Date last revised:  June 14, 2011December 13, 2016 September 9, 2014 





		I. Purpose

		V. Investment Implementation








DISCUSSION SHEET 
 


Employees’ Retirement Fund 
Board of Trustees Meeting 


 
 


December 13, 2016 
 
 
 
Issue: ERF Investment Manager Investment Guideline Revisions 
 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
Discussion: ERF staff has revised the investment manager guidelines 


to permit the use of futures contracts, as per the amended 
40A.  Language was written by ERF attorney, approved by 
investment managers, and included into the following eight 
investment manager’s guidelines: Aberdeen; Acadian 
Global Low Volatility; Acadian Small Cap; Advantus; AQR; 
BlackRock High Yield; Neuberger Berman; and T. Rowe 
Price. 


 
The language is as follows: 
 
Derivatives. 
 


“Notwithstanding any other language in (Investment Manager Name) 
investment management agreement with the Employees’ Retirement Fund of 
the City of Dallas effective (IMA effective date) and as thereafter amended, 
which may relate to (Investment Manager Name)’s investment authority in 
and use of derivatives of any type, the provisions of the Employees’ 
Retirement Fund General Investment Policy, dated December 13, 2016, at 
Paragraph G.7, found as (ERF General Investment Policy Exhibit), as may 
later be amended, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof and a 
part of the (IMA effective date) investment management agreement as if fully 
set forth in both, shall control (revised 12/16).” 


 
 


Recommendation: Approve the proposed guideline changes. Suggested motion 
for the approval is as follows:  Move to approve the 
investment manager guideline changes as noted above and 
authorize the Board Chair to sign.  





		December 13, 2016






City of Dallas-custody.amd4.derivatives.doc


10.22.14NTAC:3NS-20


AMENDMENT NUMBER 4
TO THE


AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER CUSTODY AGREEMENT
Between


EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF DALLAS
And


THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY


THE STATE OF TEXAS ) 
)


COUNTY OF DALLAS )


THIS AMENDMENT NUMBER 4 (“Amendment”), effective as of the ___ day of 
NovemberDecember, 2016, is made by and between the EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND of 
theOF THE CITY OF DALLAS (the “Fund”) and THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY
(“Custodian”).


RECITALS


WHEREAS, the Fund and Custodian entered into an Amended and Restated Master Custody 
Agreement, dated May 1, 2008, as amended from time to time (the “Agreement”); and


WHEREAS, the Fund represents that its enabling and governing document having long been 
embodied in Dallas City Code 40A was recently amended to permit the Fund to engage and 
authorize certain of its Investment Managers, by an amendment of such Investment Managers 
written investment management agreements and contractual guidelines, to permit such 
Investment Mangers to use derivatives under certain contractually permitted circumstances and 
restraints, and


WHEREAS, to facilitate any of the Fund’s Investment Managers whom the Fund authorizes to 
invest in and use derivatives, the Fund and Custodian desire to modify the Agreement to 
specifically provide for investments of Fund assets in futures, options on futures, options, swaps,
short sales and any other transactions that involve the pledging of or transfer of assets as margin, 
collateral, or otherwise, on the terms and conditions set forth herein;


WHEREAS, the Fund and Custodian desire to modify Exhibit 2, FEES FOR GLOBAL CUSTODY 
SERVICES AND ASSOCIATED APPLICATIONS SYSTEMS SOFTWARE, with the updated 
Exhibit 2 attached hereto;


NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to Section 33.18 of the Agreement, the Fund and Custodian agree 
as follows:


1. Article 5 of the Agreement is hereby modified by adding a new section 5.6, containing the 
language as follows:


5.6. Derivatives.  (a) In the event the Fund engages, or authorizes any Investment 
Manager to engage, in transactions involving financial futures, options on futures, options 
(including but not limited to put and call options), swaps, short sales, or any other transactions that 
involve the pledging of or transfer of assets to or from a Sub-Account as margin, collateral, or 
otherwise, Custodian shall:







2
NTAC:3NS-20


(i) transfer assets from such Sub-Account to a futures commission merchant, 
safekeeping bank, broker or other third party as directed by the Fund or the Investment 
Manager;


(ii) pay or demand variation margin in accordance with industry practice to or 
from the designated futures commission merchant or other third party based on daily 
marking to market calculations;


(iii) pledge assets as collateral in accordance with industry practice or as 
directed by the Fund or the Investment Manager;


(iv) subject to Custodian's consent, enter into such additional procedural, 
safekeeping, custody, or other agreements with brokers, futures commission merchants, 
safekeeping banks or others as the Fund or the Investment Manager directs; the Fund or 
the Investment Manager shall approve the form and content of any such additional 
agreements, and the provisions of such agreements shall control in the event of a conflict 
with this Agreement; and


(v) establish such collateral accounts (which may be sub-accounts of a 
Sub-Account), and transfer assets to or from and invest assets held in such collateral
accounts, as the Board or the investment managerInvestment Manager directs.


Except as otherwise agreed in writing, Custodian shall have no investment or custodial 
responsibility for any cash, securities or other assets transferred to or held by a futures 
commission merchant, safekeeping bank, broker or other third party in connection with any such 
transaction.


(b)   In the event that the Fund engages, or authorizes any Investment Manager to engage, 
in listed option transactions issued by the Options Clearing Corporation with respect to any 
Sub-Account, the Fund hereby acknowledges and accepts that the execution of additional 
documentation shall be required to authorize Custodian to act as escrow bank in connection with 
deposits held in escrow for such options transactions.


(c)   In the event that the Fund engages, or authorizes any Investment Manager to engage, 
in short sale transactions with respect to any Sub-Account, except as otherwise agreed in writing, 
Custodian's responsibilities shall be limited to putting the short positions on record, and accepting 
or transferring assets to or from the Sub-Account, as the Fund or the Investment Manager directs.  
Custodian shall have no responsibility to calculate realized gains or losses with respect to such 
transactions.


2. Pursuant to Section 7.2 and Section 33.18 of the Agreement, Exhibit 2, FEES FOR 
GLOBAL CUSTODY SERVICES AND ASSOCIATED APPLICATIONS SYSTEMS SOFTWARE, 
shall be modified and replaced with the attached updated Exhibit 2.  


There are no changes to any other provisions of the ContractAgreement which remain in full force 
and effect.







3
NTAC:3NS-20


[Signature Page Follows]







4
NTAC:3NS-20


APPROVED AS TO FORM: EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND
Rafael StoneGary B. Lawson OF THE CITY OF DALLAS
Foster Pepper PLLC
Strasburger & Price LLP


By _____________________ _________________________________
ERF Attorney Chair, Board of Trustees


THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY


By ______________________________


Title _____________________________







5
NTAC:3NS-20


EXHIBIT 2
FEE SCHEDULE


DOMESTIC AND GLOBAL CUSTODY


$125,000 annually


Third Party Foreign Exchange $35


Global market-associated and execution costs such as stamp duty, re-registration and delivery 
and receipt charges will be passed through at cost, if and as applicable.  These Charges are part 
of the normal and customary cost of doing business in global markets and do not apply to 
domestic accounts or transactions.   These costs, as well as the third party charges listed above, 
are recorded monthly, by manager, as a transaction and are not separately invoiced.


INVESTMENT RISK AND ANALYTICAL SERVICES


Included in Custody Fees


COMPLIANCE ANALYST – ENHANCED SERVICE LEVEL


An amount equal to; $1,500 per Sub-Account per annum; prorated on the basis of the actual 
number of days in the period during which such Sub-Account was receiving Enhanced 
Compliance Analyst services.   


The Fund will continue to be charged at the Core Compliance Analyst services rate of 
$25,000/annually, prorated until such time as the implementation to Enhanced Compliance 
Analyst Services is complete for all participating Sub-Accounts.


COLLECTIVE STIF


8 basis points


DERIVATIVES


1. Transaction Processing (applies to ETD & OTC)
Type Per Trans Fee
For ETD derivatives a charge applies to both buy and sell transactions
 All instruments $20
For OTC derivatives a charge applies to both buy and sell transactions
 Simple $60
 Moderate $75
 Exotic Fees based on product complexity and agreed 


on a case by case basis.
This includes initial trade capture, set up and settlement of initial cash movement.  


2. Position Maintenance (applies to OTC only)
Type Per Trans Fee
 Simple $250 per position per annum







6
NTAC:3NS-20


 Moderate $400 per position per annum
 Exotic Fees based on product complexity and agreed 


on a case by case basis.
Where prices are supplied by the manager, the charge is $200 per position per annum regardless 
of instrument.
Daily independent valuations 
Periodic position reconciliations 
Lifecycle events, such as processing rate resets
Standard accounting and reporting 


3. Collateral 
Type Per Movement
 Passive Collateral Processing or ETD 


margin / OTC collateral movement
$15 per movement


4. Active Collateral Management (outsourced service will not show up on invoices)
Active Collateral Management is an outsourcing activity where our client or their asset manager 
provides their credit agreements (between client and counterparty) and Northern Trust provides 
the following services.  


Type Annual Fee 
 Outsourcing activity Approximately $15,000 - $20,000 per credit 


support agreement per annum


Collateral Calls
Daily Collateral Calls are recorded and 
processed through the Collateral Dashboard
Respond to collateral demands made by 
counterparties
Instruct custodian to move funds (undisputed 
amount) or to expect to receive funds
Resolve disputes through reconciliations and 
valuation challenges


Reconciliations
Proactive reconciliations with counterparty
Periodic reconciliations with custodian


Corporate Actions
Corporate Action tool enables us to monitor 
and substitute Collateral before the Corporate 
Action takes place
Interest calculations on cash collateral


Reporting
Provide access to clients to view web-based 
collateral management system
Access to view live collateral management 
decision making activity
Northern Trust to provide daily/intra-day 
collateral reporting from Colline
Reports can be sent in Excel, PDF, and Text 
formats


SECURITIES LENDING (pursuant to separate agreement)


20%


TREASURY MANAGEMENT (per separate schedule)


The fee schedule reflects the accounts established at the time this schedule was prepared.  The 
Schedule will be applicable to all accounts that may be added from time to time and without 
modification of the Schedule, unless warranted by the nature of the new accounts.


Employees' Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas and The Northern Trust Company established 
this Fee Schedule with the assumption that there will be no substantive changes in the account 







7
NTAC:3NS-20


structure, composition of assets, reporting requirements or in the mix of services delivered by 
Northern Trust.  Further, thethis amended Schedule is predicated on the expectation that the 
client will use the products and services anticipated during its negotiation.  Should there be any 
significant changes or the client elects not to use one of the anticipated products or services, 
Northern Trust reserves the right to re-evaluate the fees.


This Fee Schedule is guaranteed through April 30, 2017. 


8502086.18502086.2/SP/20238/0101/120216







Document comparison by Workshare Compare on Friday, December 02, 2016 
10:08:08 AM


Input:


Docume
nt 1 ID


PowerDocs://SP/8502086/1


Descripti
on


SP-#8502086-v1-Dallas_ERF_Custody_Amend_4_-_fee_schedule_120
116_add_derivatives


Docume
nt 2 ID


PowerDocs://SP/8502086/2


Descripti
on


SP-#8502086-v2-Dallas_ERF_Custody_Amend_4_-_fee_schedule_120
116_add_derivatives


Renderi
ng set


Standard


Legend:


Insertion 


Deletion 


Moved from 


Moved to 


Style change 


Format change 


Moved deletion 


Inserted cell


Deleted cell


Moved cell


Split/Merged cell


Padding cell


Statistics:


Count


Insertions 12


Deletions 8


Moved from 0


Moved to 0


Style change 0


Format changed 0







Total changes 20








 
DISCUSSION SHEET 


 
 


Employees’ Retirement Fund 
Board of Trustees Meeting 


 
 


December 13, 2016 
 
 
 
Issue: Northern Trust Custody Agreement Amendment 
 
 
Attachment: Fourth Amendment to the Master Custody Agreement 


Custody Agreement 
 
 
Discussion: Northern Trust has made changes to the Master Custody 


Agreement to permit the use of futures contracts and 
include pricing information as per changes approved to 
Chapter 40A in November.  All language has been 
approved by ERF attorney and pricing information 
reviewed by Wilshire for market comparison.  


 
 
Recommendation: Approve the Fourth Amendment to the Master Custody 


Agreement.  Suggested motion for the approval is as 
follows: Move to approve the amendment as noted and 
authorize the Board Chair to sign. 





		December 13, 2016






 
 
 


DISCUSSION SHEET 
 
 


Employees’ Retirement Fund 
Board of Trustees Meeting 


 
 


December 13, 2016 
 
 
 
 
Issue: Proposed Revisions to Fixed Income Manager Guidelines 
 
Attachment:  Revisions to Fixed Income Manager Redlined Guidelines: 


 
• Aberdeen Asset Management 
• Advantus Capital Management 


 
Discussion: Two ERF fixed income managers requested a provision 


change in the guidelines regarding the average credit quality 
of the portfolio from AA- to A.  This change is primarily 
reflected in the downgrades that have occurred within 
corporates, impacting the broader portfolio. 


 
 Additionally, included in Aberdeen’s proposed guideline 


changes is their permitted use of 144A securities and 
maximum allocation; maximum allocations regarding the 
amount they may hold in below investment grade securities, 
and the holding period for these securities.       


    
Recommendation: Approve the proposed guideline changes. Suggested motion 


for the approval is as follows:  Move to approve the 
investment manager guideline changes for Aberdeen and 
Advantus as noted above and authorize the Board Chair to 
sign. 


 





		December 13, 2016































 
8513713.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


Exhibit 2 
ADVANTUS CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 


Guidelines 
for the 


 
Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 


 
 
I. Investment Philosophy, Policy & Process 


 
The Full Duration Fixed Income strategy utilizes a long-developed, bottom-up 
style to add value.  The process emphasizes the precise measurement and 
management of risk and return of individual securities relative to the benchmark.  
The foundation of the strategy is based on high-quality, proprietary research 
generated by the research team.  Critical to the philosophy is the belief that a 
bottom-up, fundamental process is the most effective way to produce consistent 
long-term alpha in an actively managed fixed income portfolio. 
 


II. Portfolio Characteristics 
 


A. Permitted Markets 
 


       Investments in securities that are defined as investment grade by Moody’s, 
Standard & Poor’s or Fitch’s are permitted.  Investment in split rated securities is 
permitted as long as one or more of the rating agencies has the security rated as 
investment grade.  See II D.  Portfolio Restrictions for exception limits to 
investment grade requirements. 
 


B. Permitted Instruments 
 
 Units of the Master Custodian STIF  
 U.S. Treasury Bonds  
 U.S. Government-Backed Mortgages  
   (Pass Throughs and CMOs, note restriction below) 
 Federal Agency Bonds 
 Corporate Bonds 
 Asset Backed Securities 
 Yankee Bonds 
 


C. Restricted Instruments 
  


The manager may not invest in the following securities without prior written 
approval: 


  
 (changed 6/17/13) 







 
8513713.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


2 


 Leveraged/Residual CMOs 
 Structured Notes 


 
D. Portfolio Restrictions 


 
Maximum Corporates 50%, based on market value 
Maximum Mortgages 50%, based on market value 
Duration Range relative to stated benchmark + 25% 
Average Credit Quality    AA- or Aa3A or A2 (revised 12/16) 
Minimum Credit Rating Per Issue   BBB- or Baa3 
Maximum allocation to a single issuer     5%, based on market value except 


government securities 
Maximum allocation to a single industry  20%, based on market value except 


government securities 
Maximum holdings in BB+ or Ba1 or lower 5% based on market value (added 4/09) 


Maximum holding period for individual 
securities rated BB+ or Ba1 or lower  270 days from date of downgrade (added 


4/09) 


Maximum allocation to 144A Private 
Placements without Registration Rights        10% based on market value (changed  


      6/18/13) 
 
 


E. Maximum Allocation to Derivatives 
 
1. Maximum allocation to derivatives is 10% of the entire account on a market 


value basis. 
 


III. General Investment Manager Guidelines and Requirements 
 


1. Investment Manager shall take note of and operate under the “Fixed Income 
Asset Class Policy for the Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas”, 
which specifies the strategic role its portfolio is to fulfill in the overall 
investment structure of the Fund, a copy of which is appended to, and is a part 
of, these guidelines and objectives. 


 
2. Purchases and sales, security selection, and portfolio implementation of 


investment strategies are delegated to the discretion of the investment 
manager.  


 
3. The following transactions are prohibited:  purchase of non-negotiable 


securities, short sales, stock and bond transactions on margin, straddles, 
options, leverage, or letter stock.  


 
4. Derivatives.  


 


Formatted: Font: 8 pt


Formatted: Body Text Indent 2, Justified, Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 3 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:  0.75" +
Indent at:  0.75"


Formatted: Font color: Black







 
8513713.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


3 


 Notwithstanding any other language in the Advantus Capital 
Management’s Iinvestment Mmanagement Aagreement forwith the Employees’ 
Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas effective April 26, 2007 and as thereafter 
amended, which may relate to Advantus Capital Management’s’ investment 
authority in and use of derivatives of any type, the provisions of: 
  


a.  the Employees’ Retirement Fund General Investment Policy, dated 
December 13, 2016, at Paragraph G.7, found as Exhibit 2-A, and 
  the Employees’ Retirement Fund Fixed Income Asset Class 
Investment Policy, found at Exhibit 2-B,X,  
  


 as may later be amended which isare both attached hereto and made a part 
hereof and a part of the April 26, 2007 investment management agreement 
as if fully set forth in the body of this Agreementboth, shall control (revised 


12/16). 
  
2. The use of derivatives is prohibited unless specifically authorized in a 
managers’ individual guidelines. Managers shall only be authorized to use 
derivatives if they can present a written detailed derivatives investment policy 
that addresses at a minimum the standard of care, the back office and 
accounting, valuation and reconciliation procedures, monitoring procedures 
and permitted uses and circumstances.  Further, managers shall specifically 
demonstrate an understanding of and processes to manage:  market, credit, 
liquidity, cash flow, basis, legal, settlement, operational and other pertinent 
risks associated with the use of derivatives. 


 
The strategic objectives of the use of derivatives is to facilitate risk 
management and to manage the cost of investing in publicly-traded stocks and 
bonds.  Of the four basic strategies that can be achieved through the use of 
derivatives, only substitution and risk control are permitted.  Arbitrage and 
speculation are never permitted to be used as a strategy. Any derivative 
transaction that results in the leveraging of the portfolio is strictly prohibited. 


 
Derivatives can be divided into seven classes.  Two of these classes, options 
on futures and warrants, are prohibited investments except warrants that are 
attached to securities purchased.  The other five classes, futures contracts, 
options, currency forward contracts, swaps, and structured notes, are permitted 
when the manager is authorized to invest in and holds investments in the 
underlying cash market instrument. 


 
The listing requirements for permitted derivatives are that they must be either 
exchange traded or traded over-the-counter. 
 
Over-the-counter traded derivatives are subject to counter-party risk. 
Managers shall prepare, maintain, and review a detailed counter-party credit 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.69",  No bullets or numbering


Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b,
c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" +
Indent at:  1.25"


Formatted: Not Highlight


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25",  No bullets or numbering


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.69", Hanging:  0.31",  No bullets
or numbering


Formatted: Font: 8 pt


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.69",  No bullets or numbering







 
8513713.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


4 


policy for non-exchange traded derivatives that outlines a standard of care in 
selecting appropriate counter-parties.  Counter-party requirements are as 
follows: 


 
a. Counter-party creditworthiness shall be equivalent to 


“investment grade” of “A3” as defined by Moodys Investor 
Services or “A-“ by Standard and Poor’s.  the use of counter-
parties holding a split rating with one of the ratings below 
A3/A- is prohibited.  Managers shall notify the Administrator if 
a counter-party is downgraded below A3/A- while an 
instrument held in the portfolio is outstanding with that 
counter-party unless that counter-party has a written 
unconditional guarantee from a rated counter-party.  The rated 
counter-party must meet the requirements listed above.  The 
use of unrated counter-parties is prohibited. 


 
b. For non-exchange traded derivatives, individual counter-party 


exposure, including the Fund’s master custodial bank, is 
limited to 33% of the notional amount of the derivative 
exposure of the portfolio being managed for the Fund. 


 
c. Any entity acting as a counter-party shall be regulated in either 


the United States or the United Kingdom. 
 
d. The manager shall, where applicable and enforceable, use 


master agreements permitting the netting of counter-party 
exposures to minimize credit risk. 


 
e. Managers are prohibited from “name washing” where credit 


guarantees extend through to another party or parties, 
regardless of which party holds a higher rating. 


 
The Board may at its discretion in terms of time and content request reports 
from the manager on the use of derivatives in the Fund’s portfolio. 


 
5. Transactions that involve a broker acting as a "principal" where such broker is 


also the investment manager who is making the transaction is prohibited. 
 
6. Transactions shall be executed at a reasonable cost, taking into consideration 


prevailing market conditions and services and research provided by the 
executing broker. 


 
7. Each investment manager shall have full responsibility for the exercise of all 


rights appurtenant to any securities under its management, including 
responsibility to vote proxies, except to the extent otherwise directed by the 







 
8513713.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


5 


Trustees.  Investment managers shall maintain records of proxy votes and 
make them available for inspection upon reasonable request. 


 
8. Performance objectives are to be met on a net of fees basis. 
 
9. Any investment or action with respect to an investment not expressly allowed 


is prohibited, unless presented to and approved prospectively by the Trustees 
of the Dallas Employees’ Retirement Fund.  All guidelines must be adhered to 
by the manager.  If from time to time an exception to the guidelines shall be 
deemed appropriate by a manager, it must seek review and approval by the 
Trustees prior to making such an exception.  However, if a guideline is 
violated due to market events, actions, or conditions, the manager must 
immediately inform the Administrator to determine a course of action.  This 
course of action will be based upon the best judgement recommendation of the 
manager and the Administrator’s discussion with the investment consultant 
and Board members.  Correction of the violation may be postponed if it is 
deemed to be in the best interest of the Fund. 


 
10. Should any temporary or permanent change regarding a manager occur, the 


manager shall notify the Trustees immediately via phone.  A letter, detailing 
the circumstances of the change and the possible impact to the portfolio 
management, will be faxed immediately to the Trustees.  Changes include, but 
are not limited to:  a) a significant change in investment philosophy, b) a loss 
of one or more key management personnel, c) a new portfolio manager on the 
account, d) a change in ownership structure of the firm, or e) any occurrence 
which might potentially impact the management, professionalism, integrity or 
financial position of the investment manager. 


 
11. For purposes of the guidelines, (a) all percentages apply on a market value 


basis immediately after a purchase or initial investment and (b) any 
subsequent change in any applicable percentage resulting from market 
fluctuations or other changes in total assets does not require immediate 
elimination of any security from the Portfolio.  


 
V. Performance Objective 
 


Exceed the return of the Lehman Aggregate Bond Index by 50 basis points 
annually net of the base fee over a 5 year period. 


 
Acknowledged: Advantus Capital Management 
 
         By: ________________________ Date: __________________ 
   
 
 







 
8513713.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


6 


  
 Dallas Employees Retirement Fund 
 
         By: ________________________ Date: __________________ 
 
 
Approved by Board:  March 13, 2007 
 
Date last revised:  April 14, 2009 
Amended June 18th as per Board approval on June 11th, 2013December 13, 2016 





		I. Investment Philosophy, Policy & Process

		II. Portfolio Characteristics



		By: ________________________ Date: __________________

		GENERAL investment policy












 
 
 


DISCUSSION SHEET 
 
 


Employees’ Retirement Fund 
Board of Trustees Meeting 


 
 


December 13, 2016 
 
 
 
 
Issue: Proposed Revisions to Investment Guidelines for Small Cap 


Managers 
 
Attachment: Revisions to the Investment Guidelines for Small Cap 


Managers: 
 


1. Acadian Asset Management 
2. Channing Capital Management 
3. Redwood Investments 
4. Systematic Financial Management 


 
Discussion: ERF Small Cap managers have requested the ability to 


invest in REITS.  The request was reviewed by both ERF 
Staff and Wilshire.  In addition, parameters have been 
placed around managers’ permitted sector concentration, 
and ability to reclassify securities by sector.    


    
Recommendation: Approve the proposed manager guideline changes. 


Suggested motion for the approval is as follows:  Move to 
approve the revisions to the investment manager guidelines 
as noted above and authorize the Board Chair to sign. 


 





		December 13, 2016






 
8513727.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


 
 


Exhibit A 
ACADIAN ASSET MANAGEMENT LLC 


International Equity Management 
for the 


Employees' Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas (revised 7/99) 
 
 
Investment Approach - International Small Company Equity 
Acadian Asset Management LLC's (Acadian) investment philosophy for the active 
international , value-focused, small-capitalization strategy will attempt to apply a structured 
and disciplined approach to both country selection and stock selection. The firm will 
utilize a multi-factor value-oriented methodology. Acadian 's investment process is broken 
down into six primary components. These are: 


 
Proprietary Databases - Acadian has financial data on more than 43,000 companies 
from 50 countries. This database has been developed from a number of sources, including 
the Morgan Stanley Capital International Perspective service, International l/B/E/S, 
BARRA, and others. 


 
Systematic Country Valuation - Using proprietary dividend-discount models which 
evaluate each country's market in aggregate as well as other predictive factors, Acadian 
ranks all major world stock markets according to their relative attractiveness. The other 
variables utilized include measures of the equity market risk premium relative to other 
asset classes, price momentum factors, and market volatility. 


 
Disciplined Stock Selection - Acadian considers the following quantitative factors to 
rank all companies in the database: 


 
• Country valuation ranking 
• P/E, P/B (Price/earnings, price/book), and price/sales ratios 
• Small-capitalization effect 
• Recent changes in analysts' earnings forecasts 
• Price momentum characteristics 
• Dividend-discount model valuation 


 
Portfolio Optimization - The optimization process considers the following factors to 
select a portfolio: 


 
• Client objectives and benchmark 
• Expected total investment for each security 
• Price correlation of each security with all other securities 
• Estimated transaction costs and taxes 
• Current holdings 
• Distribution of portfolio by country and industry group 







2  8513727.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


 
 
 
Quality Control Review - After optimization, the proposed portfolio will be reviewed to 
determine if any preliminary selections should be deleted because of recent 
developments which cannot be included in quantitative models. 


 
Cost Effective Trading - Acadian will use a variety of trading techniques including 
program trading as well as trading directly with index funds and other large institutional 
investors and money managers to minimize total transaction costs. 


 
After the final ranking of securities within each country weighting, the output of the 
optimization process takes into consideration the transaction costs required to move in 
and out of a given stock. A selling discipline is automatically structured into Acadian's 
approach through the forcing out of securities whose valuation attractiveness has fallen 
in the portfolio optimization process. 


 


Portfolio Characteristics 
Number of holdings 
Maximum allocation to a single issue 
Maximum cash allocation 
 
Maximum allocation to a single economic 
sector 
Average Turnover 
Weighted Average Market Capitalization 


 
300-500 in total (revised 05/09) 
3.5%  
5% 
 


 + 10% benchmark sector weight      
(revised 12/16) 
50 - 150% 
Less than or approximately equal 
to the Morgan Stanley Capital 
International All Countries World 
Ex US Small Cap Index (revised 
05/09) 


 


The characteristics above are representative of a portfolio with your firm's designated 
investment specialization. The characteristics are not intended to hinder the manager 
or inhibit its ability to implement its investment process and disciplines. The portfolio 
will be monitored to identify any significant deviations that may indicate a material 
change in investment approach. The manager acknowledges that the client's objective 
with this portfolio is to gain exposure to the small capitalization segment of the 
developed non U.S. markets. 


 
Authorized Investments 
1. Common stocks 
2. Preferred stocks 
3. Master Custodian Short-term Investment Fund (STIF) 
4. Non-US currency of permitted markets including the EURO (added 11/98) 
5. Derivatives are to be used for risk control. Derivative classes permitted are currency 


forward and futures contracts held in long or short positions for the purpose of 
managing currency risk.  Currency speculation is prohibited. (added 7/99) 


6. Depository Receipts (added 1012011) 
7. Dutch certificates 
7.8. REITs (added 12/16) 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"


Formatted: Font: 8 pt


Formatted: Font color: Auto, Character scale: 100%


Formatted: Font: 8 pt







3  8513727.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


 
 
 
 


Permitted Markets 
 
The manager will invest in those countries included in the Morgan Stanley Capital All 
Countries World Ex US Small Cap Index, and may invest up to index weighting plus 8% 
(revised 05/09) of the portfolio in emerging markets countries. Investments in Russia 
(revised 1012011) are limited to ADRs (American Depository Receipts, receipts on shares 
of a foreign-domiciled corporation, held by a U.S. bank) and GDRs (Global Depository 
Receipts, receipts on shares of a foreign-domiciled corporation, issued in more than 
one country), that trade on the Hong Kong, London, or U.S. exchanges. (added 3/05) 


 
General Investment Manager Guidelines and Requirements 


 
1. Acadian shall take note of and operate under the "International Equity Asset Class 


Policy for Employees' Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas" (revised 7/99), which 
specifies the strategic roles the portfolio is to fulfill in the overall investment structure 
of the Fund, a copy of which is appended to, and is part of these guidelines and 
objectives. 


 
2. Purchases and sales, security selection, and portfolio implementation of investment 


strategies are delegated to the discretion of the investment manager. (revised 7/99) 
 
3. The following transactions are prohibited: purchase of non-negotiable securities , short 


sales, stock and bond transactions on margin, straddles , options, leverage or letter 
stock, and China A share (revised 10/2011). 


 
4. Transactions that involve a broker acting as a "principal" where such broker is also 


the investment manager who is making the transaction is prohibited. 
 
5. Transactions shall be executed at a reasonable cost, taking into consideration 


prevailing market conditions and services and research provided by the executing 
broker. At the discretion of the Board, the manager will prepare a report detailing all 
transaction costs. (added 7/99) 


 
6. Each investment manager shall have full responsibility for the exercise of all rights 


appurtenant to any securities under its management, including responsibility to vote 
proxies, except to the extent otherwise directed by the Trustees. Investment managers 
shall maintain records of proxy votes and make them available for inspection upon 
reasonable request. 


 
7. Performance objectives are to be met on a net of fee basis. 







4  8513727.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


 
 
 
 


8. Any investment or action with respect to an investment not expressly allowed is 
prohibited, unless presented to and approved prospectively by the Trustees. All 
guidelines must be adhered to by the external money managers; however, if from 
time to time an exception to the guidelines shall be deemed appropriate by a manager, 
it may seek review and approval by the Trustees to make such an exception. However, 
if a guideline is violated due to market events, actions, or conditions, the manager 
must immediately inform the Administrator to determine a course of action. This 
course of action will be based upon the best judgement recommendation of the 
manager and the Administrator's discussion with the investment consultant and Board 
members. Correction of the violation may be postponed if it is deemed to be in the 
best interest of the Fund (added 7/99). 


 
9. Should any temporary or permanent change regarding a manager occur, the 


manager shall notify the Administrator immediately by phone. A letter, detailing the 
circumstances of the change and the possible impact to the portfolio management, 
will be faxed immediately to the Administrator. Changes include but are not limited 
to: a.) a significant change in investment philosophy, b.) a loss of one or more key 
management personnel, c.) a new portfolio manager on the account, d.) a change in 
ownership structure of the firm, or e.) any occurrence which may potentially impact 
the management, professionalism, integrity, or financial position of the investment 
manager. 


 
10. Derivatives.  


 
 Notwithstanding any other language in the Acadian Asset Management LLC’s 
iInvestment mManagement aAgreement forwith the Employees’ Retirement Fund of 
the City of Dallas effective February 14, 1989 which may relate to Acadian Asset 
Management LLC’s investment authority in and use of derivatives of any type, the 
provisions of: 
 
a.  the Employees’ Retirement Fund General Investment Policy, dated December 


13, 2016, at Paragraph G.7 (starting on page 10 thereof), found as Exhibit XA-1, 
and 


b. The Employees’ Retirement Fund International and Global Equity Asset Class 
Investment Policy found at Exhibit A-2 


 
as may later be amended, which isare both attached hereto and made a part 
hereof and of the February 14, 1989 investment management agreement as if 
fully set forth in boththe body of this Agreement, shall control (revised 12/16).  


 
10. The use of derivatives is prohibited unless specifically authorized in a manager's 
individual guidelines. Managers shall only be authorized to use derivatives if they can 
present a written detailed derivatives investment policy that addresses at a minimum the 
standard of care, the back office and accounting, valuation and reconciliation procedures, 
monitoring procedures and permitted uses and circumstances.  Further, managers shall 
specifically demonstrate an understanding of and processes to manage: market, credit, 
liquidity, cash flow, basis, legal, settlement, operational, and other pertinent risks 
associated with the use of derivatives. 


- 
Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.69", Hanging: 
0.23", Right:  0.08", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.02 li,
Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … +
Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.11" +
Indent at:  0.34", Tab stops:  0.93", Left


Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.92",  No bullets or
numbering


Formatted


Formatted: Font color: Custom Color(RGB(22,22,22))


Formatted: Font color: Custom Color(RGB(22,22,22))


Formatted: Right, Indent: Left:  1.36",  No bullets or
numbering


Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  1.36",  No bullets or
numbering


Formatted: Font: 8 pt


Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering







5  8513727.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


 
The strategic objectives of the use of derivatives are to facilitate risk management and to 
manage the cost of investing in publicly-traded stocks and bonds. Of the four basic strategies that 
can be achieved through the use of derivatives, only substitution and risk control are permitted. 
Arbitrage and speculation are never permitted to be used as a strategy. Any derivative 
transaction that results in the leveraging of the portfolio is strictly prohibited. 
 
Derivatives can be divided into seven classes. Two of these classes, options on futures and 
warrants, are prohibited investments except warrants that are attached to securities purchased. 
The other five classes, futures contracts, options, currency forward contracts, swaps, and 
structured notes, are permitted when the manager is authorized to invest in and holds 
investments in the underlying cash market instrument. 


Formatted: Body Text, Right:  0.08", Space Before:  0
pt, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.02 li, Tab stops:  0.93", Left







6  8513727.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


 
 
 
The listing requirements for permitted derivatives are that they must be either exchange traded or 
traded over-the-counter. 
 
Over-the-counter traded derivatives are subject to counter-party risk.  Managers shall prepare, 
maintain, and review a detailed counter-party credit policy for non- exchange traded derivatives that 
outlines a standard of care in selecting appropriate counter-parties.  Counter-party requirements are 
as follows: 
 
a. Counter-party creditworthiness shall be equivalent to "investment grade" of "A3" as 
defined by Moody's Investor Services or "A-"by Standard and Poor's. The use of counter-parties 
holding a split rating with one of the ratings below A3/A- is prohibited.   Managers shall notify the 
Administrator if a counter-party is downgraded below A3/A- while an instrument held in the 
portfolio is outstanding with that counter-party. The use of unrated counter-parties is prohibited. 
 
b. For non-exchange traded derivatives, individual counter-party exposure, including the 
Fund's master custodial bank, is limited to 33% of the notional amount of the derivative exposure 
of the portfolio being managed for the Fund. 
 
c. Any entity acting as a counter-party shall be regulated in either the United States or 
the United Kingdom. 
 
d. The manager shall, where applicable and enforceable , use master agreements 
permitting the netting of counter-party exposures to minimize credit risk. 
 
e. Managers are prohibited from "name washing" where credit guarantees extend 
through to another party or parties, regardless of which party holds a higher rating. 
 
The Board may at its discretion in terms of time and content request reports from the manager 
on the use of derivatives in the Fund's portfolio (added 7/99). 
 


11. For purposes of the guidelines, (a) all percentages apply on a market value basis 
immediately after a purchase or initial investment and (b) any subsequent change in 
any applicable percentage resulting from market fluctuations or other changes in total 
assets does not require immediate elimination of any security from the Portfolio. 
(revised by adding 7/99) 


- 







7  8513727.2/SP/20238/0101/120716 


l"-.., l- 1 1 A 1 0 : J 9  R C V D 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Performance Objectives 


 
Exceed the return of the Morgan Stanley Capital International All Countries World Ex 
US Small Cap Index (revised 05/09) annually by 2% (revised 3/05) net of fees, over a full 
market cycle (normally three to five years). 


 
Acknowledged: Acadian Asset Management, LLC. 


 
 
 By: _____________________ Date:    
 
 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 
 By: _____________________ Date:    
 


Date last revised: December 13, 2016 
 
  


Formatted: Left





		Exhibit A

		ACADIAN ASSET MANAGEMENT LLC

		Investment Approach - International Small Company Equity

		Permitted Markets

		General Investment Manager Guidelines and Requirements

		Performance Objectives

		GENERAL investment policy



		I. Purpose

		V. Investment Implementation












 1 


EXHIBIT B 
 


PORTFOLIO INVESTMENT GUIDELINES AND RESTRICTIONS 
 


CHANNING CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
Domestic Equity Management for 


Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 
 
Investment Approach  
 
Channing utilizes a fundamental, bottom-up value investment philosophy focusing on 
undervalued and neglected small-cap stocks with a long-term, quality, and value orientation; 
target stocks trading at 30% or greater discount to intrinsic value at the time of purchase. 
 
Typical Portfolio Characteristics 
 


1. Market capitalization range (generally) $300 million to $2 billion 
2. Number of holdings 35 – 50 


3. Maximum investment in a single issue at market value:       
 
5% 


4. Maximum allocation to a single economic sector: 


 
2x benchmark weight, 
excluding financials, 
which are limited to + 
10% the benchmark sector 
weight (revised 12/16)  


 
  5. No more than 10% (at market value) is typically 


invested in a single industry or theme unless the 
benchmark weight is over 10%, in which case the 
maximum allocation is the benchmark weight plus 5%; 
No more than 10.0% (at market value) is typically 
invested in a single industry or themethe benchmark 
weight +5% in a single industry (revised 12/16) 


 
6. Maximum cash allocation at market value: 5% 
7. Annual turnover 50-70% 
  


The characteristics above are only representative of a portfolio with your firm’s designated 
investment specialization.  The characteristics are not intended to hinder the manager or inhibit 
its ability to implement its investment process and disciplines.  However, the portfolio will be 
monitored to identify any significant deviations that may indicate a material change in 
investment approach. 
 


Formatted: Font: 8 pt


Formatted: Font: 8 pt







 2 


Authorized Investments 
 
1. Common stocks listed on U.S. exchanges or traded through NASDAQ (revised 12/16) with the 


exception of real estate securities. 


2. Master Custodian’s Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF). 


 
 
General Investment Manager Guidelines and Requirements 
 
1. The manager shall take note of and operate under the “Domestic Equity Asset Class Policy 


for the Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas”, which specifies the strategic 
roles the portfolio is to fulfill in the overall investment structure of the Fund, a copy of 
which is appended to, and is part of these guidelines and objectives. 


 
2. Purchases and sales, security selection, and portfolio implementation of investment 


strategies are delegated to the discretion of the investment manager. 
 


3. The following transactions are prohibited:  purchase of non-negotiable securities, short 
sales of stocks and bonds, stock and bond transactions on margin, straddles, options, 
leverage, or letter stock. 


 
4. The use of derivatives is prohibited. 
 
5. Transactions that involve a broker acting as a "principal" where such broker is also the 


investment manager who is making the transaction is prohibited. 
 
6. Transactions shall be executed at a reasonable cost, taking into consideration prevailing 


market conditions and services and research provided by the executing broker.  At the 
discretion of the Board, the manager will prepare a report detailing all transaction costs and 
any soft dollar payments and usage. 


 
7. Each investment manager shall have full responsibility for the exercise of all rights 


appurtenant to any securities under its management, including responsibility to vote 
proxies, except to the extent otherwise directed by the Trustees.  Investment managers shall 
maintain records of proxy votes and make them available for inspection upon reasonable 
request. 


 
8. Performance objectives are to be met on a net of fees basis. 


 
9. Any investment or action with respect to an investment not expressly allowed is prohibited, 


unless presented to and approved prospectively by the Trustees.  All guidelines must be 
adhered to by the manager.  If from time to time an exception to the guidelines shall be 
deemed appropriate by a manager, it may seek review by submitting a request in writing to 
the Administrator for approval by the Trustees to make such an exception. However, if a 
guideline is violated due to market events, actions, or conditions, the manager must 
immediately inform the Administrator to determine a course of action.  This course of 


Formatted: Font: 8 pt







 3 


action will be based upon the best judgement recommendation of the manager and the 
Administrator’s discussion with the investment consultant and Board members.  Correction 
of the violation may be postponed if it is deemed to be in the best interest of the Fund. 


 
10. Should any temporary or permanent change regarding a manager occur, the manager shall 


notify the Administrator immediately via phone.  A letter, detailing the circumstances of 
the change and the possible impact to the portfolio management, will be faxed immediately 
to the Administrator.  Changes include, but are not limited to:  a) a significant change in 
investment philosophy, b) a loss of one or more key management personnel, c) a new 
portfolio manager on the account, d) a change in ownership structure of the firm, or e) any 
occurrence which might potentially impact the management, professionalism, integrity or 
financial position of the investment manager. 


 
11. For purposes of the guidelines, (a) all percentages apply on a market value basis 


immediately after a purchase or initial investment and (b) any subsequent change in any 
applicable percentage resulting from market fluctuations or other changes in total assets 
does not require immediate elimination of any security from the Portfolio. 


 
Performance Objective 
 
Outperform the Russell 2000 Value Index by 1.25% per annum (revised 9/15) over a full market 
cycle (three to five years), net of fees. 
 
 
Acknowledged: Channing Capital Management, LLC. 


 
 
 By: _____________________ Date:    
 
 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 
 By: _____________________ Date:    
 


 
Date last revised: December 13, 2016 


 
 
 
 
 





		EXHIBIT B

		Typical Portfolio Characteristics






1  


EXHIBIT B 
 


REDWOOD INVESTMENTS, LLC 
Domestic Equity Management for 


Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 
 
Investment Approach  
 
Redwood utilizes a bottom-up stock selection approach that combines fundamental and next 
generation quantitative techniques.  The investment team seeks companies with disruptive 
business models creating new markets or taking market share from entrenched leaders.   
 
Typical Portfolio Characteristics 


 
1. Market capitalization range $300 million to $4 billion 
2. Number of holdings 45-60 


3. Maximum investment in a single issue at market value:       
 
5% 


4. Maximum allocation to a single economic sector:* 


 
30%+ 10% benchmark 
sector weight (revised 12/16)  


 
  5. No more than 10.0% (at market value) is typically invested in a 


single industry or theme (revised 12/16) 
 
6. Maximum cash allocation at market value: 5% 
7. Annual turnover 90-110% 
8. Target tracking error range 5-7% 


 
* Manager must proactively request a waiver on the guideline compliance on a ‘case by case’ 
basis in the case where the manager wants to re-classify a security (added 12/16). 
 
The characteristics above are only representative of a portfolio with your firm’s designated 
investment specialization.  The characteristics are not intended to hinder the manager or inhibit 
its ability to implement its investment process and disciplines.  However, the portfolio will be 
monitored to identify any significant deviations that may indicate a material change in 
investment approach. 
 
Authorized Investments 
 
1. Common stocks listed on U.S. exchanges or traded through NASDAQ (revised 12/16).  Real 


estate securities are prohibited. 


1.  


2. Master Custodian’s Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF). 


Formatted: Font: 8 pt


Formatted: Font: 8 pt


Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt,
Font color: Auto


Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt,
Font color: Auto


Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt,
Font color: Auto


Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 8 pt,
Font color: Auto


Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt,
Font color: Auto


Formatted: Font: 8 pt


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25",  No bullets or
numbering







2  


 
 
 
 
 
 
General Investment Manager Guidelines and Requirements 
 
1. The manager shall take note of and operate under the “Domestic Equity Asset Class Policy 


for the Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas”, which specifies the strategic 
roles the portfolio is to fulfill in the overall investment structure of the Fund, a copy of 
which is appended to, and is part of these guidelines and objectives. 


 
2. Purchases and sales, security selection, and portfolio implementation of investment 


strategies are delegated to the discretion of the investment manager. 
 


3. The following transactions are prohibited:  purchase of non-negotiable securities, short 
sales of stocks and bonds, stock and bond transactions on margin, straddles, options, 
leverage, or letter stock. 


 
4. The use of derivatives is prohibited. 


 
5. Transactions that involve a broker acting as a "principal" where such broker is also the 


investment manager who is making the transaction is prohibited. 
 
6. Transactions shall be executed at a reasonable cost, taking into consideration prevailing 


market conditions and services and research provided by the executing broker.  At the 
discretion of the Board, the manager will prepare a report detailing all transaction costs and 
any soft dollar payments and usage. 


 
7. Each investment manager shall have full responsibility for the exercise of all rights 


appurtenant to any securities under its management, including responsibility to vote 
proxies, except to the extent otherwise directed by the Trustees.  Investment managers shall 
maintain records of proxy votes and make them available for inspection upon reasonable 
request. 


 
8. Performance objectives are to be met on a net of fees basis. 


 
9. Any investment or action with respect to an investment not expressly allowed is prohibited, 


unless presented to and approved prospectively by the Trustees.  All guidelines must be 
adhered to by the manager.  If from time to time an exception to the guidelines shall be 
deemed appropriate by a manager, it may seek review by submitting a request in writing to 
the Administrator for approval by the Trustees to make such an exception. However, if a 
guideline is violated due to market events, actions, or conditions, the manager must 
immediately inform the Administrator to determine a course of action.  This course of 
action will be based upon the best judgement recommendation of the manager and the 
Administrator’s discussion with the investment consultant and Board members.  Correction 
of the violation may be postponed if it is deemed to be in the best interest of the Fund. 







3  


 
10. Should any temporary or permanent change regarding a manager occur, the manager shall 


notify the Administrator immediately via phone.  A letter, detailing the circumstances of 
the change and the possible impact to the portfolio management, will be faxed immediately 
to the Administrator.  Changes include, but are not limited to:  a) a significant change in 
investment philosophy, b) a loss of one or more key management personnel, c) a new 
portfolio manager on the account, d) a change in ownership structure of the firm, or e) any 
occurrence which might potentially impact the management, professionalism, integrity or 
financial position of the investment manager. 


 
11. For purposes of the guidelines, (a) all percentages apply on a market value basis 


immediately after a purchase or initial investment and (b) any subsequent change in any 
applicable percentage resulting from market fluctuations or other changes in total assets 
does not require immediate elimination of any security from the Portfolio. 


 
Performance Objective 
 
Outperform the Russell 2000 Growth Index by 1.50% per annum over a full market cycle (three 
to five years), net of fees. 
 
 
Acknowledged: Redwood Investments, LLC. 


 
 
 By: _____________________ Date:    
                            Jennifer K. Silver, Managing Partner 
 
  
 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 
 By: _____________________ Date:    
        John Jenkins, Chair 


 
Date last revised: December 13, 2016 


Formatted: Left





		EXHIBIT B

		Typical Portfolio Characteristics






Exhibit B 


Systematic Financial Management, L.P. 
Domestic Equity Management 


for 
Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 


 
Investment Approach  
 
Systematic Financial Management (Systematic) shall utilize a bottom-up stock 
selection process to manage its “Free Cash Flow” small-capitalization equity 
portfolio for ERF.  The portfolio construction process begins with a quantitative 
screening of the universe of stocks for those companies with an initial market 
capitalization between $100 million and $5 billion.  Systematic then identifies 
those companies that have one or more of the following characteristics:  low 
price to operating cash flow, low price to free cash flow, low total debt-to-equity, 
strong debt coverage, and consistently solid operating and free cash flow.  The 
next step of the portfolio construction process involves fundamental analysis on 
the companies passing these initial screens.  In this step, Systematic’s small-cap 
equity team conducts a review of companies’ historical operating results, balance 
sheet and off-balance sheet items, current business model, company 
management, and industry trends.  Systematic then projects future operating 
results and derives an appropriate valuation for each of the companies based on 
the fundamental analysis.  The goal of this process is to identify well-managed, 
financially sound companies that are trading at a discount relative to intrinsic 
value and are able to generate strong free cash flows over time.  Systematic 
believes that, by investing in these companies, the portfolio will outperform more 
aggressive-styled portfolios over the long-term.  
 
Typical Portfolio Characteristics 
 


1. Market capitalization range $100 million to the 
upper index cap 
weighting  


2. Number of holdings 100-130 
3. Maximum investment in a single issue at market 


value: 5% 


4. Maximum allocation to a single economic sector: 


30%+10% benchmark 
sector weight (revised 


12/16) 
5. Maximum cash allocation at market value: 5% 
6. Annual turnover 30 – 50% 


 
The characteristics above are only representative of a portfolio with your firm’s 
designated investment specialization.  The characteristics are not intended to 
hinder the manager or inhibit its ability to implement its investment process and 
disciplines.  However, the portfolio will be monitored to identify any significant 
deviations that may indicate a material change in investment approach. 


Formatted: Font: 8 pt







 2 


Authorized Investments 
 
1. Common stocks listed on U.S. exchanges or traded through NASDAQ 


(revised 10/2011). with the exception of real estate securities. 
2. Master Custodian’s Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF). 


 
General Investment Manager Guidelines and Requirements 
 
1. The manager shall take note of and operate under the “Domestic Equity 


Asset Class Policy for the Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of 
Dallas” which specifies the strategic roles the portfolio is to fulfill in the 
overall investment structure of the Fund; a copy of which is appended to, 
and is part of these guidelines and objectives. 


 
2. Purchases and sales, security selection, and portfolio implementation of 


investment strategies are delegated to the discretion of the investment 
manager. 


 
3. The following transactions are prohibited:  purchase of non-negotiable 


securities, short sales of stocks and bonds, stock and bond transactions on 
margin, straddles, options, leverage, or letter stock. 


 
4. The use of derivatives is prohibited. 
 
5. Transactions that involve a broker acting as a "principal" where such broker 


is also the investment manager who is making the transaction is prohibited. 
 
6. Transactions shall be executed at a reasonable cost, taking into 


consideration prevailing market conditions and services and research 
provided by the executing broker.  At the discretion of the Board, the 
manager will prepare a report detailing all transaction costs and any soft 
dollar payments and usage. 


 
7. Each investment manager shall have full responsibility for the exercise of all 


rights appurtenant to any securities under its management, including 
responsibility to vote proxies, except to the extent otherwise directed by the 
Trustees.  Investment managers shall maintain records of proxy votes and 
make them available for inspection upon reasonable request. 


 
8. Performance objectives are to be met on a net of fees basis. 


 
9. Any investment or action with respect to an investment not expressly 


allowed is prohibited, unless presented to and approved prospectively by 
the Trustees.  All guidelines must be adhered to by the manager.  If from 
time to time an exception to the guidelines shall be deemed appropriate by 
a manager, it may seek review by submitting a request in writing to the 
Administrator for approval by the Trustees to make such an exception. 







 3 


However, if a guideline is violated due to market events, actions, or 
conditions, the manager must immediately inform the Administrator to 
determine a course of action.  This course of action will be based upon the 
best judgement recommendation of the manager and the Administrator’s 
discussion with the investment consultant and Board members.  Correction 
of the violation may be postponed if it is deemed to be in the best interest of 
the Fund. 


 
10. Should any temporary or permanent change regarding a manager occur, 


the manager shall notify the Administrator immediately via phone.  A letter, 
detailing the circumstances of the change and the possible impact to the 
portfolio management, will be faxed immediately to the Administrator.  
Changes include, but are not limited to:  a) a significant change in 
investment philosophy, b) a loss of one or more key management 
personnel, c) a new portfolio manager on the account, d) a change in 
ownership structure of the firm, or e) any occurrence which might potentially 
impact the management, professionalism, integrity or financial position of 
the investment manager. 


 
11. For purposes of the guidelines, (a) all percentages apply on a market value 


basis immediately after a purchase or initial investment and (b) any 
subsequent change in any applicable percentage resulting from market 
fluctuations or other changes in total assets does not require immediate 
elimination of any security from the Portfolio. 


 
 
Performance Objective 
 
Outperform the Russell 2000 Index by 1.25% (revised 9/15) per annum over a full 
market cycle (3 to 5 years), net of fees. 
 
 
Acknowledged: Systematic Financial Management, L.P. 


 
 
 By: _____________________ Date:    
 
 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 
 By: _____________________ Date:    
 
 


Revised March 11, 2008October 11, 2011December 13, 2016. 





		Typical Portfolio Characteristics






Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas


Legal Counsel – Request for Proposal Process


December 13, 2016







1


Overview


Project Objective


The Employees' Retirement Fund City of Dallas ("ERF" or the "Fund") is seeking proposals from individual
attorneys or law firms having an established practice involving employee pension and retirement matters and the
legal issues relating to management of institutional trust funds. The purpose of this Request for Proposals ("RFP") is
to allow ERF to select one or more attorneys or law firms to provide services as legal advisor ("Retirement Counsel")
to the Fund.


 The firm will perform the following services:
– Retirement Counsel will be expected to keep abreast of and provide on-going advice and counsel with


respect to matters bearing upon the administration of the Fund;


– Represent the Fund in all matters involving administrative or judicial proceedings before administrative
bodies or courts relating thereto;


– Retirement Counsel will be expected to prepare, on an as-needed basis, vendor contracts relating to the
administration of the Fund and the management of its funds;


– Provide memoranda of advice on legal issues relating to administration of the Fund; administrative findings
and conclusions as appropriate with regard to matters coming before the ERF Board; and such other related
materials as may be requested from time to time by the Fund.







2


Targeted Legal Counsel Firms 


 Barnes & Thornberg - Dallas


 Bell Nunnally – Dallas


 Cohen Milstein – New York


 Ford & Harrison LLP – Dallas


 Foster Pepper PLLC - Seattle


 Ice Miller – Indianapolis


 Jackson Walker – Austin


 Lloyd Gosselink – Austin


 Locke Lord – Dallas


 White & Wiggins – Dallas


 Strasburger & Price - Dallas







3


Proposal Evaluation


Proposals will be reviewed to determine whether or not they meet the 
requirements of the RFP.  Proposals will be evaluated on the following criteria:


1. Experience and Past Performance (Point Value=100pts; Weighted Value=20%). The proposer’s prior
applicable experience and performance in advising clients with regard to retirement matters, including in particular
retirement matters governed by applicable laws and institutional investment matters.


2. Knowledge and Experience in Related Fields (Point Value=100pts; Weighted Value=20%). The proposer’s
knowledge and experience with respect to employee benefits, securities law generally or knowledge and
experience in both areas.


3. Qualifications of Key Personnel (Point Value=100pts; Weighted Value=10%). The capability, experience and
qualifications of key personnel; the availability and commitment to ERF of such personnel and their continuity with
the firm; and the ability of such personnel to complete time sensitive transactions.


4. Understanding of Public Authorities (Point Value=100pts; Weighted Value=5%). The knowledge and
familiarity of the proposer with respect to independent public authorities.


5. Cost (Point Value=100pts; Weighted Value=40%). Appropriateness and competitiveness of the cost proposal.


6. Diversity (Point Value=100pts; Weighted Value=5%). The proposer’s commitment to equal employment
opportunity.







4


Timeline


Request for Proposal Schedule:


Solicitation Schedule Date


RFP Issued Wednesday, December 14, 2016 


Deadline for Questions from vendors Tuesday, December 20, 2016.


Answers to all Questions from ERF Staff Tuesday, January 3, 2016


Sealed Proposals Due to the FUND Friday, January 13, 2017


Notification of Finalists – Due Diligence process to start Friday, January 20, 2017


Oral Presentations to the Board and Selection of 
Retirement Counsel, pending the Board’s approval


Tuesday, February 14, 2017 


Announcement of Successful Proposer(s), pending the 
Board’s approval


Wednesday, February 15, 2017


Commencement of Contract Agreement, pending the 
Board’s approval


Wednesday, March 1, 2017





		Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas��Legal Counsel – Request for Proposal Process

		�Overview

		�Targeted Legal Counsel Firms 

		Proposal Evaluation

		Timeline






ACTIVE\42870551.v1-10/24/16 


FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS, INCORPORATED 
6 Dickinson Drive, Suite 214 


P.O. Box 182 
Chadds Ford, PA  19317 


 
October 25, 2016 
 
The Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
600 North Pearl Street, Suite 2450 
Plaza of the Americas - South Tower 
Dallas, TX  75201 
Attn: The Board of Trustees 
 
Re:  Contract Assignment 
 
Dear Board of Trustees: 
 
Financial Control Systems, Incorporated (“FCS”) and the Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City 
of Dallas (the “Fund”) are parties to that certain Amended and Restated Agreement dated September 
30, 2009, as amended from time to time (the “Agreement”). 


FCS will be selling substantially all of its assets to STP Investment Services, LLC (“STP”), an 
investment operations and fund services provider with its headquarters at 486 Thomas Jones Way, 
Suite 250, Exton, PA 19341, on or about November 4, 2016.  In connection with such sale and 
purchase, FCS intends to assign all of its rights, title and interest in and to the Agreement to STP, and 
STP intends to assume all of FCS’s duties and obligations thereunder. 


Section 7 of the Agreement provides that FCS may not assign any of its rights or duties with respect 
to the Agreement without obtaining the prior consent of the Board of Trustees.  Please acknowledge 
and consent to FCS’s assignment of the Agreement to STP in connection with the sale and purchase 
described above.  Thank you in advance for your cooperation and please feel free to contact me with 
any questions regarding this matter. 


Sincerely, 
 


Edward M. Sinkinson 
Vice President/General Manager 


 
Acknowledged and Agreed: 
 
The Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 
 
By:       
 
Print Name:      
 
Title:       








 
DISCUSSION SHEET 


 
 


Employees’ Retirement Fund 
Board of Trustees Meeting 


 
 


December 13, 2016 
 
 
 
Issue: First Quarter Cash Requirements and Rebalancing 
 
 
Attachment: None  
 
 
Discussion: Our first quarter cash needs are estimated to be $38 


million. We are proposing to take the $38 million from the 
following managers:  Systematic ($5,000,000); Channing 
($5,000,000); T. Rowe Price ($8,000,000); Garcia Hamilton 
($5,000,000); Oaktree ($4,500,000); BlackRock High Yield 
($5,500,000); and Neuberger Berman ($5,000,000).   


 
 
Recommendation: Approve the proposed cash requirements and rebalancing 


plan. Suggested motion for the approval is as follows:  
Move for approval to take the first quarter cash 
requirements and rebalance the managers as noted above. 





		December 13, 2016






1 
 


Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Employee Evaluation, Discharge and Appeal Policy and Procedure 
 
 
I. Introduction 
 
The Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas (the “Fund”) created pursuant to City Code 
40A, is administered by the Board of Trustees of the Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of 
Dallas (the “Board of Trustees" or the “Board") which Board is obligated to administer the Fund 
as a trust fund solely in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries.  In order to carry out the 
Board’s duties and the administration of the Fund’s investments, benefit computations, benefit 
applications and other matters it is necessary to have an adequate number of qualified dedicated 
employees who will perform the tasks involved in the administration of the Fund. While such 
employees working on Fund matters are in fact employees of the City of Dallas (the “City”), under 
the express terms of Chapter 40A-5(c) the Board is empowered to engage and employ an 
administrator who shall be the chief executive and operating officer of the Fund and whose title is 
“Executive Director”. Further, pursuant to Chapter 40A-5(b) the Executive Director is authorized 
to appoint such assistants and other employees (“Fund Employees”) as the Executive Director in 
her/his good judgment deem necessary to properly administer the Fund. 
 
In consideration of the Board’s and the Executive Director’s duties and obligations under Chapter 
40A, the Board of Trustees adopts this Employee Evaluation and Discharge Policy and Procedure 
(“EPP”) which both codifies current Fund practices that are and shall be applicable to all appointed 
employees of the Fund. This EPP will be read and enforced together with those certain applicable 
rules found in Chapter 34 of the Dallas City Code, as herein below more fully set forth. 
 
Per the Dallas City Code Chapter 34: SEC. 34-37. (DISCIPLINE PROCEDURES)  
 
(b) Departmental rules: Because of the variety of services performed by the city, it may be 
necessary for departments to establish codes of conduct, rules, orders, directives, and procedures 
to accomplish departmental responsibilities. An employee who violates a departmental code of 
conduct, rule, order, directive, or procedure is subject to disciplinary action. 
 
Departments may designate the level of supervisory or departmental authority at which 
disciplinary action may be taken or recommended. The provisions of Chapter 34 and the 
procedures set forth in the administrative directives of the city take precedence over departmental 
rules. 
  
II. Unsatisfactory Attendance and or Performance 
 
Chapter 34 of the Dallas City Code provides the Code of Conduct for all City employees, including 
all Fund Employees. In the event a Fund Employee fails to have satisfactory attendance or job 
performance or fails to work well in a collaborative manner with fellow Fund Employees, if the 
immediate Supervisor believes that the Fund Employee may with appropriate warning and 
guidance improve their attendance and or job performance or working relationships, the Fund 
Employee may be reprimanded and informed of the reasons for the unsatisfactory rating and what 
is expected and by what deadline, in order to attain a satisfactory rating in addition to instructions 
on necessary improvements, until such improvements have been accomplished, if the Supervisor 
believes it appropriate, the Fund Employee may also be subject to a period of suspension or a 







2 
 


demotion.  The Fund Employee will be given a written copy of their review and, if necessary a 
Performance Improvement Plan (PIP).  As a condition of continued employment by the Fund, the 
Fund Employee must initial her/his receipt of the review and PIP, indicating that she or he had 
ample time to read the review (and, if applicable, the PIP), understands same, as well as the 
opportunity to explain or otherwise address the Supervisor, Deputy and Executive Director, if the 
Fund Employee believes that there were mitigating circumstances that should be taken into account 
by the Fund. 
 
In certain circumstances, if the Supervisor through documentation determines either that the 
attendance or job performance or both was so below the standards expected of and set for Fund 
Employees as to warrant suspension, demotion or immediate termination, or that after an 
unsatisfactory performance review and a PIP, the Fund Employee has not adequately and timely 
addressed the deficiencies, the Supervisor may suspend, demote or terminate the Fund Employee 
with the assistance of the City’s Human Resources Department. 
 
III. Appeal of Termination Decision 
 
According to Chapter 34-38 (Grievance and Appeal Procedures) of the Dallas City Code, all 
employees may have up to two levels of appeals regarding disciplinary actions and the employee 
may file the grievance with the next higher level of supervision above the immediate supervisor. 
Performance appeals for all Fund Employees are final with the Executive Director.  If a Fund 
Employee disagrees with the Supervisor’s decision to suspend, demote or terminate that Fund 
Employee, such person will have 10 business days to submit a written appeal, attaching any and 
all documents or other evidence they believe supports their claim that they should not have been 
terminated.  Within 30 days from receipt of the appeal, the Fund will notify the Fund Employee of 
the date and time of a scheduled hearing with the Deputy or Executive Director, which hearing 
will generally not exceed 30 minutes, unless the Executive Director in her/his sole and absolute 
discretion deems some longer hearing period would be necessary. If the former Fund Employee 
fails to attend the hearing, the Deputy or Executive Director shall make a decision based solely on 
the appeal letter and any attachments. Otherwise, the former Fund Employee shall have an 
opportunity at the hearing, in addition to any documents or other evidence presented by that time, 
to supplement and explain to the Deputy or Executive Director, why such suspension, demotion 
or termination decision should be rescinded.  The Deputy or Executive Director will have up to an 
additional 30 days from the date of the hearing to render her decision. 
 
If the former Fund Employee wishes to further appeal the decision of the Deputy or Executive 
Director, such person will have 10 calendar days from the date of the written decision of the Deputy 
or Executive Director to submit a written appeal to the Board of Trustees.  The Board shall then, 
in its sole discretion, at the next held regular Board meeting, designate a 3-person panel of Trustees 
to hear such final appeal. Such final appeal to the 3-person Trustee panel shall be scheduled to take 
place within an additional 30 days from the appointment of the 3-person Trustee panel, and in such 
appeal the 3-person Trustee panel shall consider: (i) any further oral presentation by the former 
Fund Employee, along with (ii) only those records and other documents that had earlier been 
presented to the Executive Director.  This 3-person Trustee panel’s hearing will generally not 
exceed 30 minutes, unless the panel in its sole and absolute discretion deems some longer hearing 
period would be necessary. The 3-person Trustee panel will have up to an additional 30 days from 
the date of the hearing to render its decision, which decision shall be final and binding on the 
former Fund Employee and any and all other persons without any further appeal. 
 
 







3 
 


 
 
ADOPTION: 
 
This Policy and Procedure was adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Fund at its meeting of 
December 13, 2016. 
 
 
  
_____________________________    _________________________________ 
John D. Jenkins     Cheryl D. Alston 
Chair, Board of Trustees    Executive Director 
Employees’ Retirement Fund    Employees’ Retirement Fund 
 
 
Date:  ________________________    Date: _____________________________ 
 


 





